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INTRODUCTION
General

This report contains references to yeal220011, 2010, 2009, 2008, and 2007, which reptdseal years ending or ended Februar
2013, February 3, 2012, January 28, 2011, Janigr@.0, January 30, 2009, and February 1, 2088erively. Our fiscal year ends on the
Friday closest to January 31, and each of the Viséed will be or were 52-week years, with the eption of 2011 which consisted of
53 weeks. All of the discussion and analysis is teport should be read with, and is qualifiedsrentirety by, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes.

Solely for convenience, our trademarks adenames may appear in this report without thee ®M symbol which is not intended to
indicate that we will not assert, to the fullestemt under applicable law, our rights or the righthese trademarks and tradenames.

Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Staements

We include "forward-looking statements"hiit the meaning of the federal securities lawsughmut this report, particularly under the
headings "Business," "Management's Discussion aradyAis of Financial Condition and Results of Ofierss," and "Note 9—Commitments
and Contingencies," among others. You can idethi#ége statements because they are not limitedtorigial fact or they use words such as
"may," "will," "should," "could," "believe," "antipate," "project," "plan," "expect," "estimate,'otecast,” "goal," "potential," "opportunity,"
"intend," "will likely result,” or "will continue"and similar expressions that concern our stratelgys, intentions or beliefs about future
occurrences or results. For example, all statenretating to our estimated and projected expenelitucash flows, results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity; our plans, obfees and expectations for future operations, ghoovtinitiatives; or the expected outcome or
effect of pending or threatened litigation or asdite forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements are subjectisks and uncertainties that may change atiamy, tso our actual results may differ
materially from those that we expected. We deriamynof these statements from our operating budgetforecasts, which are based on
many detailed assumptions that we believe are nadd®. However, it is very difficult to predict tlefect of known factors, and we cannot
anticipate all factors that could affect our actueslults.

Important factors that could cause actesllts to differ materially from the expectatiompressed in our forwarkboking statements a
disclosed under "Risk Factors" in Part I, ltem IAl &lsewhere in this document (including, withamnitation, in conjunction with the
forward-looking statements themselves and undehélagling "Critical Accounting Policies and EstingdjeAll forward-looking statements
are qualified in their entirety by these and ofteutionary statements that we make from time te fimour other SEC filings and public
communications. You should evaluate such statenmeriee context of these risks and uncertaintiégse factors may not contain all of the
factors that are important to you. We cannot asgotethat we will realize the results or developiseme anticipate or, even if substantially
realized, that they will result in the consequermeaffect us in the way we expect. Forward-lookstatements are made only as of the date
hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly upedar revise any forward-looking statement as alte$ new information, future events or
otherwise, except as otherwise required by law.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the largest discount retailer inUinged States by number of stores, with 9,961lestéwcated in 39 states as of March 2, 2012,
primarily in the southern, southwestern, midwestard eastern United States. We offer a broad $eteot merchandise, including
consumables, seasonal, home products and apparan&chandise includes high quality national bsaindm leading manufacturers, as v
as comparable quality private brand selections piittes at substantial discounts to national brawds offer our merchandise at everyday
low prices (typically $10 or less) through our cenient small-box (approximately 7,200 square feejtions.

Our History

J.L. Turner founded our Company in 1939.&4s Turner and Son, Wholesale. We were incorpdratea Kentucky corporation under the
name J.L. Turner & Son, Inc. in 1955, when we oplemg first Dollar General store. We changed oum@ao Dollar General Corporation in
1968 and reincorporated in 1998 as a Tennesseeratiom. Our common stock was publicly traded fro®68 until July 2007, when we
merged with an entity controlled by investment fsiadfiliated with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L,Br KKR. In November 2009 our
common stock again became publicly traded. Bucldiagk, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership coméidby KKR, continues to
beneficially own a significant percentage of outstanding common stock.

Our Business Model

Our long history of profitable growth isuieded on a commitment to a relatively simple bussnaodel: providing a broad base of
customers with their basic everyday and househeddls, supplemented with a variety of general meudika items, at everyday low prices in
conveniently located, small-box stores. We contiguavaluate the needs and demands of our custoamersnodify our merchandise
selections and pricing accordingly, while remainiagused on increasing profitability for our shasieters.

Fiscal year 2011 represented ouf®2onsecutive year of same-store sales growth. groisth, regardless of economic conditions,
suggests that we have a less cyclical model thast retailers and, we believe, is a result of ounelling value and convenience proposit

Our attractive store economics, includinglatively low initial investment and simple, lawst operating model, have allowed us to
grow our store base to current levels, and prouglsignificant opportunities to continue our pratfie store growth strategy.

Compelling Value and Convenience Propogitio Our ability to deliver highly competitive pris®n national brand and quality private
brand products in convenient locations and our @aayd out shopping format create a compellingpphy experience that distinguishes us
from other discount, convenience and drugstoréleesaOur slogan, "Save time. Save money. Eveyy'daimmarizes our appeal to
customers. We believe our ability to effectivelyider both value and convenience allows us to sedde small markets with limited
shopping alternatives, as well as to profitablyxistealongside larger retailers in more competitiverkets. Our compelling value and
convenience proposition is evidenced by the follapattributes of our business model:

. Convenient Locations.Our stores are conveniently located in a vamétural, suburban and urban communities, currently
with approximately 70% serving communities with ptgtions of less than 20,000. In more densely patpdlareas, our small-
box stores typically serve the closely surroundirgghborhoods. The majority of our customers livthin three to five miles,
ora




10-minute drive, of our stores. Our close proxintigycustomers drives customer loyalty and trip ity and makes us an
attractive alternative to large discount and othage-box retail and grocery stores which are ofibeated farther away. Our
low cost economic model enables us to serve magsawrith fewer than 1,500 households.

. Time-Saving Shopping Experienc®Ve also provide customers with a highly convengopping experience. Our stores'
smaller size allows us to locate parking near tbetfentrance. Our product offering includes mastassities, such as basic
packaged and refrigerated food and dairy prodet#aning supplies, paper products, and health aadth care items, as well
as greeting cards, party supplies, apparel, housswhaardware and automotive supplies, among ot@enstypical store opens
at 8:00 a.m. and closes at 9:00 p.m. or 10:00 paven days per week. Our convenient hours andibneschandise offering
allow our customers to fulfill their routine shoppirequirements and minimize their need to shopndisre.

. Everyday Low Prices on Quality Merchandis@ur research indicates that we offer a price athge over most food and drug
retailers and that our prices are highly competitiith even the largest discount retailers. Oulitgtio offer everyday low
prices on quality merchandise is supported by owrdost operating structure and our strategy tantaai a limited number of
stock keeping units ("SKUs") per category, whichlvetieve helps us maintain strong purchasing polest items are priced
below $10, with approximately 25% at $1 or less. &ffer quality nationally advertised brands at theseryday low prices in
addition to offering our own comparable qualityatte brands at value prices.

Attractive Store Economics. The traditional Dollar General store size, gesind location requires minimal initial capitav@stment
and low maintenance expenditures. Our typical looatinvolve a modest, no-frills building, whichlpg keep our rental and other fixed
overhead costs relatively low. Our leased storeegdly deliver positive cash flow in their firsegr of operations, typically resulting in pay
back of capital in less than two years. Our strnmigearket analysis, real estate site selectionmnamudstore approval processes as well as our
new store marketing programs help us optimize firdmeturns and minimize the risks of opening wifipable stores.

Our lean store staffing model and centealimanagement of utilities, maintenance and suppliecurement contribute to our relatively
low operating costs and efficient store operatidtexent additions and upgrades to technology irstmres, including high-speed data
transmission, inventory control, workforce managet@nd task management systems are enabling uartaga our store operations even
more effectively.

Substantial Growth Opportunities. We believe we have the long-term potentiahmt).S. to more than double our existing store base
while maintaining strong returns on capital. Wedalentified significant opportunities to add newrss in both existing and new markets. In
addition, we have opportunities within our existstgre base to relocate or remodel to better smiweustomers. See "Our Growth Strategy”
for additional details.

Our Growth Strategy

We believe we have the right strategy atetetion capabilities to capitalize on the consadie growth opportunities afforded by our
business model. We believe we continue to havéfgignt opportunities to drive profitable growthrdlugh increasing same-store sales,
expanding our operating profit rate and growing store base.

Increasing Same-Store Sales.We believe the combination of our necessityatiproduct mix and our attractive value propositio
including a well-balanced merchandising approactyiges a strong basis for increased sales. Ounggesales per square foot increased to

$213in 2011 (including a $4 contribution from & week) from $201 in 2010 and $195 in 2009. We belige will continue to
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have additional opportunities to increase our spoogluctivity through improved in-stock positiopsice optimization, continued
improvements in space utilization, and additionamting and merchandising initiatives, includinglier expansion of our frozen and
refrigerated food offerings.

We remodeled or relocated 575 stores irl 28fd we plan to relocate or remodel 550 stor@9i?. Remodels and relocations typically
drive incremental same-store sales growth. A rélocdypically results in an improved, more visilaled accessible location, and usually
includes increased square footage. We believe Weavitinue to have opportunities for additionainedels and relocations beyond 2012.

Expanding Operating Profit Rate. Another key component of our growth strategiyriproving our operating profit rate through
enhanced gross profit and expense reduction inigisit Even though we faced challenges in 2011 tiagulrom ongoing pressures with reg
to discretionary spending and significant increasggoduct costs, we were able to increase ourating profit by 17%, equal to 30 basis
points as a percent of sales, primarily due toamgoing efforts to reduce selling, general and aistrative expenses as a percent of sales.

We remain committed to an everyday low@tEDLP") strategy that our customers can depend o strengthen our adherence to this
strategy and still protect gross profit, we utilizrious pricing and merchandising options, inahgdprice optimization strategies, changes to
our product selection, such as alternate natiorsalds and the expansion of our private brandsnasdifications to our packaging and
product size. In 2011, the cost of many basic coditias, including cotton, sugar, coffee, groundrartd resin, as well as transportation fuel,
increased, and many of these increases were paksegto us by our vendors. These cost increassedpa challenge to our continued pric
of improving our gross profit rate in 2011.

Our private brand program complements oodehof offering customers nationally branded conables merchandise at everyday low
prices. When compared to similar national brandsate or proprietary brand items generally hawghbr gross profit rates. The addition of
private brands also allows us to better controlijuand improve our packaging and shelf preseatativer less recognizable "packer" labels.
Over the past few years we have expanded our privaind initiative to our non-consumable offerindggmatically improving the visual
impact of many of our non-consumables, includingdsavares, domestics, lawn and garden tools and sutoys.

In addition, in 2010 and 2011, we increagedoffering of items at the $1.00 price pointdsing first on food followed by health and
beauty. Because we believe this program adds iremeghsales and gross profit, we plan to further plnogram in 2012, continuing to
combine some of our $1.00 EDLP items with speaistpases.

Improving our inventory shrinkage has baad continues to be an important component of ekpgrour gross profit rate. To achieve
this objective we have concentrated our shrink cddn efforts on stores with the highest shrinlesain addition, we have been successful in
employing exception reporting tools and enhanceuhlsloptimization processes.

We also continue to believe we have themti! to directly source a larger portion of ovoglucts internationally at significant savings
to current costs. In 2011, we imported approxinya$d180 million of goods, or 8% of total purchassscost.

We continually look for ways to improve agst structure and enhance efficiencies througtimubrganization. For example, in 2011,
we fully implemented a store workforce managemeogjam, and made further progress on reducing tlsiagh our energy management
and centralized procurement systems.




Growing Our Store Bast Based on a detailed, market-by-market analysshelieve we have the potential to at least doohr
current number of stores through expansion in batkting and new markets. In 2011, we made oualréhtrance into Connecticut, New
Hampshire and Nevada (our first new states sin&&2and in 2012 we plan to open approximately 6festin California. We have
confidence in our real estate disciplines and inadnility to identify, open and operate succesei stores. As a result, we believe that at
least our present level of new store growth isanable for the foreseeable future.

Our Merchandise

We offer a focused assortment of everydmessities, which drive frequent customer visitsl key items in a broad range of general
merchandise categories. Our product assortmentda®the opportunity for our customers to addresstrof their basic shopping needs with
one trip. We sell high quality national brands fregading manufacturers such as Procter & Gamblebiérly Clark, Unilever, Kellogg's,
General Mills, Nabisco, Coca-Cola and PepsiCo, Whie typically found at higher retail prices elbene. Additionally, our private brand
consumables offer consumers even greater valueopttbns to purchase value items and national begjuivalent products at substantial
discounts to the national brand.

Our stores generally offer approximately000 total SKUs per store; however, the numberkdfi§in a given store can vary based upon
the store's size, geographic location, merchamglisitiatives, seasonality, and other factors. Mafstur products are priced at $10 or less,
with approximately 25% at $1 or less. We separatemerchandise into four categories: 1) consumaBleseasonal; 3) home products; and
4) apparel.

Consumables is our largest category arlddies paper and cleaning products (such as pawetgobath tissue, paper dinnerware, trash
and storage bags, laundry and other home cleanjgiss); food, including packaged food and petids (such as cereals, canned soup:
vegetables, sugar, flour, milk, eggs and bread)etages and snacks (including candy, cookies, erackalty snacks and carbonated
beverages); health and beauty (including over-theiter medicines and personal care products, susbap, body wash, shampoo, dental
hygiene and foot care products); and pet (inclugiegsupplies and pet food).

Seasonal products include decorations, tmgtteries, small electronics, greeting carddiostary, prepaid cell phones and accessories,
gardening supplies, hardware, automotive and hdfiee cupplies.

Home products includes kitchen supplieskea@re, small appliances, light bulbs, storage @ioets, frames, candles, craft supplies and
kitchen, bed and bath soft goods.

Apparel includes casual everyday appareifants, toddlers, girls, boys, women and menyel as socks, underwear, disposable
diapers, shoes and accessories.

The percentage of net sales of each ofaurcategories of merchandise for the fiscal y@&adgcated below was as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Consumable 73.2% 71.€% 70.8%
Seasonas 13.¢% 14.5% 14.52%
Home product: 6.8% 7.% 7.4%
Apparel 6.2% 6% 7.2%

Our home products and seasonal categgpésatly account for the highest gross profit maggiand the consumables category typically
accounts for the lowest gross profit margin.




The Dollar General Store

The average Dollar General store has apmately 7,200 square feet of selling space angpeally operated by a store manager, an
assistant store manager and three or more satks.chpproximately 60% of our stores are in frerdiag buildings and 40% are in strip
shopping centers. Most of our customers live withiree to five miles, or a 10 minute drive, of stores. Our traditional store strategy
features low initial capital expenditures, limitedintenance capital, low occupancy and operatistscand a focused merchandise offering
within a broad range of categories, allowing udébver low retail prices while generating stroragl flows and investment returns. In 2011,
the average cost of equipment and fixtures in raditional leased stores was approximately $180,00(al inventory, net of payables,
increases the investment in a new store by appateig$75,000.

We generally have had good success initagatitable store sites in the past. Given the sfzhe communities that we target, we
believe that there is ample opportunity for neweigrowth in existing and new markets. In additithe, current real estate market has
continued to provide opportunities for us to acdegher quality sites at lower rates than in regerars. Also, we believe we have significant
opportunities available for our relocation and relelqprograms. We spend approximately $80,000 faipegent and fixtures to remodel a
traditional store and approximately $160,000 tocete a traditional store. We remodeled or relat&#5s stores in 2011, 504 in 2010 and
in 2009.

At the end of 2011, our total store councuded 69 Dollar General Market stores, whichadiition to the merchandise offering of a
traditional Dollar General store, feature an exmahfibod section, including fresh meat and produncesignificantly more frozen and
refrigerated foods. These stores, which averageoappately 16,000 square feet of selling spaceaaralternative to the typical grocery st
or supermarket, and generally contribute more l@ssand operating income than our traditional staire 2011, we opened 12 new Dollar
General Markets, including seven as part of odrainéntrance into Nevada. We plan to open apprateéty 40 new Dollar General Markets
2012, including a significant percentage of outiahistores in California. Our focus is on locatithg Dollar General Market stores in areas
that are generally underserved by large grocerinsh&Ve continue to test and adjust the Dollar Ga&ridarket concept and how we build
open the stores, as the capital investment foethses is significantly higher than our traditibstores. In addition to the Market stores, we
are also testing a larger format traditional steith approximately 10,000 square feet of sellingag including an expanded section of
coolers and freezers. Like the Dollar General Maskeres, these larger format stores currentlyiregignificantly higher capital investment
than our traditional stores and we are workingettuce that difference.

Our recent store growth is summarized enftllowing table:

Stores at Net

Beginning Stores Stores Store Stores at
Year of Year Opened Closed Increase End of Year
2009 8,362 50C 34 46€ 8,82¢
2010 8,82¢ 60C 56 544 9,372
2011 9,372 628 60 56¢& 9,931

Our Customers

Our customers seek value and convenienepelding on their financial situation and geograjpnoximity, customers' reliance on
Dollar General varies from using Dollar Generalfitiyin shopping, to making periodic trips to stoap on household items, to making
weekly or more frequent trips to meet most essenéiads. We believe that our value and convenienmgosition attracts customers from a
wide range of income brackets and life stageshéndst year, we have continued to see
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increases in the annual number of shopping trigsdhr customers make to our stores as well aartfwint spent during each trip.

To attract new and retain existing cust@nae continue to focus on product quality anddle, in-stock levels and pricing, targeted
advertising, improved store standards, convenigmtacations, and a pleasant overall customer réaipee.

Our Suppliers

We purchase merchandise from a wide vagésuppliers and maintain direct buying relatiapshwith many producers of national
brand merchandise, such as Procter & Gamble, Kimi#ark, Unilever, Kellogg's, General Mills, Nabi Coca-Cola and PepsiCo. Despite
our broad offering, we maintain only a limited nuenlof SKUs per category, giving us a pricing adagetin dealing with our suppliers.
Approximately 8% and 7% of our purchases in 201feviem our largest and second largest suppliespectively. Our private brands come
from a diversified supplier base. We directly imjedrapproximately 8% of our purchases at cost (d2®&ur purchases based on their retail
value) in 2011. Our vendor arrangements generatlyige for payment for such merchandise in U.Slads!

We have consistently managed to obtairicsefft quantities of core merchandise and beliéeg, if one or more of our current source
supply became unavailable, we would generally bbe tabobtain alternative sources without experiega@ substantial disruption of our
business. However, such alternative sources caglg@ase our merchandise costs or reduce the qoalityr merchandise, and an inability to
obtain alternative sources could adversely affactsales.

Distribution, Transportation and Inventory Management

Our stores are currently supported by fetridution centers located strategically throughmur geographic footprint, including a new
distribution center in Bessemer, Alabama which begfapping to stores on March 11, 2012. We leasitiadal temporary warehouse space
as necessary to support our distribution needaddlition, we have leased a distribution facility_igbec, California which we expect to be
operational in April 2012. Over the past few yeaeshave made significant investments in facilitteshnological improvements and
upgrades, and we continue to improve work procesdiesf which increase our efficiency and abilibysupport our merchandising and
operations initiatives as well as our new storengino We continually analyze and rebalance the n&twmensure that it remains efficient and
provides the service our stores require. See "—dti@s" for additional information pertaining toradistribution centers.

Most of our merchandise flows through oistributions centers and is delivered to our stameghird-party trucking firms, utilizing our
trailers. Our agreements with these trucking fiars based on estimated costs of diesel fuel, Wwéldifference in estimated and current
market fuel costs passed through to us. The césliesel fuel are significantly influenced by imetional, political and economic
circumstances, and were considerably higher througp011 than in 2010. If such increased pricesarenm effect, or if further price
increases were to arise for any reason, includieggupply shortages or unusual price volatilitye tesulting higher fuel prices could
materially increase our transportation costs.

We believe that there remains opporturgtirtprove our inventory turns. Initiatives in praesdnclude operational efforts to optimize
presentation levels, improve in-stock levels ancrel@se excess quantities shipped to our storesditmue to focus on SKU optimization in
an attempt to ensure that we can meet customensirdis for our most popular products as well asreresppropriate product assortment. We
are also in the process of implementing an impratgaply chain solution to assist in ordering, maoity and tracking inventory from
purchase order to receipt to maintain efficienelswf inventory. We turned our inventory approxieia 5.3 times over the most recent four
quarters.




Seasonality

Our business is seasonal to a certain exBamerally, our highest sales volume occurs énftturth quarter, which includes the Christr
selling season, and the lowest occurs in thedustrter. In addition, our quarterly results caraffected by the timing of certain holidays, the
timing of new store openings and store closings atmount of sales contributed by new and existioges, as well as financial transactions
such as debt repurchases, common stock offerirgystank repurchases. We purchase substantial amotimventory in the third quarter a
incur higher shipping costs and higher payroll sastanticipation of the increased sales activitsirty the fourth quarter. In addition, we
carry merchandise during our fourth quarter thateeot carry during the rest of the year, suchifisets, holiday decorations, certain
baking items, and a broader assortment of toyscandy.

The following table reflects the seasowgalift net sales, gross profit, and net income bytgudor each of the quarters of our three most
recent fiscal years. The fourth quarter of the yerated February 3, 2012 was comprised of 14 weskiseach of the other quarters reflected
below were comprised of 13 weeks.

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

(in millions) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year Ended February 3, 2012

Net sales $ 3,451.7 $ 3,575.. $ 3,595.. $ 4,185.:
Gross profit 1,087 .« 1,148.: 1,115.¢ 1,346.¢
Net income(a 157.C 146.( 1712 292t
Year Ended January 28, 201:

Net sales $ 31117 $ 3,214 $ 3,223« $ 3,486.:
Gross profit 999.¢ 1,036.( 1,010.7 1,130.:
Net income 136.( 141.2 128.1 222.k
Year Ended January 29, 201(

Net sales $ 2,779.¢ $ 2,901.¢ $ 2,928.¢ $ 3,185.¢
Gross profit 855. 906.( 903.1 1,025.¢
Net income(b’ 83.C 93.€ 75.€ 87.2

@) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of $35libmrelated to the redemption of long-term obtigas in
second quarter of 2011.

(b) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of $82l®mirelated to our initial public offering durindpe fourth
quarter of 2009

Our Competition

We operate in the basic discount consuraedg market, which is highly competitive with respi® price, store location, merchandise
quality, assortment and presentation, in-stock isterscy, and customer service. We compete withodiststores and with many other
retailers, including mass merchandise, groceryg,dtanvenience, variety and other specialty staresse other retail companies operate
stores in many of the areas where we operate, amy of them engage in extensive advertising andeatiawg efforts. Our direct competitors
include Family Dollar, Dollar Tree, Fred's, 99 Cefinly and various local, independent operatorgyedsas Walmart, Target, Walgreens,
CVS, and Rite Aid, among others. Certain of our petitors have greater financial, distribution, nedikg and other resources than we do.

We differentiate ourselves from other forofisetailing by offering consistently low prices & convenient, small-store format. We
believe that our prices are competitive due in fradur low cost operating structure and the reddyilimited assortment of products offered.
Historically, we have




minimized labor by offering fewer price points amdeliance on simple merchandise presentation h@siieg large volumes of merchandise
within our focused assortment in each merchanditegory allows us to keep our average costs lontribwiting to our ability to offer
competitive everyday low prices to our customeee S—Our Business Model" above for further discuissif our competitive situation.

Our Employees

As of March 2, 2012, we employed approxieha®0,000 full-time and part-time employees, imthg divisional and regional managers,
district managers, store managers, other stor@peesand distribution center and administrativespenel. We have increasingly focused on
recruiting, training, motivating and retaining eimy¢es, and we believe that the quality, performamzemorale of our employees have
increased as a result. We currently are not a paryy collective bargaining agreements.

Our Trademarks

We own marks that are registered with théddl States Patent and Trademark Office and ategted under applicable intellectual
property laws, including without limitation the ttamarks Dollar General®, Dollar General Market®\@r Valley®, DG®, DG
Guarantee®, Smart & Simple®, trueliving®, Sweet Bs®, Open Trails®, and the Dollar General pricenpdesigns, along with variations
and formatives of these trademarks as well asioesther trademarks. Effective as of February 1L,.2@e exercised an option to purchase the
Bobbie Brooks® trademark. We expect to file assignhdlocuments in applicable trademark offices enabming weeks. We attempt to
obtain registration of our trademarks whenevertwable and to pursue vigorously any infringemerthose marks. Our trademark
registrations have various expiration dates; howegsuming that the trademark registrations aspeyty renewed, they have a perpetual
duration.

We also hold licenses to use various traakmowned by third parties, including a licenséh® Fisher Price brand for certain items of
children's clothing through December 31, 2013, améxclusive license to the Rexall brand throughdd®, 2020.

Available Information

Our Web site address is www.dollargenesah.cWe file with or furnish to the Securities amxtBange Commission (the "SEC") annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form@@,Gurrent reports on Form 8-K, and amendmentsdeet reports, proxy statements and
annual reports to shareholders, and, from timente,tregistration statements and other documehtssd documents are available free of
charge to investors on or through the Investorrimfttion portion of our Web site as soon as readgrahcticable after we electronically file
them with or furnish them to the SEC. In addititire public may read and copy any of the materiadile with the SEC at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington @822. The public may obtain information on the agien of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The &&@htains an internet site that contains reportsgypand information statements and
other information regarding issuers, such as D@laneral, that file electronically with the SEC eTdddress of that Web site is
http://www.sec.gov.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risksatésed below and the other information containethia report and other filings that we make
from time to time with the SEC, including our colidated financial statements and accompanying néteg of the following risks could
materially and adversely affect our business, figrcondition, results of operations or liquidity. addition, the risks described below are
the only risks we face. Our business, financialdition, results of operations or liquidity couldsalbe adversely affected by additional factors
that apply to all companies generally, as wellthgorisks that are not currently known to us @t thie currently view to be immaterial. Wh
we attempt to mitigate known risks to the extentbebeve to be practicable and reasonable, we mande no assurance, and we make no
representation, that our mitigation efforts will figccessful.

Current economic conditions and other e@onic factors may adversely affect our financial fermance and other aspects of our
business.

We believe that many of our customers aréx@d or low incomes and generally have limitéstdetionary spending dollars. A further
slowdown in the economy, or a delayed recoveryter economic conditions affecting disposable aorex income, such as increased
unemployment or underemployment levels, inflatiooreases in fuel or other energy costs and inteagss, lack of available credit,
consumer debt levels, higher tax rates and othemgss in tax laws, and further erosion in conswuafidence, may adversely affect our
business by reducing our customers' spending eabging them to shift their spending to productepthan those sold by us or to products
sold by us that are less profitable than other pebdhoices, all of which could result in lower sates, decreases in inventory turnover,
greater markdowns on inventory, and a reductigordfitability due to lower margins. Many of thosecfors, as well as commodity rates,
transportation costs (including the costs of diésel), costs of labor, insurance and healthcaneign exchange rate fluctuations, lease costs,
measures that create barriers to or increase 8te associated with international trade, changeshier laws and regulations and other
economic factors, also affect our cost of goodd aold our selling, general and administrative egpenwhich may adversely affect our sales
or profitability. We have limited or no ability wontrol many of these factors. Product costs béga@scalate in our 2010 fourth quarter as a
result of increases in the costs of certain comtresd(including cotton, sugar, coffee, groundntgsjn), and increasing diesel fuel costs. We
will be diligent in our efforts to keep product t®as low as possible in the face of these incesabde still working to optimize gross profit
and meet the needs of our customers.

In addition, many of the factors discusabdve, along with current global economic condiiand uncertainties, the potential for
additional failures or realignments of financiagtitutions, and the related impact on availablelitm@ay affect us and our suppliers and other
business partners, landlords and service provideas adverse manner including, but not limitedréalucing access to liquid funds or credit,
increasing the cost of credit, limiting our ability manage interest rate risk, increasing theafdkankruptcy of our suppliers, landlords or
counterparties to, or other financial institutiomgolved in, our credit facilities and our deriwatiand other contracts, increasing the cost of
goods to us, and other adverse consequences whielneanunable to fully anticipate or control.

Our plans depend significantly on initiats designed to increase sales and improve theieffties, costs and effectiveness of our
operations, and failure to achieve or sustain thgdans could affect our performance adversely.

We have initiatives (such as those relatingarketing, merchandising, promotions, sourcfhgink, private brand, store operations and
real estate) in various stages of testing, evalnatnd implementation, upon which we expect tp telcontinue to improve our results of
operations and financial condition and to achiewefmancial plans. These initiatives are inhengndky and uncertain, even when tested
successfully, in their application to our busingsgeneral. It is possible
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that successful testing can result partially fr@sources and attention that cannot be duplicatbtbimder implementation, particularly in li¢
of the diverse geographic locations of our storabsthae fact that our field management is so deabnéd. General implementation also may
be negatively affected by other risk factors ddsatiherein. Successful systemwide implementatiliesren consistency of training, stability
of workforce, ease of execution, and the absencoéfedtting factors that can influence results agely. Failure to achieve successful
implementation of our initiatives or the cost ofsle initiatives exceeding management's estimatéd edversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.

In addition, the success of our merchandisiitiatives, particularly those with respectimn-consumable merchandise, depends in part
upon our ability to predict consistently and susfgly the products our customers will demand anaiéntify and timely respond to evolving
trends in demographics and consumer preferencpsctations and needs. If we are unable to seledupts that are attractive to customers,
to obtain such products at costs that allow uglictlsem at a profit, or to effectively market symtoducts, our sales, market share and
profitability could be adversely affected. If ouerchandising efforts in the non-consumables areaiasuccessful, we could be further
adversely affected by our inability to offset tlog/er margins associated with our consumables bssine

We face intense competition that could iirour growth opportunities and adversely impactrdiinancial performance.

The retail business is highly competitMée operate in the basic discount consumer goodkaharhich is competitive with respect to
price, store location, merchandise quality, assentnand presentation, in-stock consistency, antboes service. This competitive
environment subjects us to the risk of adverse anfaour financial performance because of the tguviezes, and thus the lower margins,
required to maintain our competitive position. Alsompanies like ours operating in the basic disteonsumer goods market (due to
customer demographics and other factors) may hanieed ability to increase prices in response twéased costs without losing competitive
position. This limitation may adversely affect enargins and financial performance. We compete distamers, employees, store sites,
products and services and in other important asg#aiur business with many other local, regiomal aational retailers. We compete with
retailers operating discount, mass merchandisétoutarehouse club, grocery, drug, convenienceetygand other specialty stores. Certain
of our competitors have greater financial, disttitn, marketing and other resources than we donsayglbe able to secure better arrangenr
with suppliers than we can. These other competdonspete in a variety of other ways, including @&ggive promotional activities,
merchandise selection and availability, servicdsretl to customers, location, store hours, in-séonenities and price. If we fail to respond
effectively to competitive pressures and changébkarnretail markets, it could adversely affect fimancial performance.

Competition for customers has intensifieddcent years as larger competitors have movedantincreased their presence in, our
geographic markets. In addition, some of our ldrge competitors are or may be developing smallfooxats which may produce more
competition. We remain vulnerable to the markepower and high level of consumer recognition okthkarger competitors and to the risk
that these competitors or others could venturedntoindustry in a significant way. Generally, weect an increase in competition.

Our private brands may not achieve or miim broad market acceptance and increase the rigkesface.

We have substantially increased the nurobeur private brand items, and the program izalde part of our future growth plans. We
believe that our success in gaining and maintaibiogd market acceptance of our private brandsraipen many factors, including pricing,
our costs, quality and customer perception. We nmyachieve or maintain our expected sales fopouate brands.
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As a result, our business, financial condition eeglilts of operations could be materially and asblgraffected.

A significant disruption to our distributin network or to the timely receipt of inventoryud adversely impact sales or increase our
transportation costs, which would decrease our prsf

We rely on our distribution and transpadiatnetwork to provide goods to our stores in atyrand cost-effective manner through
deliveries to our distribution centers from vendansl then from the distribution centers or dirdip syendors to our stores by various means
of transportation, including shipments by sea andkt Any disruption, unanticipated expense or apenal failure related to this process
could affect store operations negatively. For eXammexpected delivery delays or increases irsprartation costs (including through
increased fuel costs or a decrease in transpartesipacity for overseas shipments) could signitigasecrease our ability to make sales and
earn profits. In addition, labor shortages or wstidppages in the transportation industry or lomgitdisruptions to the national and
international transportation infrastructure thatdeo delays or interruptions of deliveries couddjatively affect our business.

We maintain a network of distribution féé#ls and have plans to build new facilities toso our growth objectives. Delays in opening
distribution centers could adversely affect ouufatoperations by slowing store growth, which nrajurn reduce revenue growth. In
addition, distribution-related construction or empi@n projects entail risks which could cause dekayd cost overruns, such as: shortages of
materials; shortages of skilled labor or work stpgs; unforeseen construction, scheduling, endgimgesnvironmental or geological
problems; weather interference; fires or other aliglosses; and unanticipated cost increasescdhmpletion date and ultimate cost of future
projects could differ significantly from initial @ectations due to construction-related or othesars. We cannot guarantee that any project
will be completed on time or within established gets.

Rising fuel costs could materially advelysaffect our business.

Fuel prices have risen considerably andsgmficantly influenced by international, politicand economic circumstances. These
increases pose a challenge to our continued priofitmproving our gross profit rate. If such inased prices remain in effect, or if further
price increases were to arise for any reason, divedufuel supply shortages or unusual price vatgtithe resulting higher fuel prices could
materially increase our transportation costs, axblgraffecting our gross profit and results of gpiens. In addition, competitive pressures in
our industry may have the effect of inhibiting @lnility to reflect these increased costs in thegwiof our products. We will be diligent in our
efforts to keep product costs as low as possibtberface of these increases while still workingpdimize gross profit and meet the needs of
our customers.

Risks associated with or faced by the dstiteand foreign suppliers from whom our productseasourced could adversely affect our
financial performance.

The products we sell are sourced from a&witiety of domestic and international suppliéndact, our largest supplier accounted for
8% of our purchases in 2011, and our next largggtlger accounted for approximately 7% of such pases. We have not experienced any
difficulty in obtaining sufficient quantities of c® merchandise and believe that, if one or momuofcurrent sources of supply became
unavailable, we would generally be able to obtéteraative sources without experiencing a substhdtsruption of our business. However,
such alternative sources could increase our medibaicosts and reduce the quality of our merchandisd an inability to obtain alternative
sources could adversely affect our sales.

We directly imported approximately 8% of murchases (measured at cost) in 2011, but maonyrolomestic vendors directly import
their products or components of their products.r@ea to the
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prices and flow of these goods for any reason, ssgbolitical and economic instability in the caieg in which foreign suppliers are located,
the financial instability of suppliers, suppliefalure to meet our standards, issues with labactizes of our suppliers or labor problems they
may experience (such as strikes), the availakility cost of raw materials to suppliers, merchanglisdity or safety issues, currency
exchange rates, transport availability and cofigtion, and other factors relating to the suppliand the countries in which they are locate
from which they import, are beyond our control @edld adversely affect our operations and profitgbiBecause a substantial amount of
imported merchandise comes from China, a changeiChinese currency or other policies could ngghtimpact our merchandise costs
addition, the United States' foreign trade polictasffs and other impositions on imported goddsde sanctions imposed on certain coun
the limitation on the importation of certain typsEfgyoods or of goods containing certain materisdef other countries and other factors
relating to foreign trade are beyond our contrasriptions due to labor stoppages, strikes or stawts, or other disruptions involving our
vendors or the transportation and handling indestaiso may negatively affect our ability to reeeinerchandise and thus may negatively
affect sales. These and other factors affectingsappliers and our access to products could adyeaffect our financial performance. As we
increase our imports of merchandise from foreigmdees, the risks associated with foreign importé iwtrease.

Product liability and food safety claimguald adversely affect our business, reputation dimthncial performance.

Despite our best efforts to ensure theityuahd safety of the products we sell, we mayuddgect to product liability claims from
customers or penalties from government agenciasimglto products, including food products thatr@ealled, defective or otherwise alleged
to be harmful. Such claims may result from tampeby unauthorized third parties, product contanémedr spoilage, including the presence
of foreign objects, substances, chemicals, othentsgor residues introduced during the growingraste, handling and transportation phases.
All of our vendors and their products must complyhvapplicable product and food safety laws. Weegally seek contractual
indemnification and insurance coverage from oupsaps. However, if we do not have adequate contedéndemnification and/or insurance
available, such claims could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition agglitts of operations. Our ability to obtain
indemnification from foreign suppliers may be hiretbby the manufacturers' lack of understanding.&f. product liability or other laws,
which may make it more likely that we be requireddspond to claims or complaints from customeii§ws were the manufacturer of the
products. Even with adequate insurance and indératidn, such claims could significantly damage m@putation and consumer confidence
in our products. Our litigation expenses could éase as well, which also could have a materialfjatiee impact on our results of operations
even if a product liability claim is unsuccessfuli®not fully pursued.

We are subject to governmental regulatippsocedures and requirements. A significant chanige or noncompliance with, these
regulations could have a material adverse effectaur financial performance.

Our business is subject to numerous fedstatie and local laws and regulations. We routimedur costs in complying with these
regulations. New laws or regulations, particuldahgse dealing with healthcare reform, product gagatd labor and employment, among
others, or changes in existing laws and regulatipadicularly those governing the sale of produetay result in significant added expenses
or may require extensive system and operating crsatigat may be difficult to implement and/or conndterially increase our cost of doing
business. In addition, such changes or new lawsretyire the write off and disposal of existingguwot inventory, resulting in significant
adverse financial impact to us. Untimely complianc@oncompliance with applicable regulations atiraely or incomplete execution of a
required product recall can result in the impositid penalties, including loss of licenses or digant fines or monetary penalties, in addition
to reputational damage.
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Litigation may adversely affect our busig financial condition and results of operation

Our business is subject to the risk oféition by employees, consumers, suppliers, conopgtishareholders, government agencies and
others through private actions, class actions, adtnative proceedings, regulatory actions or otiigation. The number of employment-
related class actions filed each year has contitméttrease, and recent changes and proposedehangederal and state laws may cause
claims to rise even more. The outcome of litigatiparticularly class action lawsuits, regulatoryi@ts and intellectual property claims, is
difficult to assess or quantify. Plaintiffs in tleetypes of lawsuits may seek recovery of very lang@determinate amounts, and the magni
of the potential loss relating to these lawsuity meanain unknown for substantial periods of timeadldition, certain of these lawsuits, if
decided adversely to us or settled by us, may trasliaibility material to our financial statemer#ts a whole or may negatively affect our
operating results if changes to our business dpesaare required. The cost to defend future litcgamay be significant. There also may be
adverse publicity associated with litigation thatld negatively affect customer perception of ousibess, regardless of whether the
allegations are valid or whether we are ultimafelynd liable. As a result, litigation may adversaffect our business, financial condition and
results of operations. See Note 9 to the conselifihancial statements for further details regagdiertain of these pending matters.

If we cannot open new stores profitablydaon schedule, our planned future growth will be raded, which would adversely affect
sales.

Our ability to open profitable new storesikey component of our planned future growth. &hility to timely open such stores and to
expand into additional market areas depends inquatthe following factors: the availability of atttive store locations; the absence of
occupancy delays; the ability to negotiate accdpti@ase and development terms; the ability to &ivé train new personnel, especially store
managers, in a cost effective manner; the abibtgéntify customer demand in different geogragieas; general economic conditions; and
the availability of sufficient funds for expansidiany of these factors affect our ability to sustelly relocate stores as well, and many of
them are beyond our control. In addition, tightarding practices may make financing more challejépn our real estate developers which
could potentially impact the timing of our storeemfngs and build-to-suit program.

Delays or failures in opening new storeésaahieving lower than expected sales in new staredrawing a greater than expected
proportion of sales in new stores away from exiggtitores, could materially adversely affect oumglhoand/or profitability. In addition, we
may not anticipate all of the challenges imposethieyexpansion of our operations and, as a resalf,not meet our targets for opening new
stores, remodeling or relocating stores or expangofitably.

Some of our new stores may be locatedeasawhere we have little or no meaningful expegesrdcbrand recognition. Those markets
may have different competitive conditions, markatditions, consumer tastes and discretionary spgruitterns than our existing markets,
which may cause our new stores to be less suctdisafustores in our existing markets. In additiour, alternative format stores, such as our
Dollar General Market concept, have significantighter capital costs than our traditional Dollar el stores, and, as a result, may increase
our financial risk if they do not perform as expsztt

Many of our new stores will be located iras where we have existing units. Although we leyerience in these markets, increasing
the number of locations in these markets may résuttadvertent over-saturation of markets and teraply or permanently divert customers
and sales from our existing stores, thereby adiyeadtecting our overall financial performance.
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Natural disasters (whether or not causeddimate change), unusual weather conditions, pa@mic outbreaks, terrorist acts, ar
global political events could cause permanent omgorary distribution center or store closures, impaur ability to purchase, receive ¢
replenish inventory, or decrease customer traffad] of which could result in lost sales and othersé adversely affect our financial
performance.

The occurrence of one or more natural t#sassuch as hurricanes, fires, floods, and eastkes (whether or not caused by climate
change), solar flares, unusual weather conditipasdemic outbreaks, terrorist acts or disruptiabal political events, such as civil unrest in
countries in which our suppliers are located, oilsir disruptions could adversely affect our opiera and financial performance. To the
extent these events result in the closure of omaare of our distribution centers, a significantroer of stores, or our corporate headquarters
or impact one or more of our key suppliers, ourrapiens and financial performance could be matgredversely affected through an
inability to make deliveries or provide other suggdanctions to our stores and through lost sdtesddition, these events could result in
increases in fuel (or other energy) prices or &dhertage, delays in opening new stores, the teanpdack of an adequate work force in a
market, the temporary or long-term disruption ie $upply of products from some domestic and ovsrseppliers, the temporary disruption
in the transport of goods from overseas, delahéndelivery of goods to our distribution centerstmres, the temporary reduction in the
availability of products in our stores and disroptodf our utility services or to our informationstgms. These events also can have indirect
consequences such as increases in the costs ddniasuf they result in significant loss of progyest other insurable damage.

Material damage or interruptions to our fiarmation systems as a result of external factosgffing shortages and unanticipated
challenges or difficulties in updating our existintechnology or developing or implementing new tectogy could have a material adverse
effect on our business or results of operations.

We depend on a variety of information tembgy systems for the efficient functioning of dwrsiness. Such systems are subject to
damage or interruption from power outages, companertelecommunications failures, computer virusesurity breaches and natural
disasters. Damage or interruption to these sysieaysrequire a significant investment to fix or i@ them, and we may suffer interruptions
in our operations in the interim. Any material imtgotions may have a material adverse effect orbasmess or results of operations.

We also rely heavily on our informationhieology staff. Failure to meet these staffing needy negatively affect our ability to fulfill
our technology initiatives while continuing to pide maintenance on existing systems. We rely otaicevendors to maintain and
periodically upgrade many of these systems sotliegtcan continue to support our business. Thevaodt programs supporting many of our
systems were licensed to us by independent softikarelopers. The inability of these developerssroucontinue to maintain and upgrade
these information systems and software programddadiarupt or reduce the efficiency of our operatiaf we were unable to convert to
alternate systems in an efficient and timely manimeaddition, costs and potential problems andrimiptions associated with the
implementation of new or upgraded systems and tdogg or with maintenance or adequate support @tiex systems could also disrupt or
reduce the efficiency of our operations.

Failure to attract and retain qualified eptoyees, particularly field, store and distributioccenter managers, and to control labor costs,
as well as other labor issues, could adversely etffeur financial performance.

Our future growth and performance depemdsuwr ability to attract, retain and motivate gfiati employees, many of whom are in
positions with historically high rates of turnowrch as field managers and distribution center gensaOur ability to meet our labor needs,
while controlling our labor costs, is subject torpaxternal factors, including competition for amghilability of qualified personnel in a giv
market, unemployment levels within those marketsygiling wage rates,
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minimum wage laws, health and other insurance caats changes in employment and labor laws (inolydhanges in the process for our
employees to join a union) or other workplace ratiah (including changes in entitlement progranshsas health insurance and paid leave
programs). To the extent a significant portion of employee base unionizes, or attempts to unipoizelabor costs could increase. In
addition, we are evaluating the potential futur@att of recently enacted comprehensive healthedoen legislation, which will likely cause
our healthcare costs to increase. While the sicanifi costs of the healthcare reform legislatioh @dtur after 2013, if at all, due to provisions
of the legislation being phased in over time, clesni our healthcare costs structure could haigndisant negative effect on our business.
Our ability to pass along labor costs to our cugtenis constrained by our low price model.

Our profitability may be negatively affext by inventory shrinkage.

We are subject to the risk of inventoryslasid theft. We experience significant inventomirddage, and we cannot assure you that
incidences of inventory loss and theft will decee@sthe future or that the measures we are takiligffectively reduce the problem of
inventory shrinkage. Although some level of invegtshrinkage is an unavoidable cost of doing bissinég we were to experience higher
rates of inventory shrinkage or incur increasedisccosts to combat inventory theft, our finah@andition could be affected adversely.

Our cash flows from operations may be négely affected if we are not successful in managiour inventory balances.

Our inventory balance represented approtalyp@9% of our total assets exclusive of goodeiltl other intangible assets as of
February 3, 2012. Efficient inventory managemerat key component of our business success andaiibitig. To be successful, we must
maintain sufficient inventory levels to meet oustmmers' demands without allowing those levelsitodase to such an extent that the costs tc
store and hold the goods unduly impacts our fireneisults. If our buying decisions do not accuyapeedict customer trends or purchasing
actions, we may have to take unanticipated markddeidispose of the excess inventory, which alsoachversely impact our financial
results. We continue to focus on ways to reducsethisks, but we cannot assure you that we wilumeessful in our inventory management.
If we are not successful in managing our inventmlances, our cash flows from operations may bathedy affected.

Because our business is seasonal to aaierxtent, with the highest volume of net salesidg the fourth quarter, adverse events
during the fourth quarter could materially affectur financial statements as a whole.

We generally recognize our highest volurheet sales during the Christmas selling seasoighwiccurs in the fourth quarter of our
fiscal year. In anticipation of this holiday, werphase substantial amounts of seasonal inventahhi@e many temporary employees. An
excess of seasonal merchandise inventory couldt iesur net sales during the Christmas sellingss were to fall below either seasonal
norms or expectations. If our fourth quarter sadssilts were substantially below expectations fimancial performance and operating results
could be adversely affected by unanticipated maskdp especially in seasonal merchandise. Lower dinéinipated sales in the Christmas
selling season would also negatively affect oulityglib absorb the increased seasonal labor costs.

Our current insurance program may exposg o unexpected costs and negatively affect ouafinial performance.

Our insurance coverage reflects deductilslel§-insured retentions, limits of liability asdnilar provisions that we believe are prudent
based on the dispersion of our operations. Howehere are types of losses we may incur but againigth we cannot be insured or which
believe are not
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economically reasonable to insure, such as loasesaodacts of war, employee and certain other ceintesome natural disasters. If we incur
these losses and they are material, our businedd soffer. Certain material events may resultizalsle losses for the insurance industry and
adversely impact the availability of adequate iasge coverage or result in excessive premium iseged o offset negative insurance market
trends, we may elect to self-insure, accept higleeluctibles or reduce the amount of coverage porese to these market changes. In
addition, we self-insure a significant portion apected losses under our workers' compensationanldile liability, general liability and
group health insurance programs. Unanticipatedgdsim any applicable actuarial assumptions anchgemnent estimates underlying our
recorded liabilities for these losses, includingeoted increases in medical and indemnity costddaesult in materially different expenses
than expected under these programs, which could aawaterial adverse effect on our financial céodiand results of operations. In
addition, we are evaluating the potential futur@dtt of recently enacted comprehensive healthedoen legislation, which may cause our
healthcare costs to increase. Although we contiouraintain property insurance for catastrophicgwvat our store support center and
distribution centers, we are effectively self-irstlifor other property losses. If we experienceeatgr number of these losses than we
anticipate, our financial performance could be asikly affected.

If we fail to protect our brand name, comitors may adopt tradenames that dilute the vabfeour brand name.

We may be unable or unwilling to strictlyferce our trademarks in each jurisdiction in whiet do business. Also, we may not always
be able to successfully enforce our trademarksnagaompetitors, or against challenges by otheus f@lure to successfully protect our
trademarks could diminish the value and efficacpwf brand recognition, and could cause customefus@mn, which could, in turn, advers
affect our sales and profitability.

Our success depends on our executive efé@and other key personnel. If we lose key perselror are unable to hire additional
qualified personnel, our business may be harmed.

Our future success depends to a signifidagtee on the skills, experience and efforts ofexecutive officers and other key personnel.
The loss of the services of any of our executifieers, particularly Richard W. Dreiling, our Chiekecutive Officer, could have a material
adverse effect on our operations. Our future sicedlbalso depend on our ability to attract anthire qualified personnel and a failure to
attract and retain new qualified personnel couleren adverse effect on our operations. We douroectly maintain key person life
insurance policies with respect to our executiviecers or key personnel.

We face risks related to protection of tuwers' credit and debit card data and private dagdating to us or our customers or
employees.

In connection with credit card sales, vemsmit confidential credit and debit card inforroatiWe also have access to, collect or mai
private or confidential information regarding owstomers and employees, as well as our businesbawseprocedures and technology in
place to safeguard our customers' debit and ctadit information, our employees' private data, @mdconfidential business information.
However, third parties may have the technologyrmvkhow to breach the security of this information, ad security measures and thos
our technology vendors may not effectively prohditiers from obtaining improper access to thisrimfion. A security breach of any kind
could expose us to risks of data loss, litigatgoyernment enforcement actions and costly respaessures, and could seriously disrupt our
operations. Any resulting negative publicity cosignificantly harm our reputation which could causeto lose market share and have an
adverse effect on our financial results.
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While we have reduced our debt levels 8i2007, we continue to have substantial debt théitmeed to be repaid or refinanced at «
prior to applicable maturity dates which could adgely affect our ability to raise additional capitéo fund our operations and limit ou
ability to pursue our growth strategy or other opganities or to react to changes in the economyaur industry.

At February 3, 2012, we had total outstagdiebt (including the current portion of long-teobligations) of $2.618 billion, including a
$1.964 billion senior secured term loan facilityigthmatures on July 6, 2014, $450.7 million aggtegmincipal amount of 11.875% /
12.625% senior subordinated toggle notes due 20 borrowings of $184.7 million under our senieciwged asset-based revolving credit
facility. We also had an additional $807.9 milliawailable for borrowing under the revolving creditility, which was scheduled to mature
July 6, 2013, but was amended on March 15, 201i&ctease the maximum borrowing to $1.2 billion &xtend the maturity date to July 6,
2014. This level of debt and our ability to repayefinance this debt prior to maturity could hawgortant negative consequences to our
business, including:

. increasing our vulnerability to general economid ardustry conditions because our debt paymengatitins may limit our
ability to use our cash to respond to or defendnagghanges in the industry or the economy;

. requiring a substantial portion of our cash floanfr operations to be dedicated to the payment atjpal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability toausecash flow to fund our operations, capital expgires and future business
opportunities or pay dividends;

. limiting our ability to pursue our growth strategy;

. placing us at a disadvantage compared to our cdtmEetvho are less highly leveraged and may besbatile to use their cash
flow to fund competitive responses to changing stdy market or economic conditions;

. limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfigr working capital, capital expenditures, debigge requirements,
acquisitions and general corporate or other pusyas®d

. increasing the difficulty of our ability to makeyraents on our outstanding debt.
Our variable rate debt exposes us to ietrrate risk which could adversely affect our cafibw.

The borrowings under the term loan faciéityd the senior secured asset-based revolvingt ¢aeility comprise our credit facilities and
bear interest at variable rates. Other debt werialso could be variable rate debt. If market i$érates increase, variable rate debt will
create higher debt service requirements, whichccadlersely affect our cash flow. While we haveessd and may in the future enter into
agreements limiting our exposure to higher interatgts, any such agreements may not offer comptetection from this risk.

Our debt agreements contain restrictiohgt could limit our flexibility in operating our bsiness.

Our credit facilities and the indenturesgming our notes contain various covenants thaldckimit our ability to engage in specified
types of transactions. These covenants limit odraur restricted subsidiaries' ability to, amonigeotthings:

. incur additional indebtedness, issue disqualiftedlsor issue certain preferred stock;

. pay dividends and make certain distributions, itmesits and other restricted payments;
. create certain liens or encumbrances;

. sell assets;

. enter into transactions with our affiliates;
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. allow payments to us by our restricted subsidia
. merge, consolidate, sell or otherwise disposelafradubstantially all of our assets; and

. designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted subgdia

A breach of any of these covenants coudditén a default under the agreement governingp sudebtedness. Upon our failure to
maintain compliance with these covenants, the lenceuld elect to declare all amounts outstandiegeunder to be immediately due and
payable and terminate all commitments to extenthéurcredit thereunder. If the lenders under sndeltedness accelerate the repayment of
borrowings, we cannot assure you that we will hewficient assets to repay those borrowings, abagebur other indebtedness, including
outstanding notes. We have pledged a significaritquoof our assets as collateral under our crieditities. If we were unable to repay those
amounts, the lenders under our credit facilitiasld@d@roceed against the collateral granted to tteesecure that indebtedness. Additional
borrowings under the senior secured asset-basetvimy credit facility will, if excess availabilitynder that facility is less than a certain
amount, be subject to the satisfaction of a spetifinancial ratio. Accordingly, our ability to a&ss the full availability under our senior
secured asset-based revolving credit facility magdnstrained. Our ability to meet this financétlio can be affected by events beyond our
control, and we cannot assure you that we will nigistratio, if applicable, and other covenants.

New accounting guidance or changes in ih&erpretation or application of existing accountgguidance could adversely affect our
financial performance.

The implementation of proposed new accogngtandards may require extensive systems, interoeess and other changes that could
increase our operating costs, and may also resalianges to our financial statements. In partictite implementation of expected future
accounting standards related to leases, as cyrtagitig contemplated by the convergence projeetdrst the Financial Accounting Stande
Board ("FASB") and the International Accounting8tards Board ("IASB"), as well as the possible didopof international financial
reporting standards by U.S. registrants, couldireqs to make significant changes to our leaseag@ment, fixed asset, and other accoui
systems, and in all likelihood would result in chas to our financial statements.

U.S. generally accepted accounting prirsiEind related accounting pronouncements, impletientguidelines and interpretations w
regard to a wide range of matters that are releteaotir business involve many subjective assumptiestimates and judgments by our
management. Changes in these rules or their irtaton or changes in underlying assumptions, esésor judgments by our management
could significantly change our reported or expedirancial performance. The outcome of such chawegesd include litigation or regulatory
actions which could have an adverse effect onioantial condition and results of operations.

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. ("KKR;certain affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co. (thé&5S Investors"), and other equity co-
investors (collectively, the "Investors") have siditant influence over us, including in connectiowith decisions that require the approval
of shareholders, which could limit your ability tmfluence the outcome of key transactions, includim change of control.

Through their investment in Buck Holdings?., the Investors hold a significant interesbur outstanding common stock. As a result,
the Investors potentially have the ability to irdiice the outcome of matters that require a voteioshareholders, including election of our
Board of Directors and other corporate transacticegardless of whether others believe that thestietion is in our best interests. In addit
pursuant to a shareholders' agreement that weeeniteio with Buck Holdings, L.P., KKR and the GS#éstors, KKR has a consent right over
certain significant corporate actions and KKR amel&S Investors have certain rights to appointtirs to our Board and its committees for
so long as Buck Holdings, L.P. continues to hofghecified amount of our common stock.
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The Investors are also in the businessaking investments in companies and may from tim@ne acquire and hold interests in
businesses that compete directly or indirectly wih The Investors may also pursue acquisition ppities that are complementary to our
business, and, as a result, those acquisition tpptes may not be available to us. So long adriliestors, or other funds controlled by or
associated with the Investors, continue to indiyemivn a significant amount of our outstanding coomstock, the Investors will continue to
be able to strongly influence or effectively cohwar decisions. The concentration of ownership tnaye the effect of delaying, preventing
or deterring a change of control of our companyldaeprive shareholders of an opportunity to nee@ premium for their common stock as
part of a sale of our company and might ultimatdfgct the market price of our common stock.

If we, the Investors or other significashareholders sell a large number of shares of ownemon stock, the market price of our
common stock could decline.

The market price of our common stock calédline as a result of sales of a large numbehafes of common stock in the market or the
perception that such sales could occur. These, saléise possibility that these sales may occsig alight make it more difficult for us to
issue equity securities in the future at a time aina price that we deem appropriate. As of FepraaR012, we had approximately
338.1 million shares of common stock outstandifigylich approximately 46% were freely tradable be New York Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to shareholders agreements, wedranted the Investors the right to cause usgritain instances, at our expense, to file
registration statements under the Securities A&98f3, as amended, covering resales of our comiock keld by them or to piggyback on a
registration statement in certain circumstancestaemembers of management hold similar piggylbradistration rights. As of February 3,
2012, these shares collectively represented appeirly 54% of our outstanding common stock. Toetktent that such registration rights are
exercised, the resulting sale of a substantial mrrabshares of our common stock into the markatdtcoause the market price of our
common stock to decline. These shares also magligarsuant to Rule 144 under the Securities édepending on their holding period and
subject to restrictions in the case of shares bglgersons deemed to be our affiliates.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of March 2, 2012, we operated 9,961ilrstares located in 39 states as follows:

State

Number of Stores

State

Number of Stores

Alabama 54C Nebraske 80
Arizona 65 Nevads 7
Arkansas 287 New Hampshire 1
California 5 New Jerse 59
Colorado 28 New Mexico 56
Connecticu 2 New York 25¢
Delaware 30 North Caroling 55¢
Florida 55  Ohio 527
Georgia 56¢ Oklahoma 312
lllinois 371 Pennsylvanii 432
Indiana 37€ South Caroling 40C
lowa 175 South Dakotz 11
Kansas 181 Tennesse 52t
Kentucky 381 Texas 1,10¢
Louisiana 40¢ Utah 8
Maryland 76 Vermont 15
Michigan 28¢ Virginia 28C
Minnesota 16 West Virginia 16€
Mississippi 33€ Wisconsin 99
Missouri 364

Most of our stores are located in leasedniges. Individual store leases vary as to thaingerental provisions and expiration dates.
Many stores are subject to build-to-suit arrangemeiith landlords, which typically carry a primdease term of 10-15 years with multiple
renewal options. We also have stores subject tdeshierm leases and many of these leases haveakoptions. In recent years, an
increasing percentage of our new stores have hégecs to build-to-suit arrangements, including @pgmately 79% of our new stores in
2011.

As of March 2, 2012, we operated nine fistion centers, as described in the following ¢abl

Year Approximate Square Approximate Number

Location Opened Footage of Stores Served

Scottsville, KY 195¢ 720,00( 94¢
Ardmore, OK 199 1,310,001 1,42
South Boston, V£ 1997 1,250,00! 94z
Indianola, MS 199¢ 820,00( 881
Fulton, MO 199¢ 1,150,00! 1,381
Alachua, FL 200c 980,00( 94¢
Zanesville, Ok 2001 1,170,001 1,28¢
Jonesville, SC 200¢ 1,120,001 1,09¢
Marion, IN 200¢ 1,110,00! 1,052

In addition, we have a distribution ceriteat we recently constructed in Bessemer, Alabahapproximately 940,000 square feet that
became fully operational on March 11, 2012, andddaspace for a distribution center in Lebec, Galifi of approximately 440,000 square
feet that is expected to be operational in April20We lease the distribution centers located itakikma, Mississippi and Missouri and own
the other six distribution centers in the tablexab@®pproximately 7.25 acres of the land on whiah léentucky distribution center is located
is subject to a ground lease. As of
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February 3, 2012, we leased approximately 530,00@re feet of additional temporary warehouse spasapport our distribution needs.
Our executive offices are located in appr@tely 302,000 square feet of buildings which wanan Goodlettsville, Tennessee.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 9 to tomsolidated financial statements under the heddiegal proceedings" contained in Part Il,
Item 8 of this report is incorporated herein bystréference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding our current executificers as of March 22, 2012 is set forth bel&ach of our executive officers serves at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and is eleca@dually by the Board to serve until a successduly elected. There are no familial
relationships between any of our directors or etieewfficers.

Name Age Position
Richard W.

Dreiling 58 Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
David M. Tehle 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Kathleen R.

Guion 60 Executive Vice President, Strategic Planning andl Bstate
Gregory A.

Sparks 51 Executive Vice President, Store Operati
Todd Vasos 50 Executive Vice President, Division President anée€Rerchandising Office
John W.

Flanigan 60 Executive Vice President, Global Supply Ch
Susan S.

Lanigan 49 Executive Vice President and General Cou
Robert D.

Ravenel 53 Executive Vice President and Chief People Off

Anita C. Elliott 47 Senior Vice President and Control

Mr. Dreiling joined Dollar General in January 2008 as Chief ltige Officer and a member of our Board. He wasoamed Chairman
of the Board on December 2, 2008. Prior to joiriralar General, Mr. Dreiling served as Chief ExéeaitOfficer, President and a director of
Duane Reade Holdings, Inc. and Duane Reade Irclathest drugstore chain in New York City, fromvidmber 2005 until January 2008 ¢
as Chairman of the Board of Duane Reade from Maégy until January 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Drailifbeginning in March 2005, served
as Executive Vice President—Chief Operating Offioekongs Drug Stores Corporation, an operator dii@n of retail drug stores on the
West Coast and Hawaii, after having joined Longduly 2003 as Executive Vice President and Chiedr@jpons Officer. From 2000 to 2003,
Mr. Dreiling served as Executive Vice President—Rkéging, Manufacturing and Distribution at Safewhng., a food and drug retailer. Prior
to that, Mr. Dreiling served from 1998 to 2000 asdftdent of Vons, a Southern California food anghdtivision of Safeway. He currently
serves as the Vice Chairman of the Retail Industgders Association (RILA). In 2010, he was naniedtailer of the Year" by Mass Market
Retailer. Mr. Dreiling is a director of Lowe's Coarpes, Inc.

Mr. Tehle joined Dollar General in June 2004 as Executivee\Reesident and Chief Financial Officer. He serfveth 1997 to June
2004 as Executive Vice President and Chief Finai@fficer of Haggar Corporation, a manufacturingarketing and retail corporation. From
1996 to 1997, he was Vice President of Finance ftivision of The Stanley Works, one of the worldigiest manufacturers of tools, and
from 1993 to 1996, he was Vice President and Gfiredincial Officer of Hat Brands, Inc.,
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a hat manufacturer. Earlier in his career, Mr. €eddrved in a variety of financial-related roleRgtler System, Inc. and Texas Instruments.
Mr. Tehle is a director of Jack in the Box, Inc.

Ms. Guionjoined Dollar General in October 2003 as Executliee President, Store Operations. She was namecuiixe Vice
President, Store Operations and Store Developmdrelruary 2005, and was promoted to Executive President, Division President, St
Operations and Store Development in November 2085 Guion assumed the role of Executive Vice Pedidf Strategic Planning and R
Estate in January 2012 after announcing her plareteément effective July 31, 2012. From 2000 lyotning Dollar General, Ms. Guion
served as President and Chief Executive Officddue and Long Distributing Company, a convenienoeeschain operator and wholesale
distributor of petroleum products. Prior to thatéi, she served as an operating partner for Devdnd?a (1999-2000), where she developed
operating plans and assisted in the identificatibacquisition targets in the convenience stor@stiy, and as President and Chief Operating
Officer of E-Z Serve Corporation (1997-1998), amewoperator of convenience stores, mini-martsgasdmarts. From 1987 to 1997,

Ms. Guion served as the Vice President and GeManabhger of the largest division (Chesapeake Dinjsad company-owned stores at 7-
Eleven, Inc., a convenience store chain. Othettipasi held by Ms. Guion during her tenure at 7-Efeinclude District Manager, Zone
Manager, Operations Manager, and Division Manalgkdest Division).

Mr. Sparksjoined Dollar General in March 2012 as Executiveé/President of Store Operations. Prior to joidudjar General,
Mr. Sparks served as Division President, Seattlésioin, for Safeway Inc., a food and drug retaigerple he had held since 2001. As Divis
President of the Seattle Division, Mr. Sparks wesponsible for the supervision of approximately &@les and approximately 23,000
employees in the northwest region and oversawesate, finance and operations of the Seattle DividMr. Sparks has 36 years of retail
experience including a 34-year career with Safewiagre he held roles of increasing responsibiligiiding merchandising manager (1987),
category manager (1987-1990), divisional direcfanerchandising, grocery and general merchandi8®0:1997) and divisional vice
president of marketing (1997-2001).

Mr. Vasosjoined Dollar General in December 2008 as ExecWiiiee President, Division President and Chief Maratising Officer.
Prior to joining Dollar General, Mr. Vasos servadekecutive positions with Longs Drug Stores Coagion for 7 years, including Executive
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer (Febyuz008 through November 2008) and Senior Vice Bezgiand Chief Merchandising
Officer (2001-2008), where he was responsible lgqplaarmacy and front-end marketing, merchandisprgcurement, supply chain,
advertising, store development, store layout amgellocation, and the operation of three distigimucenters. He also previously served in
leadership positions at Phar-Mor Food and Drug d&ncl Eckerd Drug Corp.

Mr. Flanigan joined Dollar General as Senior Vice Presidentb@l&upply Chain, in May 2008. He was promotedxedttive Vice
President in March 2010. He has 25 years of manageexperience in retail logistics. Prior to joigiBollar General, he was group vice
president of logistics and distribution for LongeuB Stores Corporation from October 2005 to Apdi02. In this role, he was responsible for
overseeing warehousing, inbound and outbound toategon and facility maintenance to service ov@0 Betail outlets. From September
2001 to October 2005 he served as the Vice Prasidémgistics for Safeway Inc. where he oversastrithution of food products from
Safeway distribution centers to all retail outlétdound traffic and transportation. He also hegtribution and logistics leadership positions
at Vons—a Safeway company, Specialized Distribuktamagement Inc., and Crum & Crum Logistics.

Ms. Laniganjoined Dollar General in July 2002 as Vice Prestd&eneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary. She@mwasoted to
Senior Vice President in October 2003 and to Exeeltice President in March 2005. Prior to joiniDgllar General, Ms. Lanigan served as
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segratatale Corporation, a specialty retailer of fiaevelry. During her six years
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with Zale, Ms. Lanigan held various positions, urdihg Associate General Counsel. Prior to that lehé legal positions with both Turner
Broadcasting System, Inc. and the law firm of Tnoam Sanders LLP.

Mr. Ravenerjoined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@hif People Officer in August 2008. He was prorddte Executive
Vice President in March 2010. Prior to joining RolGeneral, he served in human resources exegole® with Starbucks Coffee Company
from September 2005 until August 2008 as the Seaime President of U.S. Partner Resources and, fwithat, as the Vice President, Par
Resources—Eastern Division. As the Senior ViceiBlees$ of U.S. Partner Resources at Starbucks, veRer oversaw all aspects of human
resources activity for more than 10,000 storesrRai serving at Starbucks, Mr. Ravener held Vimesklent of Human Resources roles for
The Home Depot's Store Support Center and a dorrfesdtd division from April 2003 to September 2008:. Ravener also served in
executive roles in both human resources and opesatit Footstar, Inc. and roles of increasing leside at PepsiCo.

Ms. Elliott joined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@odtroller in August 2005. Prior to joining Doll&eneral, she served as
Vice President and Controller of Big Lots, Incglaseout retailer, from May 2001 to August 2005e€¥eeing a staff of 140 employees at Big
Lots, she was responsible for accounting operatifamancial reporting and internal audit. Priors&rving at Big Lots, she served as Vice
President and Controller for Jitney-Jungle Stofe&roerica, Inc., a grocery retailer, from April 1% March 2001. At Jitney-Jungle,
Ms. Elliott was responsible for the accounting @piens and the internal and external financial répg functions. Prior to serving at Jitney-
Jungle, she practiced public accounting for 12 ge@of which were with Ernst & Young LLP.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the New Y@idck Exchange under the symbol "DG." The highlamdsales prices during each quarter
in fiscal 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
2011 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 33.5¢ $ 35.0¢ $ 40.71 $ 43.07
Low $ 2665 $ 31.1C $ 29.8¢ $ 38.32

First Second Third Fourth
2010 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 2991 $ 3141 $ 30.2( $ 33.7¢
Low $ 21.3C $ 2661 $ 26.6¢ $ 27.2¢

Our stock price at the close of the madkeMarch 16, 2012, was $44.69. There were apprdeima,171 shareholders of record of our
common stock as of March 16, 2012.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid recurringd#imds subsequent to our 2007 merger. We have nentylans to pay any cash dividends on
our common stock and instead may retain earnifi@syi, for future operation and expansion, repuselaf our common stock, or debt
repayment. Any decision to declare and pay dividéndhe future will be made at the discretion of Board of Directors and will depend «
among other things, our results of operations, caghirements, financial condition, contractuatnesons and other factors that our Boarc
Directors may deem relevant. In addition,
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our ability to pay dividends is limited by covensiimt our Credit Facilities and in the indenture giing our outstanding 11.875%/12.625%
senior subordinated toggle notes due 2017 (theiéBE&ubordinated Notes" or the "Notes"). See "Litjtyi and Capital Resources" in the
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanataddition and Results of Operations section of tefort for a description of restrictions
on our ability to pay dividends.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains informatiomgegding purchases of our common stock made duniagtiarter ended February 3, 2012 b
on behalf of Dollar General or any "affiliated poaser,” as defined by Rule 10b-18(a)(3) of the Btesi Exchange Act of 1934:

Approximate

Total Number Dollar Value
of Shares Purchased of Shares that May
Total Number Average as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans or Under the Plans
Period Purchased per Share Programs(b) or Programs(b)
10/29/11- 11/30/11 37,46((a) $ 39.9( — $ 500,000,00
12/01/11- 12/31/11 491563 $ 37.6¢ 4915,63 $ 315,000,00
01/01/12- 02/03/12 — 3 — — $ 315,000,00
Total 4,953,09 $ 37.6t 491563 $ 315,000,00

@ Represents shares repurchased from employees ptitsuhe terms of management stockholder's agnetsme

(b) On November 30, 2011 our Board of Directors appdawvshare repurchase program of up to $500 midifayutstandin
shares of our common stock. Under the authorizaiorchases may be made in the open market oiviately
negotiated transactions from time to time subjecharket conditions. This repurchase authorizatias no expiration
date.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selectedsitated financial information of Dollar Generabi@oration as of the dates and for the per
indicated. The selected historical statement ofafiEns data and statement of cash flows datehifiscal years ended February 3, 2012,
January 28, 2011 and January 29, 2010, and batdyeet data as of February 3, 2012 and January028, Bave been derived from our
historical audited consolidated financial stateraén¢luded elsewhere in this report. The selecisitical statement of operations data and
statement of cash flows data for the fiscal yeagseoiods, as applicable, ended January 30, 20€1&ury 1, 2008 and July 6, 2007 and
balance sheet data as of January 29, 2010, JaB0aR909 and February 1, 2008 presented in thie tae been derived from audited
consolidated financial statements not includedhis teport.

We completed a merger with Buck Acquisit@orp. ("BAC") on July 6, 2007, and, as a resultigmificant percentage of our
outstanding common stock remains held by a Delalirarged partnership controlled by investment furdfiliated with Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co. L.P. As a result of the merger, #lated purchase accounting adjustments, and a asi& &f accounting beginning on July 7,
2007, the 2007 financial reporting periods presgblow include the Predecessor period of the Compeflecting 22 weeks of operating
results from February 3, 2007 to July 6, 2007 ahavBeks of operating results for the Successoogereflecting the merger from July 7,
2007 to February 1, 2008. BAC's results of openatior the period from March 6, 2007 to July 6, 2Q@rior to the merger on July 6, 2007)
are also included in the consolidated financiakestents for the 2007 Successor period describedkabs a result of certain derivative
financial instruments entered into by BAC priotthe merger. Other than these financial instruméA<; had no assets, liabilities, or
operations prior to the merger.

Due to the significance of the merger aldted transactions that occurred in 2007, the 28010, 2009, 2008 and 2007 Successor
financial information is not comparable to thatteé 2007 Predecessor period presented in the acocoimg table.

The information set forth below should bad in conjunction with, and is qualified by refeze to, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes included in Parely B of this report
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and the Management's Discussion and Analysis d@rigiial Condition and Results of Operations inclushedart II, Item 7 of this report.

Successor Predecessor
Year Ended

(Amounts in millions,
excluding per
share data, number of March 6, February 3,
stores, 2007 2007
selling square feet, anc through through
net sales February 3, January 28, January 29, January 30, February 1, July 6,
per square foot) 2012(1) 2011 2010 2009 2008(2)(3) 2007(3)
Statement of

Operations Data:
Net sales $ 14,807.. $ 13,035.( $ 11,796.. $ 10,457 $ 5571t $ 3,923.¢
Cost of goods sol 10,109.: 8,858.¢ 8,106.! 7,396.¢ 3,999.¢ 2,852.:
Gross profit 4,697.¢ 4,176.¢ 3,689.¢ 3,061.: 1,571.¢ 1,071.¢
Selling, general and

administrative

expense: 3,207.: 2,902.t 2,736.¢ 2,448.¢ 1,324t 960.¢
Litigation settlement

and related costs, n — — — 32.C — —
Transaction and relate

costs — — — — 1.2 101.¢
Operating profit 1,490.¢ 1,274.: 953.% 580.t 246.1 9.2
Interest income (0.7) (0.2) (0.7) (3. (3.9 (5.0
Interest expens 205.( 274.% 345.7 391.¢ 252.¢ 10.2
Other (income) expen: 60.€ 15.1 55.E (2.8) 3.6 —
Income (loss) before

income taxe: 1,225. 985.( 552.] 194.¢ (6.6) 4.C
Income tax expense

(benefit) 458.€ 357.1 212.1 86.2 (1.9) 12.C
Net income (loss $ 766.1 % 627.¢ $ 3394 % 108.2 $ 48 $ (8.0)
Earnings (loss) per

shar—Dbasic $ 22t % 184 $ 108 $ 034 $ (0.02)
Earnings (loss) per

shar—diluted 2.2z 1.8z 1.04 0.34 (0.02)
Dividends per shar — — 0.752¢ — —
Statement of Cash

Flows Data:
Net cash provided b

(used in):

Operating activitie! $ 1,050 $ 8247 $ 672.¢ $ 5752 $ 2396 % 201.¢

Investing activities (513.9) (418.9) (248.0 (152.6) (6,848.9) (66.9)

Financing activitie: (908.0 (130.9) (580.%) (144.9) 6,709.( 25.2
Total capital

expenditure: (514.9 (420.9) (250.%) (205.5) (83.6) (56.2)
Other Financial and

Operating Data:
Same store sales grow

4) 6.C% 4.% 9.5% 9.C% 1.9% 2.6%
Same store sales( $ 13,626.° $ 12,227..  $ 11,356.! $ 10,118.! $ 5,264.: $ 3,656.¢
Number of store

included in same

store sales calculatic 9,25¢ 8,71: 8,32¢ 8,157 7,73¢ 7,65t
Number of stores (z

period end’ 9,931 9,37: 8,82¢ 8,36z 8,194 8,20t
Selling square feet (in

thousands at period

end) 71,77¢ 67,09¢ 62,49¢ 58,80 57,37¢ 57,37¢
Net sales per square fi

(5) $ 212 % 201 $ 19t $ 18C 165 $ 164
Consumables sal¢ 73.2% 71.€% 70.£% 69.2% 66.4% 66.7%
Seasonal sal¢ 13.8% 14.5% 14.5% 14.€% 16.2% 15.4%
Home products sale 6.6% 7.C% 7.4% 8.2% 9.1% 9.2%
Apparel sale! 6.2% 6.9% 7.2% 7.9% 8.2% 8.7%
Rent expens $ 542 % 489.: % 428 $ 389.6 $ 2145 $ 150.Z
Balance Sheet Data (a

period end):
Cash and cash

equivalents and sho

term investment $ 126.1 % 497.¢ % 2221 % 378.C $ 119.¢
Total asset 9,688.t 9,546.. 8,863.! 8,889.. 8,656.
Long-term debt 2,618t 3,288.. 3,403. 4,137.: 4,282.(
Total shareholders'

equity 4,668.* 4,054. 3,390. 2,831.% 2,703.¢
1) The fiscal year ended February 3, 2012 was compo§&3 weeks.
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Successor Predecessor

March 6, February 3,
Year Ended 2007 2007
through through
February 3, January 28, January 29, January 30, February 1, July 6,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Ratio of earnings to
fixed charges(1) 3.8x 3.1x 2.1x 1.4x ) 1.1x
) For purposes of computing the ratio of earning®d charges, (a) earnings consist of income Jlbsfore income taxes, plus fixed charges lessaiged

expenses related to indebtedness (amortizatiomeegier capitalized interest is not significantiigh) fixed charges consist of interest expenseeidr
expensed or capitalized), the amortization of dehitance costs and discounts related to indebtedaed the interest portion of rent expense.

2) For the Successor period from March 6, 2007 thrdegftruary 1, 2008, fixed charges exceeded earhin@é.6 million.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF F INANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis should be read with, ia qualified in its entirety by, the Consolidhfénancial Statements and the notes
thereto. It also should be read in conjunction vifte Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-LoakfBtatements and the Risk Factors
disclosures set forth in the Introduction and ienit LA of this report, respectively.

Executive Overview

We are the largest discount retailer inlingted States by number of stores, with 9,96 lestdwcated in 39 states as of March 2, 2012,
primarily in the southern, southwestern, midwesterd eastern United States. We offer a broad safect merchandise, including
consumable products such as food, paper and ctpaniniucts, health and beauty products and petissppnd non-consumable products
such as seasonal merchandise, home decor and dttsnast apparel. Our merchandise includes higlitgurational brands from leading
manufacturers, as well as comparable quality peibaand selections with prices at substantial distoto national brands. We offer our
customers these national brand and private braodlipts at everyday low prices (typically $10 os)es our convenient small-box (small
store) locations.
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A significant percentage of our outstandieghmon stock is held by Buck Holdings, L.P., addere limited partnership controlled by
investment funds affiliated with Kohlberg Kravis Bots & Co. L.P. (collectively, "KKR"). The membaip interests of Buck Holdings, L.P.
and Buck Holdings, LLC, the general partner of Bu€k are held by a private investor group, inclgdaffiliates of each of KKR and
Goldman, Sachs & Co. and other equity investorigciively, the "Investors").

The customers we serve are value-conscimgsDollar General has always been intensely tos helping our customers make the
most of their spending dollars. We believe our @ment store format and broad selection of higHityuaroducts at compelling values have
driven our substantial growth and financial sucaass the years. Like other companies, we have bperating in an environment with
heightened economic challenges and uncertaint@ss@ners are facing high rates of unemploymentfifhting food, gasoline and energy
costs, rising medical costs, and a continued wesskimehousing and consumer credit markets, antrttegable and strength of any economic
recovery is uncertain. Nonetheless, as a reswatifong-term mission of serving the valoeascious customer, coupled with a vigorous ft
on improving our operating and financial performanaur 2011 and 2010 financial results were strand,we remain optimistic with regard
to executing our operating priorities in 2012.

At the beginning of 2008, we defined fopeaating priorities, which we remain keenly focusedexecuting. These priorities are:
1) drive productive sales growth, 2) increase gosg margins, 3) leverage process improvementsnémination technology to reduce costs,
and 4) strengthen and expand Dollar General'sreutifiserving others.

Our first priority is driving productive les growth by increasing shopper frequency andéetion amount and maximizing sales per
square foot. In 2011, sales in same-stores inaldag€.0%, due to increases in traffic and aveteagsaction, and, to a lesser extent, the
impact of inflation. Sales in same-stores weredige continued enhancements to our category managgmocesses which help us
determine the most productive merchandise offerfogsur customers. Specific sales growth initiasivn 2011 included: improvement in
merchandise in-stock levels; the completion offthal phase of raising the shelf height in our efoto 78 inches, which impacted health and
beauty aids; further emphasis on the $1.00 prigetjphe expansion of the number of coolers in agjnately 500 existing stores; and the
impact of 575 remodeled and relocated stores ddahiegear. In addition to same-store sales growthopened 625 new stores in 2011. Our
small box stores offer consumable items, inclugiagkaged and refrigerated foods, to communitiesntiight not otherwise have convenient
access at value prices. To further expand this mppity, we opened 12 new Dollar General Marketestan 2011.

Our second priority is to increase grogsipthrough effective category management, theaespon of private brand offerings, increased
foreign sourcing, shrink reduction, distributioffié&ncies and improvements to our pricing and rdavkn model, while remaining committ
to our everyday low price strategy. We constargljiew our pricing strategy and work diligently tanimize product cost increases as we
focus on providing our customers quality merchamdisgreat values. In our consumables categorgtrive to offer the optimal balance of
the most popular nationally advertised brands amcdan private brands, which generally have higiress profit rates than national brands.
Throughout 2011, we experienced increased prodwsts cprimarily as the result of increases in th&scof certain commodities which were
passed through to us. These increased productroegitively affected gross profit and resultedriirereased LIFO provision. In addition,
elevated costs of diesel fuel affected our overaitchandise costs in 2011. Our shrink reductioorefiwere successful in 2011 and we
believe we have additional opportunities to redstognk in our stores.

Our third priority is leveraging processpimmvements and information technology to reducéscé¥e are committed as an organizatic
extract costs that do not affect the customer egpee. In 2011, much of our focus was on decreasimgtore labor costs while improving
our store standards
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and overall customer experience. We effectivelylamgnted a new workforce management system reguiftisignificant cost savings as a
percentage of sales. We also further implementeshangy management system in the stores. As parraéfforts to continue to increase
productivity, we installed faster data transmisgiechnology in our stores and believe that going/éwd, we will have additional
opportunities to leverage this investment and deinformation technology resources to creatatgreefficiencies in our retail store
operations.

Our fourth priority is to strengthen angard Dollar General's culture of serving others.dtstomers this means helping them "Save
time. Save money. Every day!" by providing cleae]lvstocked stores with quality products at lowcpd. For employees, this means creating
an environment that attracts and retains key enggl®yhroughout the organization. For the publis, feans giving back to our store
communities through our charitable and other e$fdrt 2011, we donated approximately $2.4 milliorotigh our corporate charitable giving
program. For shareholders, this means meeting ¢lxpiectations of an efficiently and profitably rorganization that operates with
compassion and integrity.

Our continued focus on these four priositiesulted in improved 2011 financial performaneerdhe prior year as follows. Note that
fiscal 2011 consisted of 53 weeks while fiscal 20@0sisted of 52 weeks. Basis points, as refeodattow, are equal to 0.01 percent of total
sales.

. Total sales in 2011 (53 weeks) increased 13.6% 20&0. Sales in sanweres increased 6.0%, with increases in both mes
traffic and average transaction amount. Consumalrest notably food, drove 85% of the total inceeessales. Average sales
per square foot in 2011 were $213 (including a&dtribution from the 58 week), up from $201 in 2010.

. Operating profit increased 17.0% to $1.49 billion10.1% of sales, compared to $1.27 billion, 828 of sales in 2010. The
improvement in our operating profit rate was atttéble to a 61 basis-point reduction of SG&A offisgta 31 basis-point
contraction of our gross profit rate.

. The improvement in SG&A, as a percentage of salas,due in large part to increased sales (incluttinds3¥ week) and
improved utilization of store labor. For other farst, see the detailed discussion that follows.

. We are pleased with our ability to manage our gposfit rate in a period of significant commodityst increases and related
LIFO charges, high fuel costs and limited discrediy spending by our core customers. Our grosstpaté was also affected
by numerous factors including a decrease in ourafinon-consumables and higher markdowns.

. Interest expense decreased by $69 million in 261205 million, primarily as the result of lowereaage outstanding long-
term obligations. In 2011, we repurchased the reimgibalance of our 10.625% senior notes, resuitirggnon-operating
charge of $60 million. Total long-term obligationf$2.62 billion as of February 3, 2012 were $670ion less than in the
prior year.

. We reported net income of $767 million, or $2.22 gikuted share, for fiscal 2011, compared to nebime of $628 million, or
$1.82 per diluted share, for fiscal 2010.

. We generated approximately $1.05 billion of caskvfl from operating activities in 2011, an increasever 27 percent
compared to 2010. Cash flow was primarily utilizecupport our capital expenditures, repurchasg-term obligations, and
repurchase our common stock.

. During 2011, we opened 625 new stores, remodeleelacated 575 stores, and closed 60 stores. ledludthese totals are 12
new and 25 remodeled Dollar General Market stores.

As discussed in more detail below, in régears, we have generated significant cash flowrs foperating activities. We have used a
portion of these cash flows to pay down debt anidwest in new store growth through our traditioleglsed stores. In the second half of 2010
we made a strategic
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decision to purchase certain of our leased storéd<antinued to purchase some stores in 2011. \levbeahat the current environment in the
real estate markets provides an opportunity to niaéee investments at levels which are expecteesidt in favorable returns and positively
impact our operating results.

In 2012, we plan to continue to focus onfour key operating priorities. We will continue tefine and improve our store standards in
order to increase sales, focusing on achievingnaistent look and feel across the chain. Contimuedress on improving our merchandise in-
stock position is an important element in improvovgrall customer service and increasing salegakisof our category management
program, we plan to expand our refrigerated foddrofgs, further expand our private brand consuesbhd increase the number of $1.00
price point items in our stores. With regard to+tomsumables, we plan to further improve the gualitd appeal of our seasonal, home and
apparel merchandise, and to continue to offertdmas our customers want and need most frequentiywilV continue our focused shrink
reduction efforts by employing our exception repayttools and enhanced shrink optimization proceséée will also continue to pursue
global opportunities to directly source a largertiom of our products, with the potential for sificént savings to current costs.

With regard to leveraging information teology and process improvements to reduce costsyilveontinue to focus on making
improvements that benefit our merchandising andaifmss efforts, including further implementatioheonew supply chain/procurement
system which we anticipate will produce benefit2@13 and beyond, as well as enhanced pricing arldown capabilities, merchandise
selection and allocation procedures. We expecaio fyrther efficiencies with additional utilizatiof our workforce management systems
and high speed data transmission capabilities.

Finally, we are pleased with the perforneaatour 2011 new stores, remodels and relocatamjn 2012 we plan to open 625 new
stores and remodel or relocate an additional 5&@st Included in our 2012 new store growth plaes4@ new Dollar General Market stores
and we also intend to continue tests of a largendd traditional store with additional coolers drekzers in several markets.

In the first half of 2011, we utilized cafdw from operations and borrowings under our teivy credit agreement to repurchase the
$864 million remaining balance of our outstandifg625% Senior Notes, reducing our interest expansdestrengthening our financial
position. Then, in December 2011, we repurchasedoapmately 4.9 million shares of our outstandimgnenon stock for $185 million. In
2012, we plan to refinance the remaining $451 arillbf our 11.875%/12.625% outstanding Senior Suhated Notes further reducing
interest expense. In addition, we plan to repuretsaklitional shares of our common stock under otreat authorization with a remaining
balance of $315 million.

Key Financial Metrics. We have identified the following as our mostical financial metrics for 2011:

. Same-store sales growth;

. Sales per square foot;

. Gross profit, as a percentage of sales;

. Selling, general and administrative expenses,mseentage of sales;
. Operating profit;

. Inventory turnover;

. Cash flow;

. Net income;
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. Earnings per shan
. Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciaia amortization; and

. Return on invested capital.

Readers should refer to the detailed dsonsof our operating results below for additioc@nments on financial performance in the
current year periods as compared with the prior pedods.

Results of Operations

Accounting Periods. The following text contains references to yedi$1, 2010 and 2009, which represent fiscal yeaded
February 3, 2012, January 28, 2011 and Januarg®@®, respectively. Our fiscal year ends on thddriclosest to January 31. Fiscal year
2011 was a 53-week accounting period and fiscalsy2@10 and 2009 were 52-week accounting periods.

Seasonality. The nature of our business is seasonal totaicexxtent. Primarily because of sales of holidalgted merchandise, sales
in our fourth quarter (November, December and Janueave historically been higher than sales adddan each of the first three quarters of
the fiscal year. Expenses and, to a greater exipetating profit vary by quarter. Results of aigeishorter than a full year may not be
indicative of results expected for the entire y&amthermore, the seasonal nature of our businagsaffiect comparisons between periods.
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The following table contains results of @®ns data for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2@66,the dollar and percentage variances
among those years.

2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009

(amounts in
millions, except
per share Amount % Amount %
amounts) 2011 2010 2009 Change Change Change Change
Net sales b

category:
Consumable $ 10,833 $ 9,332.. $ 8,356.« $ 1,501.6 16.1%$ 975.7 11.7%
% of net sale 73.17% 71.59% 70.84%
Seasonas 2,051.. 1,887.¢ 1,711t 163.2 8.6 176.4 10.3
% of net sale 13.85% 14.48% 14.51%
Home

products 1,005.: 917.€ 869.¢ 87.6 9.5 47.9 55
% of net sale 6.79% 7.04% 7.37%
Apparel 917.] 897.: 858.¢ 19.8 2.2 38.6 4.5
% of net sale 6.19% 6.88% 7.28%

Net sales $ 14,807.. $ 13,035.¢ $ 11,796.. $1,772.2 13.6%$% 1,238.6 10.5%
Cost of good

sold 10,109.: 8,858.¢ 8,106." 1,250.8 14.1 751.9 9.3
% of net sale 68.27% 67.96% 68.72%
Gross profit 4,697.¢ 4,176.¢ 3,689.¢ 521.4 12.5 486.7 13.2
% of net sale 31.73% 32.04% 31.28%
Selling,

general an

administrai

expense: 3,207.. 2,902.! 2,736.¢ 304.6 10.5 165.9 6.1
% of net sale 21.66% 22.27% 23.20%
Operating

profit 1,490.¢ 1,274.: 953.2 216.7 17.0 320.8 33.7
% of net sale 10.07% 9.77% 8.08%
Interest

income 0. (0.2 (0.2 0.1 (58.6) (0.1) 528
% of net sale (0.00)% (0.00)% (0.00)%
Interest

expense 205.( 274.2 345.7 (69.2) (25.2) (71.5) (20.7)
% of net sale 1.38% 2.10% 2.93%
Other

(income)

expense 60.€ 15.1 55.k 455 3014 (40.4) (72.8)
% of net sale 0.41% 0.12% 0.47%
Income

before

income

taxes 1,225.: 985.( 552.1 240.3 24.4 432.9 78.4
% of net sale 8.27% 7.56% 4.68%
Income taxe: 458.¢ 357.1 212 101.5 28.4 144 .4 67.9
% of net sale 3.10% 2.74% 1.80%
Netincome $ 766.7 $ 627.¢ $ 3394 $ 138.8 22.1%$ 288.4 85.0%
% of net sale 5.18% 4.82% 2.88%
Diluted

earnings

per share $ 22z % 182 $ 1.0¢ $ 040 22.0%%$ 0.78 75.0%

Net Sales. The net sales increase in 2011 reflects a sdare-sales increase of 6.0% compared to 2010. -Stores include stores that
have been open for at least 13 months and remain ajpthe end of the reporting period. For 201drehvere 9,254 same-stores which
accounted for sales of $13.63 billion. Same-stafessincreases are calculated based on the contpaedéndar weeks in the prior year.
Accordingly, the same store sales percentage fbt 2Gcussed above excludes sales from tHé G&ek as there was no comparable week in
2010. Net sales for the 58 week of 2011 totaled $289.3 million. The remainolethe increase in sales in 2011 was attributebleew stores
partially offset by sales from closed stores. Thweéase in sales reflects increased customerciaifi average transaction amounts, which is
the result of the continued refinement of our marlise offerings, the
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optimization of our category management procesaeber improvement in store standards, and areas® in sales prices resulting primarily
from passing through certain cost increases angased utilization of square footage in our stdregeases in sales of consumables outg
our noneonsumables, with sales of packaged foods, snheksrages and perishables, contributing the mgjofithe increase throughout t
year.

The net sales increase in 2010 reflectargesstore sales increase of 4.9% compared to Fa®2010, there were 8,712 same-stores
which accounted for sales of $12.23 billion. Theaaénder of the increase in sales in 2010 was attiile to new stores, partially offset by
sales from closed stores. The increase in sallextethe refinement of our merchandise offerimg@rovements in our category management
processes and store standards, and increaseatigiinf square footage in our stores.

Of our four major merchandise categories,donsumables category, which generally has arlgress profit rate than the other three
categories, has grown most significantly over thstgeveral years. Because of the impact of saleemrgross profit, we continually review
our merchandise mix and strive to adjust it wheprapriate. Maintaining an appropriate sales miarisntegral part of achieving our gross
profit and sales goals. Both the number of custanagsactions and average transaction amount isedea 2011 and 2010, and we believe
that our stores have benefited to some degree dittnacting new customers who are seeking valuerasudt of the challenging
macroeconomic environment in recent years.

Gross Profit. The gross profit rate as a percentage of sedas31.7% in 2011 compared to 32.0% in 2010, ardeof 31 basis points.
Consumables, which generally have lower markups tiwa-consumables, represented a greater percesftagkes in 2011 than in 2010. Our
purchase costs increased primarily due to increassunodity costs. In addition, we incurred higherkdowns and our transportation costs
were impacted by higher fuel rates in 2011. OurQ.irovision increased to $47.7 million in 2011 camgul to $5.3 million in 2010. In 2011,
our mix of home and apparel merchandise decreaspdraentage of sales and the gross profit raténwitese categories decreased due, in
part, to higher markdowns. Although we saw improgatrin the home category in the latter part of 2@td believe the economic
environment continues to impede our ability to gsales in discretionary areas such as this. Faptmisively affecting gross profit include
the selective price increases noted above as wédheer inventory shrinkage and distribution cemiasts, as a percentage of sales.

The gross profit rate as a percentagelessmas 32.0% in 2010 compared to 31.3% in 200&dFsacontributing to the increase in the
2010 gross profit rate include increased markupgltiag primarily from higher purchase markups tigdly offset by increased markdowns,
as well as our category management efforts anéased sales volumes which have contributed tohilitysto reduce purchase costs from
our vendors. Our merchandising team continues ik wiosely with our vendors to provide quality meaadise at value prices to meet our
customers' demands. In 2010 we recorded a LIFOgioovof $5.3 million, reflecting an increase irrteén merchandise costs, the most
significant of which occurred in the 2010 fourthagier, compared to a LIFO benefit of $2.5 million2009.

SG&A Expense. SG&A expense was 21.7% as a percentage ofisaP@d 1 compared to 22.3% in 2010, an improvernébtl basis
points reflecting the favorable impact of the 13.B4rease in sales. In addition, retail labor exgeeincreased at a rate lower than our incr
in sales, partially due to the rollout of our warkde management system. A decrease in incentiv@easation driven by more aggressive
bonus targets, and various cost reduction effdfésting rent, benefits, electricity and other powests, among other expenses, also
contributed to the overall decrease in SG&A asragrdage of sales. Costs that increased at aigdtertthan our increase in sales included
those associated with our high speed store dateorletliscussed above, depreciation and amortizaimpense and fees associated with the
increased use of debit cards. Depreciation and tiaration
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increases were primarily due to investments instoee data network and store properties purch&®8&A in 2011 includes expenses total
$13.1 million for payments and accruals relatethtosettlement and expected settlement of two legéters. SG&A in 2011 and 2010
includes expenses totaling $11.1 million and $18illion, respectively, for expenses (primarily siidrased compensation) incurred in
connection with secondary offerings of our commimtls.

SG&A expense was 22.3% as a percentagaled ;1 2010 compared to 23.2% in 2009, an imprareraf 93 basis points. Decreases in
incentive compensation, the cost of health benef@asulting fees and severance costs contribotétetoverall decrease in SG&A as a
percentage of sales, as did other cost reductidmpesductivity initiatives. Other costs increasatga rate lower than our 10.5% increase in
sales include utilities, which reflect lower wastanagement costs resulting from our recycling &fas well as repairs and maintenance.
increased sales levels in 2010 also favorably itgeh8 G&A, as a percentage of sales. Debit cardifeesased at a higher rate than the
increase in sales, primarily as a result of inardassage as a percentage of total transactionsotésl above, SG&A in 2010 included
expenses (primarily share-based compensation)rtgtfll9.7 million, relating to two secondary offegs of our common stock. SG&A in
2009 included expenses totaling $68.3 million, ®basis points, including $58.8 million relatingth® termination of an advisory agreement
among us, KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. and $9.4omitesulting from the acceleration of certain iggbased compensation related to
the completion of our initial public offering.

Interest Expense. The decrease in interest expense in 2011 cadpar2010 was primarily the result of lower averagtstanding
long-term obligations and lower average interest ratestd the redemption of our Senior Notes with casth borrowings under our revolvii
credit facility in the first half of 2011 and lowell-in interest rates on our term loan, primadlye to reduced notional amounts on our interest
rate swaps.

The decrease in interest expense in 20&(paced to 2009 was primarily the result of loweerage outstanding long-term obligations
and lower all-in interest rates on our term lodsg @rimarily due to reduced notional amounts onioterest rate swaps.

We had outstanding variable-rate debt 063$Dbillion and $0.93 billion as of February 3, 20dnd January 28, 2011, respectively, after
taking into consideration the impact of intere$¢ waps. The remainder of our outstanding indelgesiat February 3, 2012 and January 28,
2011 was fixed rate debt.

See the detailed discussion under "Liguiditd Capital Resources" regarding indebtednessried to finance our 2007 merger along
with subsequent repurchases of various long-terigatibns and the related effect on interest expéenghe periods presented.

Other (Income) Expense.ln 2011, we recorded pretax losses of $60.8Bamitesulting from repurchases of $864.3 milliqggeegate
principal amount of our Senior Notes plus accrued @npaid interest.

In 2010, we recorded pretax losses of $idlifon resulting from the repurchase in the opesirket of $115.0 million aggregate princi
amount of our Senior Notes plus accrued and uripgedest.

In 2009, we recorded charges totaling $8&lbon, which primarily represents losses on dedtirement totaling $55.3 million, and
which also includes expenses of $0.6 million relatehedge ineffectiveness on certain of our irtierate swaps.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rates for 2011, 2G#@] 2009 were expenses of 37.4%, 36.3%, and 38esfgectively.
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The 2011 effective tax rate of 37.4% wamatgr than the statutory tax rate of 35% due pilyntar the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate. The 2011 effectivie n@as greater than the 2010 rate of 36.3% prigndtie to the effective resolution of various
examinations by the taxing authorities in 2010 thdtnot reoccur, to the same extent, in 2011. @Hastors resulted in rate increases in 2!
as compared to 2010, associated with state incares tand income tax related interest expense.dsesan federal jobs related tax credits,
primarily due to the Hire Act's Retention Credéduced the effective rate in 2011 as compared16.2bhe Retention Credit was only
effective for 2011. Other provisions authorizingigas federal jobs credits (primarily the Work Opjomity Tax Credit or WOTC) that we
receive have generally expired for employees haféel December 31, 2011. Barring re-enactmentesdlcredits by Congress, the benefit
realized by the company associated with jobs csédi2012 will be significantly lower than the béhesalized in 2011, thereby increasing
2012 effective rate. We anticipate that the comtia@se of the Retention Credit and the expiratibtihe other jobs credits (WOTC) will
increase our 2012 effective rate by approximatedydas compared to the 2011 rate.

The 2010 effective tax rate of 36.3% wasatgr than the statutory tax rate of 35%, alsoplinearily to the inclusion of state income
taxes in the total effective tax rate. The 201@dtff/e rate was less than the 2009 rate due peHgifo reductions in state income tax expe
income tax related interest expense and other expigems. The 2010 effective resolution of variexaminations by the taxing authorities,
when combined with unfavorable examination resal8009, resulted in a decrease in the year-to-gede income tax expense rate. This
decrease in state income tax expense was pauifdigt by an increase in state income tax expenedala shift in income to companies
within the group that have a higher effective stat®me tax rate. In addition, decreases also oedwdue to favorable outcomes in 2010
associated with reductions in income tax relatéer@st accruals and income tax related penaltyatssdue to favorable income tax
examination results, the completion of a federabine tax examination, and reductions in expensecidsed with uncertain tax benefit
accruals.

The 2009 effective tax rate of 38.5% wasatgr than the statutory tax rate of 35% due pilyntar the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The entities involved in ownership struetunderlying the leases for three of our distrimuitenters meet the accounting definition of a
Variable Interest Entity ("VIE"). One of these dibution centers has been recorded as a finanditigation whereby its property and
equipment are reflected in our consolidated balaheets. The land and buildings of the other tvstribution centers have been recorded as
operating leases. We are not the primary benejidathese VIEs and, accordingly, have not incluttexbe entities in our consolidated
financial statements. Other than the foregoingaveenot party to any off balance sheet arrangements

Effects of Inflation

In 2011, we experienced increased commatdisy pressures mainly related to food, housevardsapparel products which were driven
by increases in cotton, sugar, coffee, groundmsins petroleum and other raw material commodisto/Ne believe that our ability to
selectively increase selling prices in responsmgi increases partially mitigated the effect efsthcost increases on our overall results of
operations. We experienced little or no overalldoret cost inflation in 2010 and 2009.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Financial Condition

During the past three years, we have géeeen aggregate of approximately $2.55 billiosash flows from operating activities. Duri
that period, we expanded the number of stores weatg by 1,575, or approximately 19%, remodelettlacated 1,529 stores, or
approximately 15% of stores we operated as of Febr8, 2012, and incurred approximately $1.19daillin capital expenditures. We made
certain strategic decisions which slowed our stwosvth for a period prior to 2009, but we reaccatied store growth beginning in 2009 and
currently plan to continue that strategy in 2014 for the foreseeable future.

At February 3, 2012, we had total outstagdiebt (including the current portion of long-tesiigations) of $2.62 hillion, which
includes our senior secured asset-based revolveditdacility ("ABL Facility" and, together withhie Term Loan Facility, the "Credit
Facilities"), and senior subordinated notes, ailvbich are described in greater detail below. We $807.9 million available for borrowing
under the ABL Facility at February 3, 2012. Ouulijty needs are significant, primarily due to alebt service and other obligations. Our
substantial debt could adversely affect our abilityaise additional capital to fund our operatidimit our ability to react to changes in the
economy or our industry or to pursue our growthtstgy, expose us to interest rate risk to the éxteour variable rate debt, and increase the
difficulty of our ability to make payments on ountstanding debt securities.

We believe our cash flow from operationd aristing cash balances, combined with availahilitder the Credit Facilities (described in
greater detail below), will provide sufficient liglity to fund our current obligations, projectednking capital requirements and capital
spending for a period that includes the next twehaamths as well as the next several years.

The ABL Facility was amended and restated/iarch 15, 2012 as discussed below under "Recem¢lbpments.”
Credit Facilities

Overview. The Credit Facilities consist of the $1.964idnil Term Loan Facility and the ABL Facility whiakas recently amended to a
maximum of $1.2 billion (of which up to $350.0 ol is available for letters of credit), subjecttmrowing base availability. The ABL
Facility includes borrowing capacity available fetters of credit and for short-term borrowingsereéd to as swingline loans.

Interest Rates and Fees.Borrowings under the Credit Facilities beaerest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plusyr option,
either (a) LIBOR or (b) a base rate (which is uguadjual to the prime rate). The applicable mafgirborrowings under the Term Loan
Facility is 2.75% for LIBOR borrowings and 1.75% fmase-rate borrowings. The interest rate for bwimgs under the Term Loan Facility
was 3.1% (without giving effect to the market rateaps discussed below) as of February 3, 2012.

The current interest rate for the amendBtl Racility is described below under "Recent Depeh@nts.” As of February 3, 2012, the
applicable margin for borrowings under the ABL Hiciexcept for the last out tranche) was 1.50%LfiBBOR borrowings and 0.50% for
base-rate borrowings, the applicable margin foldkeout borrowings was 2.25% for LIBOR borrowiragel 1.25% for base-rate borrowings
and the commitment fee to the lenders for any lineti commitments was 0.375% per annum. See ltenf@hantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk" below for a discossof our use of interest rate swaps to managéntenest rate risk.
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Prepayments. The senior secured credit agreement for thenTeran Facility requires us to prepay outstandergitioans, subject to
certain exceptions, with;

. 50% of our annual excess cash flow (as definetarctedit agreement) which will be reduced to 25 @% if we achieve al
maintain a total net leverage ratio of 6.0 to In@l 8.0 to 1.0, respectively;

. 100% of the net cash proceeds of all non-ordinayse asset sales or other dispositions of proeeycess of $25.0 million
in the aggregate and subject to our right to resbtiee proceeds; and

. 100% of the net cash proceeds of any incurrencielof, other than proceeds from debt permitted utidesenior secured cre
agreement.

The mandatory prepayments discussed abdveerapplied to the Term Loan Facility as direttey the senior secured credit agreement.
No prepayments have been required under the prep#ypnovisions listed above. The Term Loan Facdidy be prepaid in whole or in p:
at any time.

In addition, the senior secured credit agrent for the ABL Facility requires us to prepag #BL Facility, subject to certain exceptions,
as follows:

. With 100% of the net cash proceeds of all non-@dircourse asset sales or other dispositions obIRieg Facility Collateral
(as defined below) in excess of $1.0 million in #ggregate and subject to our right to reinvesptbeeeds; and

. To the extent such extensions of credit exceedhte current borrowing base (as defined in theoses@cured credit agreem
for the ABL Facility).

The mandatory prepayments discussed abdveerapplied to the ABL Facility as directed byetsenior secured credit agreement fo
ABL Facility. No prepayments have been requiredairle prepayment provisions listed above.

An event of default under the senior seduredit agreements will occur upon a change ofrobas defined in the senior secured credit
agreements governing our Credit Facilities. Uporent of default, indebtedness under the Creditifi@s may be accelerated, in which
case we will be required to repay all outstandoank plus accrued and unpaid interest and all eieunts outstanding under the Credit
Facilities.

Amortization. The original terms of the Term Loan Facilitgu@ed quarterly payments of principal beginningt®enber 30, 2009. As
a result of voluntary prepayments under the Termn_Bacility, no further quarterly principal instaknts will be required prior to maturity of
the Term Loan on July 6, 2014. There is no amditimaunder the ABL Facility.

Guarantee and Security. All obligations under the Credit Facilities aneconditionally guaranteed by substantially albaf existing
and future domestic subsidiaries (excluding ceritamaterial subsidiaries and certain subsidiaresighated by us under our senior secured
credit agreements as "unrestricted subsidiariesf@rred to, collectively, as U.S. Guarantors.

All obligations and related guarantees urtide Term Loan Facility are secured by:

. a second-priority security interest in all existgugd after-acquired inventory, accounts receivabid, other assets arising from
such inventory and accounts receivable, of our @m@and each U.S. Guarantor (the "Revolving FgdBibllateral"), subject
to certain exceptions;

. a first-priority security interest in, and mortgagm, substantially all of our and each U.S. Guar&tangible and intangible
assets (other than the Revolving Facility Colldjesnd

. a first-priority pledge of 100% of the capital stdweld by us, or any of our domestic subsidiaried are directly owned by us

or one of the U.S. Guarantors and 65% of the vataqgjtal stock of each of our existing and futweefgn subsidiaries that are
directly owned by us or one of the U.S. Guarantors.
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Certain Covenants and Events of DefaulThe senior secured credit agreements containrder of covenants that, among other
things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions,ahility to:

. incur additional indebtedness;

. sell assets;

. pay dividends and distributions or repurchase apital stock;

. make investments or acquisitions;

. repay or repurchase subordinated indebtednesagdingl the Senior Subordinated Notes discussed helow

. amend material agreements governing our subordinatiebtedness, including the Senior SubordinatetgdNdiscussed belo
. change our lines of business.

The senior secured credit agreements alstaim certain customary affirmative covenants ewehts of default.

At February 3, 2012, we had the followimgaaunts outstanding under our ABL Facility: borrogsnof $184.7 million; standby letters of
credit of $21.7 million; and commercial lettersooédit of $16.7 million.

Senior Notes due 2015 and Senior Subordinated €dggles due 2017

Overview. On April 29, 2011, we repurchased in the opanket $25.0 million outstanding aggregate princgrabunt of our 10.625¢
senior notes due 2015 (the "Senior Notes") at amgxdion price of 107.0% of the principal amountisphccrued and unpaid interest, resulting
in a pretax loss of $2.2 million. On July 15, 20k, redeemed the remaining $839.3 million outstagdiggregate principal amount of the
Senior Notes (which had been scheduled to matudeilgnl5, 2015) at a redemption price of 105.313%e principal amount, plus accrued
and unpaid interest, resulting in a pretax los$5#.1 million. The redemption was effected in ademce with the indenture dated as of Ju
2007 governing the Senior Notes pursuant to a @atited May 31, 2011. The pretax losses on thassdctions are reflected in Other
(income) expense in our consolidated statementanime for 2011. We funded the redemption pricaHerSenior Notes with cash on hand
and borrowings under the ABL Facility. The rederoptis a significant factor in the reduction of @ash balances at February 3, 2012
compared to the prior year end.

As of February 3, 2012, we had $450.7 omllaggregate principal amount of 11.875%/12.625&0ssubordinated toggle notes due
2017 (the "Senior Subordinated Notes") outstandifgch mature on July 15, 2017, pursuant to anntute dated as of July 6, 2007 (the
"senior subordinated indenture").

Interest on the Senior Subordinated Natgmsyable on January 15 and July 15 of each yeeh ©terest on the Senior Subordinated
Notes accrues at a rate of 11.875% per annum. fiarofo pay interest by increasing the principabamt of the Senior Subordinated No
or issuing new Senior Subordinated Notes ("PIKregg") instead of paying cash interest expireddibl2 As a result, all interest on the Senior
Subordinated Notes has been paid or will be payiaktash.

The Senior Subordinated Notes are fully anconditionally guaranteed by each of the existing future direct or indirect wholly own
domestic subsidiaries that guarantee the obligatimer our Credit Facilities.

We intend to redeem some or all of the @&Bubordinated Notes near the first scheduleddeaé in July 2012. We may redeem sorr
all of the Senior Subordinated Notes at any time at
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redemption prices described or set forth in théssesubordinated indenture. We also may seek, fiom to time, to retire some or all of the

Senior Subordinated Notes through cash purchasteapen market, in privately negotiated transastior otherwise. Such repurchases, if
any, will depend on prevailing market conditiongy bquidity requirements, contractual restricticarsd other factors. The amounts involved
may be material.

Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a change of controlcivig defined in the senior subordinated indenteaeh holder of
the Senior Subordinated Notes has the right toireas to repurchase some or all of such holdersd® Subordinated Notes at a purchase
price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amdhateof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if émyhe repurchase date.

Covenants. The senior subordinated indenture contains maves limiting, among other things, our ability ahe ability of our
restricted subsidiaries to (subject to certain pkoes):

. incur additional debt, issue disqualified stockssue certain preferred stock;

. pay dividends and or make certain distributiongestments and other restricted payments;
. create certain liens or encumbrances;

. sell assets;

. enter into transactions with our affiliates;

. allow payments to us by our restricted subsidiaries

. consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelafradubstantially all of our assets; and

. designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted subgsdia

Events of Default. The senior subordinated indenture also providesvents of default which, if any of them occus®uld permit or
require the principal of and accrued interest anSknior Subordinated Notes to become or to bewdstHue and payable.

Adjusted EBITD/

Under the agreements governing the Creatitliies and the senior subordinated indenturgagelimitations and restrictions could arise
if we are not able to satisfy and remain in comqp@with specified financial ratios. Managementeyals the most significant of such ratio
the senior secured incurrence test under the Gfaditities. This test measures the ratio of theaesecured debt to Adjusted EBITDA. This
ratio would need to be no greater than 4.25 todvtid such limitations and restrictions. As of kelyy 3, 2012, this ratio was 1.1to 1. Se
secured debt is defined as our total debt secuyrdiés or similar encumbrances less cash and eqsivalents. EBITDA is defined as inco
(loss) from continuing operations before cumulag¥ect of change in accounting principles plugiast and other financing costs, net,
provision for income taxes, and depreciation andrézation. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDArther adjusted to give effect to
adjustments required in calculating this covenatibrunder our Credit Facilities. EBITDA and AdjedtEBITDA are not presentations made
in accordance with U.S. GAAP, are not measurefahtial performance or condition, liquidity or fitability, and should not be considered
as an alternative to (1) net income, operatingrmeor any other performance measures determinacciordance with U.S. GAAP or
(2) operating cash flows determined in accordanitte W.S. GAAP. Additionally, EBITDA and Adjusted BEBDA are not intended to be
measures of free cash flow for management's disoay use, as they do not consider certain caplirEments such as interest payments
payments and debt service requirements and reptadsrof fixed assets.

Our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBI has limitations as an analytical tool, and ddawot be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for analysis of our results as repouedier
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U.S. GAAP. Because not all companies use identizlgulations, these presentations of EBITDA anduatijd EBITDA may not be
comparable to other similarly titled measures beotcompanies. We believe that the presentati@BdT DA and Adjusted EBITDA is
appropriate to provide additional information abth calculation of this financial ratio in the @iteFacilities. Adjusted EBITDA is a
material component of this ratio. Specifically, rmampliance with the senior secured indebtednd&scantained in our Credit Facilities
could prohibit us from making investments, incugrirens, making certain restricted payments andrifireg additional secured indebtedness
(other than the additional funding provided for anthe senior secured credit agreement and puruapecified exceptions).

The calculation of Adjusted EBITDA undeetBredit Facilities is as follows:

Year Ended
February 3, January 28,

(in millions) 2012 2011
Net income $ 7660 $§ 627.¢
Add (subtract)

Interest incomi (0.2 (0.2

Interest expens 205.( 274.]

Depreciation and amortizatic 264.1 2422

Income taxe: 458.¢ 357.1
EBITDA 1,694.: 1,501.:
Adjustments

Loss on debt retiremen 60.3 14.¢

Loss on hedging instrumer 0.4 0.4

Advisory and consulting fees to affiliat — 0.1

Non-cash expense for sh-based award 15.2 16.C

Litigation settlement and related costs, 13.1

Indirect merge-related cost 0.¢ 1.3

Other noi-cash charges (including LIF( 53.d 11.F
Total Adjustment: 143.: 43.¢
Adjusted EBITDA $ 1,837.¢ $ 1,545

Interest Rate Sway

We use interest rate swaps to minimizeigleof adverse changes in interest rates. Theapsware intended to reduce risk by hedgin
underlying economic exposure. Because of high tadiom between the derivative financial instrumant the underlying exposure being
hedged, fluctuations in the value of the finanaiatruments are generally offset by reciprocal gegrin the value of the underlying econol
exposure. Our principal interest rate exposurdeslt outstanding amounts under our Credit FeslitAt February 3, 2012, we had interest
rate swaps with a total notional amount of appratety $533.3 million. For more information see It&/ "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk" below.

Fair Value Accounting

We have classified our interest rate swapg$urther discussed in Item 7A. below, in Levelf 2Zhe fair value hierarchy, as the significant
inputs to the overall valuations are based on ntavkeervable data or information derived from araborated by market-observable data,
including market-based inputs to models, modebcation to market-clearing transactions, brokedesler quotations, or alternative pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transpgrafibere models
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are used, the selection of a particular model toeva derivative depends upon the contractual tefirend specific risks inherent in, the
instrument as well as the availability of pricimfarmation in the market. We use similar modelsatue similar instruments. Valuation
models require a variety of inputs, including cantual terms, market prices, yield curves, credgives, measures of volatility, and
correlations of such inputs. For our derivativdspBwhich trade in liquid markets, model inputcgenerally be verified and model selection
does not involve significant management judgment.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustmeatappropriately reflect both our own nonperforeeanisk and the respective counterparty's
nonperformance risk in the fair value measuremehtair derivatives. The credit valuation adjustnsesnte calculated by determining the total
expected exposure of the derivatives (which incates both the current and potential future expgsamd then applying each counterparty's
credit spread to the applicable exposure. For divies with two-way exposure, such as interestgatps, the counterparty's credit spread is
applied to our exposure to the counterparty, arrcdbaun credit spread is applied to the counterpagyposure to us, and the net credit
valuation adjustment is reflected in our derivatieduations. The total expected exposure of a dévig is derived using market-observable
inputs, such as yield curves and volatilities. Tiputs utilized for our own credit spread are basedmplied spreads from our publiclsadec
debt. For counterparties with publicly availabledit information, the credit spreads over LIBORdisethe calculations represent implied
credit default swap spreads obtained from a thamtlypcredit data provider. In adjusting the faitueaof our derivative contracts for the effect
of nonperformance risk, we have considered the anplanetting and any applicable credit enhancesjentch as collateral postings,
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees. Additipnak actively monitor counterparty credit ratirfgs any significant changes.

As of February 3, 2012, the net credit aibn adjustments reduced the settlement valuesoderivative liabilities by $0.1 million.
Various factors impact changes in the credit vadmaadjustments over time, including changes incieglit spreads of the parties to the
contracts, as well as changes in market rates aladilities, which affect the total expected expwsaf the derivative instruments. When
appropriate, valuations are also adjusted for warfactors such as liquidity and bid/offer spreadsich factors we deemed to be immaterial
as of February 3, 2012.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our sigrafit contractual obligations and commercial committe@s of February 3, 2012 (in
thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual obligations Total 1 year 1-3years 3 -5 years 5+ years
Long-term debt obligation $ 2,613,39. $ — $ 2,148,200 $ 305 $ 464,88
Capital lease obligatior 5,08¢ 59C 607 767 3,12¢
Interest(a 493,38t 138,57. 221,10( 107,66 26,04%
Selfinsurance liabilities(b 219,96! 79,75: 90,88: 31,59% 17,73
Operating leases(( 3,660,00. 537,84: 938,28t 704,20" 1,479,66!
Subtotal $ 6,991,83' $ 756,75¢ $ 3,399,071 $ 844,547 $ 1,991,46!
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Commitments Expiring by Period

Commercial commitments(d) Total 1 year 1-3years 3 -5 years 5+ years

Letters of credi $ 16,71C $ 16,71C $ — $ — 3 —

Purchase obligations( 725,20: 723,66! 1,53 — —
Subtotal $ 74191 $ 74037 $ 15371 $ — $ —

Total contractual
obligations and
commercial
commitments (f) $ 7,733,74 $ 1,497,13 $ 3,400,61. $ 844,54 $ 1,991,46

€)) Represents obligations for interest payments og-term debt and capital lease obligations, andiotes projected
interest on variable rate long-term debt, usingl2gdar end rates. Variable rate long-term debtiohes the balance of
the senior secured asset-based revolving crediityaaf $184.7 million, the balance of our tax neenent financing of
$14.5 million, and $1.430 billion of the senior sexd term loan facility net of the effect of intseteate swaps.

(b)  We retain a significant portion of the risk for omorkers' compensation, employee health insurayereral liability,
property loss and automobile insurance. As thefigadtbns do not have scheduled maturities, theseuats represent
undiscounted estimates based upon actuarial asgumspReserves for workers' compensation and geliegdity
which existed as of the date of our 2007 mergeewi&counted in order to arrive at estimated falug. All other
amounts are reflected on an undiscounted basigricansolidated balance sheets.

(©) Operating lease obligations are inclusive of am®imtiuded in deferred rent and closed store otitiga in our
consolidated balance sheets.

(d) Commercial commitments include information techigglticense and support agreements, supplies, éstletters of
credit for import merchandise, and other invenfauychase obligations.

(e) Purchase obligations include legally binding agreets for software licenses and support, suppliesirés, and
merchandise purchases (excluding such purchasgstdletters of credit).

® We have potential payment obligations associatéd wicertain tax positions that are not reflectethese totals. We
anticipate that approximately $0.3 million of swwmhounts will be paid in the coming year. We areenity unable to
make reasonably reliable estimates of the periarhsh settlement with the taxing authorities far mmaining
$41.1 million of reserves for uncertain tax posiic

Recent Developmer

On March 15, 2012, the ABL Facility was amded and restated. The maturity date was extendedJuly 6, 2013 to July 6, 2014 and
the total commitment was increased from $1.0310bilto $1.2 billion (of which up to $350.0 milliaa available for letters of credit), subject
to borrowing base availability. The ABL Facilitydludes borrowing capacity available for lettergddit and for short-term borrowings
referred to as swingline loans. The amount availailder the ABL Facility (including letters of cigdshall not exceed the borrowing base
which equals the sum of (i) 90% of the net ordédyidation value of all our eligible inventory amlgiat of each guarantor thereunder and
(if) 90% of all our accounts receivable and creifgibit card receivables and that of each guarah&wetinder, in each case, subject to
customary reserves and eligibility criteria.
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The initial applicable margin for all bowimgs under the ABL Facility is 1.75% for LIBOR bbowings and 0.75% for base-rate
borrowings. We are also required to pay a commitrfemnto the lenders under the ABL Facility for amutilized commitments, initially at a
rate of 0.375% per annum. The applicable marginbdorowings and the commitment fees under the ARctility are subject to adjustment
each quarter based on average daily excess aligylainider the ABL Facility. We also must pay custry letter of credit fees.

The entire principal amounts (if any) oatsting under the ABL Facility are due and payabl&iil at maturity, on July 6, 2014, on wh
day the commitments thereunder will terminate.oligations and related guarantees under the ARlilifjgare secured by the Revolving
Facility Collateral, subject to certain exceptions.

In addition, we recently commenced efféotamend our Term Loan Facility to extend the mistuf a portion of the Term Loan Facil
from 2014 to 2017. There can be no assurance thatillvbe able to amend the Term Loan Facility bese terms, or at all.

Share Repurchase Program

On November 30, 2011, our Board of Direstapproved a share repurchase program of up to®8@én of outstanding shares of our
common stock. Under the authorization, purchasesbaanade in the open market or in privately neget! transactions from time to time
subject to market conditions. This repurchase aightion has no expiration date. As part of thigurehase program, pursuant to a Share
Repurchase Agreement between Dollar General ani Batdings L.P., dated December 4, 2011, concunétfit the closing of a secondary
offering in December 2011, Dollar General purcha€d5,637 shares of Common Stock from Buck HolslihgP. for an aggregate purch
price of $185 million.

Other Considerations

We have no current plans to pay any cagldelids on our common stock and instead may retinings, if any, for future operation ¢
expansion, common stock repurchases and debt reypeiyAny decision to declare and pay dividendhefuture will be made at the
discretion of our Board of Directors, subject totaim limitations found in covenants in our Cre@écilities and in the indenture governing the
Senior Subordinated Notes as discussed in mord dbtave, and will depend on, among other things,results of operations, cash
requirements, financial condition, contractualniesbns and other factors that our Board of Diogstmay deem relevant.

Our inventory balance represented approtatyp@9% of our total assets exclusive of goodetiltl other intangible assets as of
February 3, 2012. Our proficiency in managing ewentory balances can have a significant impaaduwrcash flows from operations during
a given fiscal year. As a result, efficient invagtmanagement has been and continues to be awfd@aus for us.

As described in Note 9 to the Consolidd&gthncial Statements, we are involved in a numbérgal actions and claims, some of which
could potentially result in material cash paymeAtdverse developments in those actions could nadtgand adversely affect our liquidity.
As discussed in Note 5 to the Consolidated FindiStetements, we also have certain income taxe@lebntingencies. Future negative
developments could have a material adverse effeouo liquidity.

In July 2011, Standard & Poor's upgradedcouporate rating to BB+ with a stable outlookd @ioody's raised our corporate rating to
Ba2 with a stable outlook. Our current credit rgsinas well as future rating agency actions, cilidhpact our ability to obtain financings to
finance our operations on satisfactory termsaffi¢ct our financing costs; and (iii) affect ousimance premiums and collateral requirements
necessary for our self-insured programs. Therebeamo assurance that we will be able to maintaimprove our current credit ratings.
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Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities.A significant component of our increase in clietvs from operating activities in 2011 compared
to 2010 was the increase in net income due to @ase®in sales and gross profit, and lower SG&A espg as a percentage of sales, as
described in more detail above under "Results afréons." Significant components of the increasesish flows from operating activities in
2011 compared to 2010 were related to working aehpitgeneral and Accrued expenses and other ticplar. Items affecting Accrued
expenses and other include increased accrualadormie tax reserves, increased accruals for leglsents and taxes exclusive of taxes on
income, partially offset by reduced interest acksiughe timing of interest and certain other actsaad the related payments were affecte
the 539 week in 2011. Partially offsetting this increaseash flows were an increase in income taxesipa011 compared to 2010 due to
increased net income and changes in inventory befanvhich increased by 14% in 2011 compared fo@rase of 16% in 2010. Although
we continue to closely monitor our inventory bakesicdhey often fluctuate from period to period &odh year to year based on new store
openings, the timing of purchases, merchandisiitigiives and other factors. Inventory levels ie tonsumables category increased by
$132.3 million, or 13%, in 2011 compared to an éase of $133.9 million, or 16%, in 2010. The seabkoategory increased by $27.5 milli
or 7%, in 2011 compared to an increase of $55.Ramjlor 18%, in 2010. The home products categneygased $24.6 million, or 14%, in
2011 compared to an increase of $25.2 million, &6 lin 2010. The apparel category increased by4d5@lion, or 24%, in 2011 compared
to an increase of $32.3 million, or 15%, in 2010.

A significant component of our increaseash flows from operating activities in 2010 congubto 2009 was the increase in net income
due to increases in sales and gross profit, andri@G&A expenses as a percentage of sales, ashaebor more detail above under "Results
of Operations." Partially offsetting this increaseash flows were changes in inventory balancéssiincreased by 16% in 2010 compared
to an increase of 7% in 2009. Inventory levelshim tonsumables category increased by $133.9 mitioh6%, in 2010 compared to an
increase of $111.4 million, or 15%, in 2009. Thassmal category increased by $55.2 million, or 18#2010 compared to an increase of
$25.3 million, or 9%, in 2009. The home producttegary increased $25.2 million, or 17%, in 2010 paned to a decline of $9.1 million, or
6%, in 2009. The apparel category increased by3&3@lion, or 15%, in 2010 compared to a declin&®22.9 million, or 10%, in 2009. In
addition, increased net income resulted in an am@en income taxes paid in 2010 compared to 20B8nges in Accrued expenses and other
were affected in part by reductions of income &serves and reduced accruals for incentive compenspatrtially offset by the timing of
payments related to a litigation settlement in pyiears and by lower accruals for interest on Itarga debt.

Cash flows from investing activities.Significant components of property and equipnpemchases in 2011 included the following
approximate amounts: $120 million for distributicenters, including our newly built center in Alakar114 million for new leased stores;
$80 million for improvements and upgrades to emgsstores; $80 million for stores purchased orttyilus; $73 million for remodels and
relocations of existing stores; $28 million for ®ms-related capital projects; and $15 milliontfansportation-related capital. The timing of
new, remodeled and relocated store openings aldthgother factors may affect the relationship betwsuch openings and the related
property and equipment purchases in any given gebaring 2011, we opened 625 new stores and releade relocated 575 stores.

Significant components of our property agdipment purchases in 2010 included the follovepgroximate amounts: $156 million for
improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocationsisfing stores; $100 million for new leased stof&91 million for stores purchased or
built by us; $45 million for distribution and trgprtation-related capital expenditures; and $2Zianilfor information systems upgrades and
technology-related projects. During 2010 we opebe@inew stores and remodeled or relocated 504sstore
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Significant components of our property agdiipment purchases in 2009 included the follovéipgroximate amounts: $114 million for
improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocatiopsisfing stores; $69 million for new leased stp&28 million for distribution and
transportation-related capital expenditures; $2Manifor various administrative capital costs; &l million for information systems
upgrades and technology-related projects. Durir@P2@e opened 500 new stores and remodeled or tetbd&0 stores.

Capital expenditures during 2012 are ptejg¢o be in the range of $600-$650 million. Wea@pate funding 2012 capital requirements
with cash flows from operations, and if necessasy also have significant availability under our ABHhcility. Approximately 65 percent of
projected capital spending is for investment inesggrowth and development for approximately 625 stwes and for approximately 550
stores to be remodeled or relocated. Capital experd are anticipated for the construction of re@res; costs related to new leased stores
such as leasehold improvements, fixtures and eaqnfinthe purchase of existing stores; and contimoegstment in our existing store base.
Approximately 15 percent of projected capital spegds for transportation, distribution and spegedjects; and the remaining 20 percent is
for routine and ongoing capital requirements.

Included in our 2012 new store growth plares40 new Dollar General Market stores, somela€fvwe will introduce in new markets,
including California and Nevada. We also intendetst a larger format traditional store with addiibcoolers and freezers in several markets.
The Market and larger format traditional storesuregjhigher investments than our traditional stavbgch can vary depending on numbers of
coolers, square feet, type of construction anduayBecause we are testing several different fosnhe costs of rolling out these concepts in
larger quantities, should we decide to do so, acenain at the present time. We plan to undertiadse expenditures as part of our efforts to
improve our infrastructure and increase our castegged from operating activities.

Cash flows from financing activities.On July 15, 2011, we redeemed $839.3 milliogregate principal amount of our outstanding
Senior Notes at total cost of $883.9 million inchglassociated premiums, and on April 29, 2011repairchased in the open market
$25.0 million aggregate principal amount of SeMNotes at a total cost of $26.8 million includingasiated premiums. A portion of the July
2011 redemption of Senior Notes was financed bydwangs under the ABL Facility. Net borrowings undlee ABL Facility were
$184.7 million during 2011. In December 2011, weurehased 4.9 million outstanding shares from oincjpal shareholder at a total cost of
$185.0 million.

During 2010, we repurchased $115.0 milbotstanding principal amount of our outstandingi®eNotes at a total cost of
$127.5 million including associated premiums. Wd ha borrowings or repayments under the ABL Faciiit2010.

In 2009, we had cash inflows from the issgaof equity of $443.8 million primarily due toramitial public offering of 22.7 million
shares of common stock. We used the proceeds freroftering to redeem outstanding Notes with a {mtacipal amount of $400.9 million
at a premium, and used cash generated from opesatiaepay $336.5 million outstanding principaloamt on our Term Loan Facility. We
had no borrowings or repayments under the ABL Rgéil 2009. In addition, we paid a dividend anthted amounts totaling $239.7 million
using cash generated from operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statementadnordance with U.S. GAAP requires management tereatimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts and related disclosureadtiition to the estimates presented below, therether items within our financial
statements that require estimation, but are nanddecritical as defined below. We believe thesenedes are reasonable and appropriate.
However, if actual experience differs from the asptions and other considerations used, the reguitianges could have a material effec
the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Management believes the following polickesl estimates are critical because they involueifsdgnt judgments, assumptions, and
estimates. Management has discussed the developmeiselection of the critical accounting estimatith the Audit Committee of our
Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee haseeed the disclosures presented below relatingdse policies and estimates.

Merchandise Inventories. Merchandise inventories are stated at the l@feost or market with cost determined using #tail last-in,
first-out ("LIFO") method. Under our retail invemjomethod ("RIM"), the calculation of gross pradihd the resulting valuation of inventories
at cost are computed by applying a calculated tmesttail inventory ratio to the retail value olesat a department level. The RIM is an
averaging method that has been widely used indtadl industry due to its practicality. Also, itriscognized that the use of the RIM will re:
in valuing inventories at the lower of cost or n&trKLCM") if markdowns are currently taken as duetion of the retail value of inventories.

Inherent in the RIM calculation are certsignificant management judgments and estimatésdimg, among others, initial markups,
markdowns, and shrinkage, which significantly impthe gross profit calculation as well as the egditventory valuation at cost. These
significant estimates, coupled with the fact thet RIM is an averaging process, can, under cectesamstances, produce distorted cost
figures. Factors that can lead to distortion indhkeulation of the inventory balance include:

. applying the RIM to a group of products that is faatly uniform in terms of its cost and sellingqe relationship and turnover;

. applying the RIM to transactions over a periodiiet that include different rates of gross profifcis as those relating to
seasonal merchandise;

. inaccurate estimates of inventory shrinkage betwiemate of the last physical inventory at a storé the financial statement
date; and
. inaccurate estimates of LCM and/or LIFO reserves.

Factors that reduce potential distortioriide the use of historical experience in estinggtire shrink provision (see discussion below)
and an annual LIFO analysis whereby all SKUs arssiciered in the index formulation. An actual valotof inventory under the LIFO
method is made at the end of each year based onvifetory levels and costs at that time. Accortlinoterim LIFO calculations are based
on management's estimates of expected year-endtorydevels, sales for the year and the expeataf inflation/deflation for the year and
are thus subject to adjustment in the final yeat{drO inventory valuation. We also perform interinventory analysis for determining
obsolete inventory. Our policy is to write down émiory to an LCM value based on various manageassumptions including estimated
markdowns and sales required to liquidate suchnitorg in future periods. Inventory is reviewed oquarterly basis and adjusted to reflect
write-downs as appropriate.

Factors such as slower inventory turnower t changes in competitors' practices, consuneéen@gnces, consumer spending and
unseasonable weather patterns, among other factarsl cause excess inventory requiring greater #stimated markdowns to entice
consumer purchases, resulting in an unfavorabl@adtngn our consolidated financial statements. Salestfalls due to the above factors cc
cause reduced purchases from vendors and assoegatddr allowances that would also result in aravofable impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

We calculate our shrink provision basedotual physical inventory results during the figeatiod and an accrual for estimated shrink
occurring subsequent to a physical inventory thhoilng end of the fiscal reporting period. This aetis calculated as a percentage of sal
each retail store, at a department level, andteraened by dividing the book-to-physical invent@gjustments
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recorded during the previous twelve months by étated sales for the same period for each stor¢hd extent that subsequent physical
inventories yield different results than this estted accrual, our effective shrink rate for a giveporting period will include the impact of
adjusting the estimated results to the actual t2s@ilthough we perform physical inventories intwally all of our stores on an annual basis,
the same stores do not necessarily get countértisame reporting periods from year to year, whakld impact comparability in a given
reporting period.

We believe our estimates and assumptidatereto merchandise inventories have generally lbeeurate in recent years and we do not
currently anticipate material changes in thesenegtts and assumptions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsWe amortize intangible assets over their eggohaseful lives unless such lives are deemed
indefinite. If impairment indicators are noted, atimable intangible assets are tested for impaitrhbased on projected undiscounted cash
flows, and, if impaired, written down to fair valbased on either discounted projected cash floveppraised values. Future cash flow
projections are based on management's projectgigsificant judgments required in this testing @®& may include projecting future cash
flows, determining appropriate discount rates atheioassumptions. Projections are based on managerhest estimates given recent
financial performance, market trends, strategiopland other available information which in recgadrs have been materially accurate.
Although not currently anticipated, changes in ¢hestimates and assumptions could materially afffiectietermination of fair value or
impairment. Future indicators of impairment cowdgult in an asset impairment charge.

Under accounting standards for goodwill atiter intangible assets, we are required to tedt assets with indefinite lives for
impairment annually, or more frequently if impainméndicators occur. The goodwill impairment testitwo-step process that requires
management to make judgments in determining wisatragtions to use in the calculation. The first siEtfhe process consists of estimating
the fair value of our reporting unit based on vébratechniques (including a discounted cash flomdel using revenue and profit forecasts)
and comparing that estimated fair value with therded carrying value, which includes goodwilltHé estimated fair value is less than the
carrying value, a second step is performed to céenfinie amount of the impairment, if any, by deteing an "implied fair value" of
goodwill. The determination of the implied fair ual of goodwill would require us to allocate tharasted fair value of our reporting unit to
its assets and liabilities. Any unallocated failuearepresents the implied fair value of goodwilhich would be compared to its
corresponding carrying value.

The impairment test for indefinite-livedangible assets consists of a comparison of thev&hile of the intangible asset with its carrying
amount. If the carrying amount of an indefiniteelivintangible asset exceeds its fair value, an immgant loss is recognized in an amount
equal to that excess.

We completed testing on our goodwill andieifinite lived trade name intangible assets dutfiregthird quarter of 2011. No indicators of
impairment were evident and no adjustment to tlassets was required. We are not currently projgetidecline in cash flows that could be
expected to have an adverse effect such as aivivleft debt covenants or future impairment charges.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at costghdigp our assets into relatively homogeneous etasad
generally provide for depreciation on a straighelbasis over the estimated average useful ligaol asset class, except for leasehold
improvements, which are amortized over the lestrevapplicable lease term or the estimated udiédudf the asset. Certain store and
warehouse fixtures, when fully depreciated, areoneed from the cost and related accumulated degi@eiand amortization accounts. The
valuation and classification of these assets aacgs$isignment of depreciable lives involves sigaiftgudgments and the use of estimates,
which we believe have been materially accuratedent years.
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Impairment of Long-lived AssetsWe review the carrying value of long-lived @sder impairment at least annually, and whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tieatdtrying value of an asset may not be recoverbkccordance with accounting stand;
for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets,regew for impairment stores open for approximatalo years or more for which recent
cash flows from operations are negative. Impairmesilts when the carrying value of the assetsegisthe estimated undiscounted future
cash flows over the life of the lease. Our estinmditendiscounted future cash flows over the leas@ is based upon historical operations of
the stores and estimates of future store profitghilhich encompasses many factors that are sutgjecriability and are difficult to predict.

a long-lived asset is found to be impaired, the @amoecognized for impairment is equal to the défece between the carrying value and the
asset's estimated fair value. The fair value isneged based primarily upon projected future céslvs (discounted at our credit adjusted risk-
free rate) or other reasonable estimates of fatketavalue in accordance with U.S. GAAP. During 202010 and 2009 we recorded pre-tax

impairment charges of $1.0 million, $1.7 millionda®5.0 million, respectively, for certain storeetsshat we deemed to be impaired.

Insurance Liabilities. We retain a significant portion of the risk faur workers' compensation, employee health, ptgpess,
automobile and general liability. These represantiicant costs primarily due to the large empleymse and number of stores. Provisions
are made to these liabilities on an undiscountsisizsed on actual claim data and estimates ofrigat but not reported claims developed
using actuarial methodologies based on historieétctrends, which have been and are anticipatedmtinue to be materially accurate. If
future claim trends deviate from recent historjgatterns, we may be required to record additiorpépses or expense reductions, which
could be material to our future financial results.

Contingent Liabilities—Income TaxesIncome tax reserves are determined using thikadelogy established by accounting standards
relating to uncertainty in income taxes. Theseddaas require companies to assess each incomesiiop taken using a two step proces!
determination is first made as to whether it is enldely than not that the position will be sustdnbased upon the technical merits, upon
examination by the taxing authorities. If the tasiion is expected to meet the more likely thahamiberia, the benefit recorded for the tax
position equals the largest amount that is greatar 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settdat of the respective tax position.
Uncertain tax positions require determinations estiinated liabilities to be made based on provismirthe tax law which may be subject to
change or varying interpretation. If our determioras and estimates prove to be inaccurate, thétirgsadjustments could be material to our
future financial results.

Contingent Liabilities—Legal Matters. We are subject to legal, regulatory and otmecg@edings and claims. We establish liabilities as
appropriate for these claims and proceedings based the probability and estimability of losses &méhirly present, in conjunction with the
disclosures of these matters in our financial stet@s and SEC filings, management's view of oupsupe. We review outstanding claims
and proceedings with external counsel to asses&mbpildy and estimates of loss. We re-evaluatedlzssessments on a quarterly basis or as
new and significant information becomes availablddétermine whether a liability should be estalgigsbr if any existing liability should be
adjusted. The actual cost of resolving a claimrocgeding ultimately may be substantially differdran the amount of the recorded liability.
In addition, because it is not permissible unde3.\GAAP to establish a litigation liability unthé loss is both probable and estimable, in
some cases there may be insufficient time to astahlliability prior to the actual incurrence bgtloss (upon verdict and judgment at trial
example, or in the case of a quickly negotiatetleseent).

Lease Accounting and Excess Facilitiesviany of our stores are subject to build-to-sumiangements with landlords, which typically
carry a primary lease term of 10-15 years with ipldtrenewal options. We also have stores subgeshorter-term leases and many of these
leases have
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renewal options. As of February 3, 2012, approx@tya26% of our stores had provisions for contingentals based upon a percentage of
defined sales volume. We recognize contingent Fextzense when the achievement of specified satgets is considered probable. We
recognize rent expense over the term of the l&&serecord minimum rental expense on a straighthiasis over the base, non-cancelable
lease term commencing on the date that we takdagattymssession of the property from the landlerdich normally includes a period prior
to store opening to make necessary leasehold ireprexits and install store fixtures. When a leas¢agmna predetermined fixed escalation
of the minimum rent, we recognize the related sxpiense on a straight-line basis and record tlierdifce between the recognized rental
expense and the amounts payable under the lededesired rent. Tenant allowances, to the extertived, are recorded as deferred incentive
rent and amortized as a reduction to rent expewsetbe term of the lease. We reflect as a ligbdity difference between the calculated
expense and the amounts actually paid. Improvenuéiesised properties are amortized over the shoftihe life of the applicable lease te

or the estimated useful life of the asset.

For store closures (excluding those astettiaith a business combination) where a leasgatitin still exists, we record the estimated
future liability associated with the rental obliget on the date the store is closed in accordartteagcounting standards for costs associated
with exit or disposal activities. Based on an ollemalysis of store performance and expected semdnagement periodically evaluates the
need to close underperforming stores. Liabilitiesestablished at the point of closure for the gmesalue of any remaining operating lease
obligations, net of estimated sublease income aatide communication date for severance and ottiecasts. Key assumptions in calculai
the liability include the timeframe expected tatiérate lease agreements, estimates related taltihesse potential of closed locations, and
estimation of other related exit costs. Historigathese estimates have not been materially inateuinowever, if actual timing and potential
termination costs or realization of sublease incdiffer from our estimates, the resulting liab@gi could vary from recorded amounts. These
liabilities are reviewed periodically and adjustelden necessary.

Share-Based PaymentsOur share-based stock option awards are valneah individual grant basis using the Black-Scédlerton
closed form option pricing model. We believe thas tmodel fairly estimates the value of our shaasdd awards. The application of this
valuation model involves assumptions that are juelggad and highly sensitive in the valuation of &toptions, which affects compensation
expense related to these options. These assumpiiunde an estimate of the fair value of our comrstock, the term that the options are
expected to be outstanding, the historical votgtdf our stock price, applicable interest rated #ive dividend yield of our stock. Other fact
involving judgments that affect the expensing arehbased payments include estimated forfeitues raft share-based awards. Historically,
these estimates have not been materially inacgurateever, if our estimates differ materially fraotual experience, we may be required to
record additional expense or reductions of expembkih could be material to our future financiadus.

Fair Value Measurements. We measure fair value of assets and liabilitiemccordance with applicable accounting standavtigch
require that fair values be determined based oa¢eamptions that market participants would ug®iging the asset or liability. These
standards establish a fair value hierarchy thdingisishes between market participant assumptiassdon market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity (oka®evinputs that are classified within Levels 1 araf the hierarchy) and the reporting
entity's own assumptions about market participastimptions (unobservable inputs classified witherdl 3 of the hierarchy). Therefore,
Level 3 inputs are typically based on an entityim @ssumptions, as there is little, if any, relateatket activity, and thus require the use of
significant judgment and estimates. Currently, \weehno assets or liabilities that are valued baségly on Level 3 inputs.

Our fair value measurements are primaskoaiated with our derivative financial instrumeims$angible assets, property and equipment,
and to a lesser degree our investments. The vafums derivative financial instruments are deteved using widely accepted valuation
techniques, including
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discounted cash flow analysis on the expected fasis of each derivative. This analysis reflects dontractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses obsdevatarket-based inputs, including interest rateesir The fair values of interest rate swaps
are determined using the market standard methogalbgetting the discounted future fixed cash paytador receipts) and the discounted
expected variable cash receipts (or payments)vahable cash receipts (or payments) are based ex@ectation of future interest rates
(forward curves) derived from observable markegnest rate curves. In recent years, these methgidslbave produced materially accurate
valuations.

Derivative Financial Instruments. We account for our derivative instruments in@dance with accounting standards for derivative
instruments (including certain derivative instruseembedded in other contracts) and hedging adesyias amended and interpreted, which
establish accounting and reporting requirementstich instruments and activities. These standaqisne that every derivative instrument
recorded in the balance sheet as either an askabitity measured at its fair value, and thatmfes in the derivative's fair value be
recognized currently in earnings unless specifitlgleeaccounting criteria are met. See "Fair Valuaddeements" above for a discussion of
derivative valuations. Special accounting for dyalg hedges allows a derivative's gains and lossesther offset related results on the
hedged item in the statement of operations or beraalated in other comprehensive income, and regirat a company formally document,
designate, and assess the effectiveness of traomsathtat receive hedge accounting. We use deratstruments to manage our exposure to
changing interest rates, primarily with intereserswaps.

In addition to making valuation estimat&s, also bear the risk that certain derivative insents that have been designated as hedgt
currently meet the strict hedge accounting requar@simay not qualify in the future as "highly effee,” as defined, as well as the risk that
hedged transactions in cash flow hedging relatipssmay no longer be considered probable to odauther, new interpretations and
guidance related to these instruments may be issube future, and we cannot predict the possibfeact that such guidance may have on
our use of derivative instruments going forward.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK
Financial Risk Management

We are exposed to market risk primarilyriradverse changes in interest rates, and to a lésgeee commodity prices. To minimize t
risk, we may periodically use financial instrumenteluding derivatives. As a matter of policy, de not buy or sell financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes and all derivdiiv@ncial instrument transactions must be authdremed executed pursuant to approval by
Board of Directors. All financial instrument positis taken by us are intended to be used to redglcby hedging an underlying economic
exposure. Because of high correlation between ¢hieative financial instrument and the underlyingpesure being hedged, fluctuations in
the value of the financial instruments are gengafiiset by reciprocal changes in the value ofithderlying economic exposure.

Interest Rate Risk

We manage our interest rate risk throughstihategic use of fixed and variable interest datet and, from time to time, derivative
financial instruments. Our principal interest rafgosure relates to outstanding amounts under mditG-acilities. As of February 3, 2012,
we had variable rate borrowings of $1.964 billierdar our Term Loan Facility and $184.7 million undar ABL Facility. The maximum
availability under our ABL Facility was increaserd®1.2 billion on March 15, 2012 as described ahowder "Liquidity and Capital
Resources." In order to mitigate a portion of theable rate interest exposure under the Creditiffeg, we entered into certain interest rate
swaps which became effective on July 31, 2007.Runtsto these swaps, we swapped three month LIB@HR for
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fixed interest rates, resulting in the paymentrof#i-in fixed rate of 7.68% on an original notibaaount of $2.0 billion originally scheduled
to amortize on a quarterly basis until maturityally 31, 2012.

In October 2008, a counterparty to onewf2007 swap agreements defaulted. We terminate@dgfneement and in November 2008 we
subsequently cash settled the swap. Representafities counterparty challenged our calculatiothefcash settlement, and this matter was
settled in 2011 as described in "Legal Proceedingsr Note 9 of the footnotes to the consolidéitehcial statements. As of February 3,
2012, the notional amount under the remaining Z8@aps is $233.3 million.

Effective December 31, 2008, we entered s$475.0 million interest rate swap in order ftigate an additional portion of the variable
rate interest exposure under the Credit Facilifiéds swap is scheduled to mature on January 313.20nder the terms of this agreement we
swapped one month LIBOR rates for fixed interesgaresulting in the payment of a fixed rate 8656 on a notional amount of
$475.0 million through April 2010, $400.0 millionoim May 2010 through October 2011, and $300.0 onilto maturity.

A change in interest rates on variable dafet impacts our pre-tax earnings and cash flahgreas a change in interest rates on fixed
rate debt impacts the economic fair value of deivtiot our pre-tax earnings and cash flows. Owrest rate swaps qualify for hedge
accounting as cash flow hedges. Therefore, chaingearket fluctuations related to the effectivetfmor of these cash flow hedges do not
impact our pre-tax earnings until the accrued egers recognized on the derivatives and the assathedged debt. Based on our variable
rate borrowing levels and interest rate swaps anthhg during 2011 and 2010, the annualized efeatone percentage point change in
variable interest rates would have resulted inedigarreduction of our earnings and cash flows pfaxamately $16.3 million in 2011 and
$9.3 million in 2010.

The conditions and uncertainties in thébglaredit markets have increased the credit rigkloer counterparties to our swap agreemt
In the event such counterparties fail to perforrdarrour swap agreements and we are unable toiatderew swap agreements on terms
favorable to us, our ability to effectively maname interest rate risk may be materially impaifdte attempt to manage counterparty credit
risk by periodically evaluating the financial pamit and creditworthiness of such counterpartiesjitodng the amount for which we are at
risk with each counterparty, and where possibkpelising the risk among multiple counterpartie®r&€ltan be no assurance that we will
manage or mitigate our counterparty credit riskaffely.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselithilance sheets of Dollar General Corporationsabdidiaries as of February 3, 2012
January 28, 2011, and the related consolidatedrstatts of income, shareholders' equity, and casisffor each of the three years in the
period ended February 3, 2012. These financiastants are the responsibility of the Company's igamant. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemersisdoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes, assessing the accountingipt@scused and significant estimates made by managg as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementieneed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Dollar General Corporation and subsidiaries at &afyr 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011, and the cordetidesults of their operations and t
cash flows for each of the three years in the plezinded February 3, 2012, in conformity with U.8nerally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), Dollar
General Corporation and subsidiaries' internalrobiiver financial reporting as of February 3, 208&2sed on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion and our report dated
March 22, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinioretbre

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 22, 2012
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

February 3, January 28,
2012 2011

ASSETS
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivale $ 126,12« $ 497,44¢

Merchandise inventorie 2,009,201 1,765,43.

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 139,74. 104,94t

Total current asse 2,275,07. 2,367,82!
Net property and equipme 1,794,96! 1,524,57!
Goodwill 4,338,58! 4,338,58
Other intangible assets, r 1,235,95. 1,256,92;
Other assets, n 43,94 58,31
Total asset $ 9,688,520 $ 9,546,22:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current portion of lon-term obligation: $ 50C $ 1,157

Accounts payabl 1,064,08 953,64:

Accrued expenses and ott 397,07! 347,74:

Income taxes payab 44.,42¢ 25,98(

Deferred income taxe 3,722 36,85¢

Total current liabilities 1,509,90. 1,365,37.
Long-term obligations 2,617,89. 3,287,07!
Deferred income taxe 656,99t 598,56!
Other liabilities 229,14 231,58
Commitments and contingenci
Redeemable common sto 6,08 9,15:
Shareholders' equit

Preferred stock, 1,000 shares author — —

Common stock; $0.875 par value, 1,000,000 shartt®@ared,

338,089 and 341,507 shares issued and outstandifepeuary 3
2012 and January 28, 2011, respecti 295,82¢ 298,81¢

Additional paic-in capital 2,960,94! 2,945,02.

Retained earning 1,416,91 830,93:

Accumulated other comprehensive |i (5,197 (20,29¢)

Total shareholders' equi 4,668,49! 4,054,47
Total liabilities and shareholders' eqL $ 9,688,521 $ 9,546,22.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales
Cost of goods sol

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Operating profit

Interest incomt

Interest expens

Other (income) expen:

Income before income tax
Income tax expens

Net income

Earnings per shan

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shart
Basic
Diluted

For the Year Ended

February 3, January 28, January 29,
2012 2011 2010

$ 14,807,18 $ 13,035,00 $ 11,796,38

10,109,27 8,858,44.  8,106,50'
4,697,911  4,17655 _ 3,689,87
3,207,100  2,902,49  2,736,61
1,490,80.  1,274,06 953,25t

(91) (220) (144)
204,99; 274,21; 345,74«
60,61 15,10 55,54
1,225,28! 984,97: 552,11
458,60- 357,11t 212,67

$ 766,68' $ 627,85 $ 339,44

$ 228 ¢ 184 $ 1.0%
$ 22z % 18z $ 1.04
341,23: 341,04 322,77t
345,11 344,80( 324,83t

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Accumulated
Common Additional Other
Stock Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Stock Capital Earnings Loss Total

Balances,
January 30,200 317,84! $278,11: $2,489,64 $ 103,36: $ (39,43() $2,831,69!
Comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — 339,44: — 339,44:
Unrealized net
gain on hedge
transactions, n
of income tax
expense of
$2,553 — — — — 5,26° 5,26°
Comprehensive
income 344,70!
Issuance of
common stocl 22,70( 19,86: 421,29¢ — — 441,16:
Cash dividends,
$0.7525 per
common share,
and related
amounts — — —  (239,73) —  (239,73)
Share-based
compensation
expense — — 15,00¢ — — 15,00¢
Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises — — 3,07z — — 3,072
Issuance of
common stock
under stock
incentive plan: 304 26€ 2,02( — — 2,28¢
Other equity
settlements unde
stock incentive
plans (2639 (230 (7,670 — — (7,900
Balances,
January 29,201 340,58t $298,01: $2,923,37 $ 203,07 $ (34,167 $3,390,29:
Comprehensive
income:
Net income — — — 627,85 — 627,85
Unrealized net gai
on hedged
transactions, net
of income tax
expense of
$9,406 — — — — 13,87: 13,87:
Comprehensive
income 641,72¢
Share-based
compensation
expense — — 12,80¢ — — 12,80¢
Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises — — 10,11(C — — 10,11¢(
Issuance of
common stock
under stock
incentive plan 93 82 1,94: — — 2,02t




Exercise of stock
options

Other equity
settlements unde
stock incentive
plans

Balances,
January 28, 201

Comprehensive
income:

Net income

Unrealized net gai
on hedged
transactions, net
of income tax
expense of
$9,692

Comprehensive
income

Share-based
compensation
expense

Repurchase of
common stock
from principal
shareholde

Tax benefit from
stock option
exercises

Exercise of stock
options

Other equity
settlements unde
stock incentive
plans

Balances,
February 3, 201

872 762 (8,399) — — (7,636)
(44) (39) 5,18¢ — — 5,14¢
341,50° $298,81¢ $2,945,02. $ 830,93: $ (20,296 $4,054,47!
— — — 766,68 — 766,68

— — — — 15,10¢ 15,10¢
781,79

— — 15,25( — — 15,25(
(4,916 (4,309 — (180,699 — (185,000
— — 27,72 — — 27,72
1,53¢  134: (28,419 — —  (27,07)
(36) (32 1,35¢ — — 1,32¢
338,08¢ $295,82¢ $2,960,941 $1,416,91 $ (5,197) $4,668,49!

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigen

by operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe

Tax benefit of stock optior

Loss on debt retirement, r
Noncash sha-based compensatic

Noncash inventory adjustments and asset impairn

Other noncash gains and los

Change in operating assets and liabilit

Merchandise inventorie

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expenses and other liabilit

Income taxe:
Other

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm

Proceeds from sales of property and equipr

Net cash used in investing activit|

Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of common sto
Repayments of lor-term obligation:

Borrowings under revolving credit facili

Repayments of borrowings under revolving creditlitsc
Repurchase of common stock from principal shared
Payment of cash dividends and related amc

Equity settlements with employees, net of taxed

Tax benefit of stock optior
Net cash used in financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents, end of \

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid for

Interest

Income taxe:

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding

activities:

Purchases of property and equipment awaiting psitgs
for payment, included in Accounts paya

(In thousands)

For the Year Ended

February 3, January 28, January 29,
2012 2011 2010

$ 766,68! $ 627,85 $ 339,44

275,40¢  25492° 256,77
10,23: 50,98t 14,86(
(33,109 (13,909 (5,390)
60,30: 14,57¢ 55,26%
15,25( 15,95¢ 17,29t
48,67 7,607 647
5,517 5,947 7,92(

(291,49) (251,809 (100,24
(34,55)  (10,15) (7,299)
104,44,  12342. 106,04

71,760 (42,420 (12,649
51,55( 42,90: 1,15¢
(195) (1,199 (1,000
1,050,481 824,68 672,82

(514,867  (420,39) (250,74)
1,02€ 1,44¢ 2,701

(513,83)  (418,94) (248,04

177 631 443,75
(911,95) (131,18 (784,18
1,157,801 — —

(973,100 — —
(185,00() — —
— —  (239,73)
(28,999 (13,729 (5,925)
33,10: 13,90¢ 5,39(

(907,969 (130,367  (580,69¢

(371,32) = 27537( (155,919
497,44(  222,07¢ 377,99

$ 126,12t $ 497,44t $ 222,07t

$ 209,35 $ 244,75. $ 328,43
382,29: 314,12 187,98:

$ 3566: $ 29,65¢ $ 30,39

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies
Basis of presentation

These notes contain references to the ydrs, 2010 and 2009, which represent fiscal yeaded February 3, 2012, January 28, 2011,
and January 29, 2010, respectively. 2011 was adekwccounting period while 2010 and 2009 were B2kwaccounting periods. The
Company's fiscal year ends on the Friday close3atoary 31. The consolidated financial statementsde all subsidiaries of the Company,
except for its not-for-profit subsidiary which tB®mpany does not control. Intercompany transacti@ave been eliminated.

Business description

The Company sells general merchandiseretad basis through 9,937 stores (as of Februa®032) in 38 states covering most of the
southern, southwestern, midwestern and eastered)8itates. The Company owns distribution cent®&€¢") in Scottsville, Kentucky; Sou
Boston, Virginia; Alachua, Florida; Zanesville, ®hdonesville, South Carolina and Marion, Indisarad leases DCs in Ardmore, Oklahoma,;
Fulton, Missouri and Indianola, Mississippi. At FFeary 3, 2012, the Company has a DC under congiruct Bessemer, Alabama which it
will own and has leased space for a DC in Lebedtfd®aia, neither of which were operational at tlate.

The Company purchases its merchandise &ravite variety of suppliers. Approximately 8% ard @f the Company's purchases in 2
were made from the Company's largest and secogdsasuppliers, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highlyidi investments with insignificant interest rakrand original maturities of three months or
less when purchased. Such investments primarilgisbaf money market funds, bank deposits, cedtiéis of deposit (which may include
foreign time deposits), and commercial paper. Tdreying amounts of these items are a reasonabiaastof their fair value due to the short
maturity of these investments.

Payments due from processors for electr@mder transactions classified as cash and cashadents totaled approximately
$38.7 million and $26.1 million at February 3, 2GRl January 28, 2011, respectively.

The Company's cash management system gofad daily investment of available balances dedftinding of outstanding checks when
presented for payment. Outstanding but unpresetitecks totaling approximately $148.3 million anéd$>5 million at February 3, 2012 and
January 28, 2011, respectively, have been includédcounts payable in the consolidated balancetshé&lpon presentation for payment,
these checks are funded through available cashdsdar the Company's credit facilities.

At February 3, 2012, the Company maintaiceegsh balances to meet a $20 million minimum thotesket by insurance regulators, as
further described below under "Insurance liab#itie

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Company accounts for investments irt dald marketable equity securities as held-to-nitgtuavailable-for-sale, or trading,
depending on their classification. Debt securities
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categorized as held-to-maturity are stated at amsaricost. Debt and equity securities categorizeavailable-for-sale are stated at fair value,
with any unrealized gains and losses, net of defienmcome taxes, reported as a component of Acateuibther comprehensive loss. Tra¢
securities (primarily mutual funds held pursuantiéderred compensation and supplemental retireplans, as further discussed below in
Notes 7 and 10) are stated at fair value, with gbharnn fair value recorded as a component of Sglgeneral and administrative ("SG&A
expense. Historical cost information pertaininghtese investments in mutual funds by participamthé Company's supplemental retirement
and compensation deferral plans is not readilylabks to the Company.

For the years ended February 3, 2012, dgrd#a 2011 and January 29, 2010, gross realizat @ad losses on the sales of available-for-
sale securities were not material. The cost of riesi sold is based upon the specific identificatmethod.

Merchandise inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket with cost determined using the retait-ia, first-out ("LIFO") method as this method
results in a better matching of costs and reverluieder the Company's retail inventory method ("RJMhe calculation of gross profit and
resulting valuation of inventories at cost are cated by applying a calculated cost-to-retail inegptratio to the retail value of sales at a
department level. Costs directly associated withelvausing and distribution are capitalized intceimtory. The excess of current cost over
LIFO cost was approximately $100.5 million and $b&iillion at February 3, 2012 and January 28, 20d4pectively. Current cost is
determined using the RIM on a first-in, first-owsis. Under the LIFO inventory method, the impaétdsing or falling market price changes
increase or decrease cost of sales (the LIFO poov@ benefit). The Company recorded a LIFO prioviof $47.7 million in 2011, a LIFO
provision of $5.3 million in 2010, and a LIFO beineff $2.5 million in 2009.

The 2011 LIFO provision was impacted byéased commodity costs related to food, housevearg@spparel products which were
driven by increases in cotton, sugar, coffee, gdoun resin, petroleum and other raw material codity@osts. These product costs were
relatively stable in 2010 and 2009.

Vendor rebates

The Company accounts for all cash consieraeceived from vendors in accordance with agfilie accounting standards pertaining to
such arrangements. Cash consideration receiveddreemdor is generally presumed to be a rebata al@wance and is accounted for as a
reduction of merchandise purchase costs as eatnwseever, certain specific, incremental and otheevgaalifying SG&A expenses related to
the promotion or sale of vendor products may bsetfiby cash consideration received from vendorac@ordance with arrangements such as
cooperative advertising, when earned for dollar @m® up to but not exceeding actual incrementakcos

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Prepaid expenses and other current asedigle prepaid amounts for rent, maintenance, édirag, and insurance, as well as amounts
receivable for insurance related to a litigatiotilement discussed in greater detail in Note 9, @tthin vendor rebates (primarily those
expected to be collected in cash) and coupons.
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Property and equipment

In 2007, as the result of a merger tramsacthe Company's property and equipment was decbat estimated fair values. Property and
equipment acquired subsequent to the merger hasrbeerded at cost. The Company's property angetgiit is summarized as follows:

February 3, January 28,

(In thousands) 2012 2011
Land and land improvemer $ 204,56 $ 174,43
Buildings 622,84! 575,30!
Leasehold improvemen 213,85: 173,83
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 1,500,26: 1,235,75
Construction in progres 139,45: 17,93:

2,680,98! 2,177,26!
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 886,02! 652,69:
Net property and equipme $ 1,794,961 $ 1,524,57!

The Company provides for depreciation amérization on a straight-line basis over the failog estimated useful lives (in years):

Land improvement 20
Buildings 39-4C
Leasehold improvemen (@
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-1C

€)) amortized over the shorter of the life of the apgdble lease term or the estimated useful life efabset

Depreciation expense related to propertyegquipment was approximately $243.7 million, $Z1illion and $201.1 million for 2011,
2010 and 2009. Amortization of capital lease assdtecluded in depreciation expense. Interestamdwved funds during the construction of
property and equipment is capitalized where apblednterest costs of $1.5 million were capitadize 2011. No interest costs were
capitalized in 2010 or 2009.

Impairment of long-lived assets

When indicators of impairment are presth@,Company evaluates the carrying value of liived assets, other than goodwill, in relat
to the operating performance and future cash flomtbe appraised values of the underlying assetct¢ordance with accounting standards
for long-lived assets, the Company reviews for impant stores open more than two years for whiehecu cash flows from operations are
negative. Impairment results when the carrying @atithe assets exceeds the undiscounted futunefloass over the life of the lease. The
Company's estimate of undiscounted future cashsflover the lease term is based upon historicaldipes of the stores and estimates of
future store profitability which encompasses maantdrs that are subject to variability and diffical predict. If a long-lived asset is found to
be impaired, the amount recognized for impairmgmgjual to the difference between the carryingevahd the asset's estimated fair value.
The fair value is

60




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies @@tinued)

estimated based primarily upon estimated futuré 8asvs (discounted at the Company's credit adfusgk-free rate) or other reasonable
estimates of fair market value. Assets to be dispad are adjusted to the fair value less the twosell if less than the book value.

The Company recorded impairment chargdsded in SG&A expense of approximately $1.0 millior2011, $1.7 million in 2010 and
$5.0 million in 2009, to reduce the carrying vatfeertain of its stores' assets. Such action weasned necessary based on the Company's
evaluation that such amounts would not be recoleaimarily due to insufficient sales or excesstests resulting in negative current and
projected future cash flows at these locations.

Gooduwill and other intangible assets

The Company amortizes intangible assets thedr estimated useful lives unless such livesdemed indefinite. Amortizable intangible
assets are tested for impairment when indicatonmpéirment are present, based on undiscountedficags, and if impaired, written down"
fair value based on either discounted cash flovappraised values.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indéérlives are tested for impairment annually or efsequently if indicators of impairment are
present and written down to fair value as requiMalimpairment of intangible assets has been ifiedtduring any of the periods presented.

The goodwill impairment test is a two-sfgpcess that requires management to make judgnmedétermining what assumptions to use
in the calculation. The first step of the procemsssists of estimating the fair value of the Compangporting unit based on valuation
techniques (including a discounted cash flow madelg revenue and profit forecasts) and compahagdstimated fair value with the
recorded carrying value, which includes goodwilthe estimated fair value is less than the cagyialue, a second step is performed to
compute the amount of the impairment by determimingimplied fair value" of goodwill. The determiien of the implied fair value of
goodwill would require the Company to allocate ¢#séimated fair value of its reporting unit to issats and liabilities. Any unallocated fair
value would represent the implied fair value of dwdl, which would be compared to its correspondaagrying value.

Other assets

Non-current Other assets consist primanfilgualifying prepaid expenses, debt issuance ausitsh are amortized over the life of the
related obligations, deferred compensation obligesti and utility and security deposits.
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Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued expenses and other consist ofahewing:

February 3, January 28,

(In thousands) 2012 2011

Compensation and benef $ 76,98¢ $ 81,78¢
Insurance 78,23t 76,37
Taxes (other than taxes on incor 107,95: 74,90(
Other 133,89¢ 114,68:

$ 397,07 $ 347,74

Other accrued expenses primarily inclugedinrent portion of liabilities for legal settlenis, freight expense, contingent rent expense,
interest, utilities, derivatives, and common ared ather maintenance charges.

Insurance liabilities

The Company retains a significant portibnigk for its workers' compensation, employee tieajeneral liability, property and
automobile claim exposures. Accordingly, provisians made for the Company's estimates of such. fi$lesundiscounted future claim costs
for the workers' compensation, general liabilityd dealth claim risks are derived using actuarieihods. To the extent that subsequent claim
costs vary from those estimates, future resultgpefations will be affected. Ashley River Insura@mmpany ("ARIC"), a South Carolina-
based wholly owned captive insurance subsidiath@fCompany, charges the operating subsidiary coi@pg@remiums to insure the retained
workers' compensation and non-property generalitiaexposures. Pursuant to South Carolina insceargulations, ARIC is required to
maintain certain levels of cash and cash equivsletated to its self insured exposures. ARIC aulyensures no unrelated third-party risk.

As a result of a merger transaction, in20@& Company recorded its assumed self-insurasszves at their present value in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, using a distoate of 5.4%. The balance of the remainingaliat was $3.3 million and $4.8 million
February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011, respecti@her than for reserves assumed in a businesbination, the Company's policy is to
record self-insurance reserves on an undiscourgsid.b

Operating leases and related liabilities

Rent expense is recognized over the tertheofease. The Company records minimum rentalresgoen a straight-line basis over the
base, non-cancelable lease term commencing oratedftht the Company takes physical possessidregiroperty from the landlord, which
normally includes a period prior to the store opgrtio make necessary leasehold improvements atal istore fixtures. When a lease
contains a predetermined fixed escalation of th@mim rent, the Company recognizes the relatedergmtnse on a straight-line basis and
records the difference between the recognizedIrerpeense and the amounts payable under the |easeferred rent. Tenant allowances, to
the extent received, are recorded as deferredtiveerent and are amortized as a reduction toegpense over the term of the lease. Any
difference between the calculated expense andnioeiigts actually paid are reflected as a liabilitith the current portion in Accrued
expenses and other and the
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long-term portion in Other liabilities in the cofisated balance sheets, and totaled approximagly3$million and $23.2 million at
February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011, respectively

The Company recognizes contingent rentaéege when the achievement of specified salestsaage considered probable, in
accordance with applicable accounting standardsdotingent rent. The amount expensed but notagsainf February 3, 2012 and January
2011 was approximately $9.4 million and $9.2 millioespectively, and is included in Accrued expsras®l other in the consolidated balance
sheets (See Note 9).

In the normal course of business, baseahooverall analysis of store performance and eggettends, management periodically
evaluates the need to close underperforming st@eserally, for store closures where a lease diitigatill exists, the Company records the
estimated future liability associated with the e¢mbligation on the date the store is closed ooetance with applicable accounting stand;
for costs associated with exit or disposal actgitiKey assumptions in calculating the liabilitglirde the timeframe expected to terminate
lease agreements, estimates related to the sulpetesgial of closed locations, and estimationtbio related exit costs. Liabilities are
reviewed periodically and adjusted when necesddrg.current portion of the closed store rent liik reflected in Accrued expenses and
other and the long-term portion in Other liabikti@ the consolidated balance sheets, and totalexxmately $4.9 million and $7.0 million
at February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011, respdgctiv

Other liabilities
Non-current Other liabilities consist oétfollowing:

February 3, January 28,

(In thousands) 2012 2011

Compensation and benef $ 1757C $ 14,53
Insurance 137,89: 131,91:
Income tax related reserv 41,13( 27,25¢
Derivatives (see Note ¢ — 34,92:
Other 32,55¢ 22,96

$ 229,14¢ $ 231,58

Amounts reflected as "other" in the talidexae consist primarily of deferred rent and leas@mct termination liabilities for closed
stores.

Fair value accounting

The Company utilizes accounting standaods$dir value, which include the definition of faialue, the framework for measuring fair
value, and disclosures about fair value measuresnEatr value is a market-based measurement, nentitg-specific measurement.
Therefore, a fair value measurement should be miéted based on the assumptions that market paatitspvould use in pricing the asset or
liability. As a basis for considering market papant assumptions in fair value measurementsyédire accounting standards establish a fair
value hierarchy that distinguishes between maragtgipant assumptions based on market data olatdiinen sources independent of the
reporting entity (observable inputs that are cfasiwithin Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and thporting entity's own assumptions about
market participant assumptions (unobservable inglassified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).
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Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unestigd) in active markets for identical assetsabilities that the Company has the ability to
access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than qumieds included in Level 1 that are directly adirectly observable for the asset or liability.
Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for siméasets and liabilities in active markets, as @aglinputs that are observable for the asset ol
liability (other than quoted prices), such as iestrates, foreign exchange rates, and yield cuhatsare observable at commonly quoted
intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpatgtie asset or liability, which are based on aityém own assumptions, as there is little, if
any, related market activity. In instances wheeedbtermination of the fair value measurement $ta@n inputs from different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair valuerarchy within which the entire fair value measuemt falls is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measuremaerits entirety. The Company's assessment of thfigignce of a particular input to the fair
value measurement in its entirety requires judgraedtconsiders factors specific to the asset bilitia

The valuation of the Company's derivativacial instruments is determined using widelyegted valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected ftasis of each derivative. This analysis reflects tontractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses obsdesatmrket-based inputs, including interest ratesesir The fair values of interest rate swaps
are determined using the market standard methogalbgetting the discounted future fixed cash paytador receipts) and the discounted
expected variable cash receipts (or payments)va@liable cash receipts (or payments) are based enectation of future interest rates
(forward curves) derived from observable marketriast rate curves.

The Company incorporates credit valuatidjustments (CVASs) to appropriately reflect bothaten nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty's nonperformance riskénfélir value measurements. In adjusting the fdinevaf its derivative contracts for the eff
of nonperformance risk, the Company has considreimpact of netting and any applicable creditagrd@ments, such as collateral postil
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.

The Company has determined that the mgjofithe inputs used to value its derivatives féathin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
However, the CVAs associated with its derivativélize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of curoeatlit spreads to evaluate the likelihood
of default by itself and its counterparties. Adebruary 3, 2012, the Company has assessed thcsigoe of the impact of the CVAs on the
overall valuation of its derivative positions arashdetermined that the CVAs are not significarth&ooverall valuation of its derivatives.
Based on the Company's review of the CVAs by capatty portfolio, the Company has determined that@VAs are not significant to the
overall portfolio valuations, as the CVAs are dedrteebe immaterial in terms of basis points andaavery small percentage of the aggregate
notional value. Although some of the CVAs as a pstage of termination value appear to be more fadgunit, primary emphasis was placed
on a review of the CVA in basis points and the petage of the notional value. As a result, the Camgghas determined that its derivative
valuations in their entirety are classified in LERef the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative finahtistruments in accordance with accounting statsdfor derivative instruments and
hedging activities. All financial instrument positis taken by the Company are intended to be useditwe risk by hedging an underlying
economic exposure.
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The Company records all derivatives onldghlkance sheet at fair value. The accounting fongksa in the fair value of derivatives depe
on the intended use of the derivative, whetheQbmpany has elected to designate a derivativenigdging relationship and apply hedge
accounting and whether the hedging relationshipshésfied the criteria necessary to apply hedgewtting. Derivatives designated and
qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to chang#seifiair value of an asset, liability, or firm coritment attributable to a particular risk, st
as interest rate risk, are considered fair valugbs. Derivatives designated and qualifying asdgé®f the exposure to variability in
expected future cash flows, or other types of faséed transactions, are considered cash flow heBgeiwatives may also be designated as
hedges of the foreign currency exposure of a netstment in a foreign operation. Hedge accountavieeally provides for the matching of
the timing of gain or loss recognition on the hedginstrument with the recognition of the changethe fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risla fair value hedge or the earnings effect ofttbdged forecasted transactions in a cash flow
hedge. The Company may enter into derivative cotdrthat are intended to economically hedge aiogptartion of its risk, even though
hedge accounting does not apply or the Companysatet to apply the hedge accounting standards.

The Company's derivative financial instrumse in the form of interest rate swaps at Febr@a2012, are related to variable interest rate
risk exposures associated with the Company's leng-tiebt and were entered into in an effort to rgarthat risk. The counterparties to the
Company's derivative agreements are all majornaténal financial institutions. The Company couotfly monitors its position and the
credit ratings of its counterparties and does ntitiate nonperformance by the counterparties.

Revenue and gain recognition

The Company recognizes retail sales intises at the time the customer takes possessimerhandise. All sales are net of discounts
and estimated returns and are presented net of éssessed by governmental authorities that aresieapconcurrent with those sales. The
liability for retail merchandise returns is basedtibe Company's prior experience. The Company dsogain contingencies when realized.

The Company recognizes gift card salesmeeat the time of redemption. The liability foetyift cards is established for the cash value
at the time of purchase. The liability for outstamdgift cards was approximately $2.9 million ar@i4million at February 3, 2012 and
January 28, 2011, respectively, and is recordéktorued expenses and other liabilities. Throughrraty 3, 2012, the Company has not
recorded any breakage income related to its gift pepogram.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed upon pedogg, "first showing" or distribution, and are eetied in SG&A expenses net of earned
cooperative advertising amounts provided by venddrish are specific, incremental and otherwise ifigia expenses related to the
promotion or sale of vendor products for dollar amts up to but not exceeding actual incrementabkcésivertising costs were $50.4 millic
$46.9 million and $41.5 million in 2011, 2010 ar@DQ, respectively. These costs primarily includenpotional circulars, targeted circulars
supporting new stores, television and radio adsiedi in-store signage, and costs associated hatlsponsorships of certain automobile
racing activities.
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Vendor funding for cooperative advertising offsgparted expenses by $20.8 million, $14.2 milliod &9.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Share-based payments

The Company recognizes compensation exgensdare-based compensation based on the faie vdlthe awards on the grant date.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuasiod reduce expense ratably over the vesting pefitd.estimate may be adjusted
periodically based on the extent to which actudkftures differ, or are expected to differ, fronetprior estimate. The forfeiture rate is the
estimated percentage of options granted that grected to be forfeited or canceled before becorhilhg vested. The Company bases this
estimate on historical experience or estimatesitofré trends, as applicable. An increase in thieitoire rate will decrease compensation
expense.

The fair value of each option grant is safmy estimated and amortized into compensatigerese on a straight-line basis between the
applicable grant date and each vesting date. Thep@oy has estimated the fair value of all stockoopawards as of the grant date by
applying the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricinduaion model. The application of this valuationdaebinvolves assumptions that are
judgmental and highly sensitive in the determinatd compensation expen:

The Company calculates compensation expensmnvested restricted stock and similar awaslthe difference between the market
price of the underlying stock on the grant date #edourchase price, if any, and recognizes suauaton a straight-line basis over the
period in which the recipient earns the nonveststricted stock and similar awards.

Store pre-opening costs
Pre-opening costs related to new store iogerand the related construction periods are esguéas incurred.
Income taxes

Under the accounting standards for incaames, the asset and liability method is used farmging the future income tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the Company'solidated financial statements or income eétxrns. Deferred income tax expense or
benefit is the net change during the year in them@any's deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

The Company includes income tax relateerest and penalties as a component of the provisitancome tax expense.

Income tax reserves are determined usimgthodology which requires companies to assessiragime tax position taken using a two
step process. A determination is first made ashether it is more likely than not that the positieitl be sustained, based upon the technical
merits, upon examination by the taxing authoritiethe tax position is expected to meet the mikely than not criteria, the benefit recorded
for the tax position equals the largest amountithgteater than 50% likely to be realized upoimate settlement of the respective tax
position. Uncertain tax positions require deterrtiores and estimated liabilities to be made basepgrowisions of the tax law which may be
subject to change or varying interpretation. If @@mpany's determinations and estimates prove odoeurate, the resulting adjustments
could be material to the Company's future finaneallts.
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Management estimates

The preparation of financial statements ratated disclosures in conformity with accountprnciples generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates sunthpisons that affect the reported amounts of ass® liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efdtnsolidated financial statements and the regp@t@ounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods. Actual results could difiem those estimates.

Accounting standards

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accoustiaigdards update which revises the manner in wéitlies present comprehensive income
in their financial statements. The new standardorea the presentation options in current guidanderaquires entities to report components
of comprehensive income in either a continuouesiant of comprehensive income or separate but cuotige statements. The new standard
does not change the items that must be reportether comprehensive income. In addition, in Decam204 1, the FASB issued a related
amendment which defers the requirement to presenponents of reclassifications of other comprehensicome on the face of the income
statement. For public entities, the amendmentsfeetive for fiscal years, and interim periodshiitthose years, beginning after
December 15, 2011. The Company will adopt this gude in the first quarter of 2012, and does noeexpuch adoption to have a material
effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications of the 2010 aA@@2amounts have been made to conform to the 2@Eemptation.
2. Common stock transactions

On November 30, 2011, the Company's Bo&Rirectors authorized a $500 million common stoegurchase program. Under the
program, shares of the Company's common stock maggurchased from time to time in open marketsi@ations or in privately negotiated
purchases, which could include repurchases fronCtimapany's controlling shareholder, Buck Holdirg®,. (which is controlled by affiliate
of Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. ("KKR") ari@bldman Sachs & Co), or other related parties rapriate. The timing and actual
number of shares purchased will depend on a vaoiefgetors, such as price, market conditions aheérofactors. Repurchases under the
program may be funded from available cash or bamgsvunder the Company's revolving credit facilifjie repurchase authorization has no
expiration date. In connection with the repurchasgram, on December 12, 2011, the Company repsech4,915,637 shares from Buck
Holdings, L.P. for $185 million.

On November 18, 2009, the Company complatenhitial public offering of common stock. The i@pany issued 22,700,000 shares in
the offering, and Buck Holdings, L.P. sold an aiddial 16,515,000 outstanding shares. Net procaeettetCompany from the offering of
$446.0 million were used to redeem outstanding,debtliscussed in more detail in Note 6 below. Company paid certain fees to KKR and
Goldman, Sachs & Co. in connection with the offgrimcluding fees paid to terminate an advisoryeagrent with these parties as discussed
in more detail in Note 12 below. The

67




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
2. Common stock transactions (Continued)
Company also incurred charges for the accelerateting of certain share-based awards as discussedre detail in Note 11 below.

On September 8, 2009, the Company's Bdaldrectors declared a special dividend on the Cany{s outstanding common stock
(including shares of restricted stock) of $0.7526 ghare, which was paid on September 11, 2008aeeBolders of record on September 8,
2009. The special dividend was paid with cash gaedrfrom operations. Pursuant to the terms o€Cibmpany's stock option plans, holders
of stock options received either a pro-rata adjesinto the terms of their share-based awards asla gayment in substitution for such
adjustment as a result of the dividend. Aggregatarents for the dividend and related share-basediats totaled approximately
$239.7 million.

3. Goodwill and other intangible assets
As of February 3, 2012 and January 28, 20%lbalances of the Company's intangible assets as follows:

As of February 3, 2012

Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Goodwiill Indefinite  $ 4,338,58" $ — $ 4,338,58!
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes ltollyearr $ 122,16¢ $ 8541 $§  36,75¢
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,200 — 1,199,200
$ 1,321,360 $ 85,41t $ 1,235,95
As of January 28, 2011
Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Goodwill Indefinite  $ 4,338,58! $ — $ 4,338,58!
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes ltol2yearr $ 141,18 $ 83,45¢ $ 57,72
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,20! — 1,199,20!

$ 1,340,381 $  83,45¢ $ 1,256,92:

The Company recorded amortization expeelsegad to amortizable intangible assets for 200102and 2009 of $21.0 million,
$27.4 million and $41.3 million, respectively, ($@illion, $25.7 million and $37.2 million, resgiely, of which is included in rent
expense). Expected future cash flows associatdttindt Company's intangible assets are not expéateel materially affected by the
Company's intent or ability to renew or extenddnengements. The Company's goodwill balance iexoected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

For intangible assets subject to amortiratihe estimated aggregate amortization expemsgafth of the five succeeding fiscal years is
as follows: 2012—$16.9 million, 2013—%$11.9 millic)14—$5.8 million, 2015—%$0.9 million and 2016—$@ndlion.
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Earnings per share is computed as followghpusands except per share data):

2011
Net Weighted Average ~ Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 766,68! 341,23: $ 2.2t
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 3,88t
Diluted earnings per sha $ 766,68! 34511 $ 2.2
2010
Net Weighted Average ~ Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 627,85 341,04 $ 1.84
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 3,75
Diluted earnings per sha $ 627,85 344,800 $ 1.82
2009
Net Weighted Average Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 339,44: 322,77¢ $ 1.0%
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 2,05¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 339,44. 32483t $ 1.04

Basic earnings per share was computed\iglidg net income by the weighted average numbehafes of common stock outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share wasrdehed based on the dilutive effect of share-baseatds using the treasury stock method.

Options to purchase shares of common gtaatkwere outstanding at the end of the respeptviods, but were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share becawseffect of exercising such options would be alatigde, were zero, 0.4 million and
0.2 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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The provision (benefit) for income taxesisigts of the following:

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Current:
Federa $ 385,27 $ 273,008 $ 173,02
Foreign 1,44¢ 1,26¢ 1,46¢
State 56,27: 28,06: 21,00:
442 ,99¢ 302,33¢ 195,49:
Deferred:
Federa 8,31: 42,02¢ 12,41
Foreign — — (49
State 7,29: 12,75 4,817

15,60¢ 54,77¢ 17,18(
$ 458,60: $ 357,11 $ 212,67«

A reconciliation between actual income s&a&ad amounts computed by applying the federaltsigtrate to income before income taxes
is summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
U.S. federal statutory rate on

earnings before income tax $ 428,85. 35.% $ 344,74C 35.(% $ 193,24: 35.(%
State income taxes, net of feder:

income tax benef 42,77¢ 3.t 26,87 2.7 18,37¢ 3.3
Jobs credits, net of federal incon

taxes (15,159 (1.2 (8,845 (0.9 (8,590 (1.6
Increase (decrease) in valuation

allowances (2,209 (0.2 (1,009 (0.1 (1,722) (0.3

Income tax related interest expe
(benefit), net of federal income

taxes 121 — (5,009 (0.5 1,28¢ 0.2
Nondeductible lawsuit settleme — — — — (366) (0.1
Other, ne 4,45¢ 0.3 35C 0.1 10,447 2.C

$ 458,60 37.4% $ 357,11! 36.% $ 212,67 38.5%

The 2011 effective tax rate was an expensd.4%. This expense was greater than the expégkerate of 35% due primarily to the
inclusion of state income taxes in the total effexctax rate. The 2011 effective rate was gredtan the 2010 rate of 36.3% primarily due to
the effective resolution of various examinationgthoy taxing authorities in 2010 that did not reactni the same extent, in 2011. These fac
resulted in rate increases in 2011, as compar2d10, associated with state income taxes and incaxelated interest expense. Increast
federal jobs related tax credits, primarily du¢hte Hire Act's Retention Credit, reduced the effeectate in 2011 as compared to 2010. The
Retention Credit applies only to 2011. Other priovis authorizing various federal jobs credits thatCompany receives have generally
expired for employees hired after December 31, 2011

The 2010 effective tax rate was an expensé.3%. This expense was greater than the exgppémxerate of 35% due primarily to the
inclusion of state income taxes in the total effectax rate. The 2010 effective rate was less tharR009 rate of 38.5% due principally to
reductions in state income
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tax expense, income tax related interest experssetaer expense items. The 2010 effective resaludfosarious examinations by the taxing
authorities, when combined with unfavorable exammaresults in 2009, resulted in a decrease iryda-to-year state income tax expense
rate (net of federal income tax expense) of appnexely 1.8%. This decrease in state income taxresg@as partially offset by an increas
state income tax expense due to a shift in incam®mpanies within the group that have a highexotiffe state income tax rate. In addition,
income tax related interest accruals and incomediated penalty accruals (with the penalty acsrbeing included in Other, net) were also
reduced due to favorable income tax examinationlt€shereby resulting in a decrease in incomeadtated interest expense and a decrease
in Other income tax expense. Additional decreas&tiher, net items occurred due to favorable out=im 2010 associated with the
completion of a federal income tax examination gedlictions in expense associated with uncertaibéaefit accruals.

The 2009 effective tax rate was an expen88.5%. This expense was greater than the exgégkerate of 35% due primarily to the
inclusion of state income taxes in the total effectax rate.

Deferred taxes reflect the effects of terappdifferences between carrying amounts of assaddiabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax pesp8ggnificant components of the Company's dedelar assets and liabilities are as
follows:

February 3, January 28,
(In thousands) 2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Deferred compensation exper $ 7851 $ 6,65:
Accrued expenses and ott 6,73t 4,79¢
Accrued ren 11,12¢ 8,581
Accrued insuranc 70,18( 67,63«
Accrued bonuse 16,68¢ 20,11¢
Interest rate hedge 4,47¢ 13,65(
Tax benefit of income tax and interest reservested| to
uncertain tax positions 2,69( 2,52(
Other 16,01( 16,32:
State tax net operating loss carryforwards, néeaéral tax 33 4,69
State tax credit carryforwards, net of federal 10,62¢ 12,51
146,41° 157,48:
Less valuation allowanct (4,88)) (7,08?%)
Total deferred tax asse 141 53¢ 150,39¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipme (287,44°) (222,75
Inventories (49,345 (68,319)
Trademark: (435,61)  (435,54))
Amortizable assel (13,239 (21,289
Insurance related tax method cha — (14,849
Bonus related tax method char (13,079 (29,520
Other (3,539 (3,55))
Total deferred tax liabilitie (802,259  (785,81)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (660,719 $ (635,419
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Net deferred tax liabilities are reflecssparately on the consolidated balance sheetst@ntand noncurrent deferred income taxes
following table summarizes net deferred tax lidigii as recorded in the consolidated balance sheets

February 3, January 28,

(In thousands) 2012 2011

Current deferred income tax liabilities, 1 $ (3,72) $ (36,859
Noncurrent deferred income tax liabilities, (656,99¢ (598,56
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (660,719 $ (635,419

The Company has state net operating lasgfoavards as of February 3, 2012 that total agpnately $54.3 million which will expire i
2023 through 2031. The Company also has stateréalit carryforwards of approximately $16.4 millidrat will expire beginning in 2020
through 2025.

The valuation allowance has been providedtate tax credit carryforwards and federal ejisses. The 2011, 2010, and 2009
decreases of $2.2 million, $1.0 million and $1.7iom, respectively, were recorded as a reductioim¢come tax expense. Based upon
expected future income, management believes tiatibre likely than not that the results of opiers will generate sufficient taxable
income to realize the deferred tax assets afténgieonsideration to the valuation allowance.

The Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") ismakang the Company's federal income tax returndigmal years 2006, 2007 and 2008. The
2005 and earlier years are not open for examinaiiba 2009, 2010, and 2011 fiscal years, whilecootently under examination, are subject
to examination at the discretion of the IRS. ThenPany has various state income tax examinationsatieacurrently in progress. Generally,
the Company's tax years ended in 2008 and forveamdin open for examination by the various statmtpauthorities.

As of February 3, 2012, accruals for uraiartax benefits, interest expense related to irctares and potential income tax penalties
were $42.0 million, $1.2 million and $0.6 milliorespectively, for a total of $43.8 million. Of thasnount, $0.3 million and $41.1 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenard other and in noncurrent Other liabilitiespeztively, in the consolidated balance sheet
with the remaining $2.4 million reducing deferred tissets related to net operating loss carry falsva

As of January 28, 2011, accruals for umtetiax benefits, interest expense related to irctares and potential income tax penalties
were $26.4 million, $1.9 million and $0.5 milliorespectively, for a total of $28.8 million. Of thasnount, $0.2 million and $27.3 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenard other and in noncurrent Other liabilitiespeztively, in the consolidated balance sheet
with the remaining $1.3 million reducing deferrea tssets related to net operating loss carry folsva

The Company believes that it is reasonpbhsible that the reserve for uncertain tax passtimay be reduced by approximately
$30.4 million in the coming twelve months princilyas a result of the settlement of currently ongdhcome tax examinations. The
reasonably possible change of $30.4 million isuded in current liabilities in Accrued expenses atiger ($0.2 million) and in noncurrent
Other liabilities ($30.2 million) in the consolidat balance sheet as of February 3, 2012. Alsdf, Bshwuary 3, 2012, approximately
$42.0 million of the uncertain tax positions woirdtbact
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the Company's effective income tax rate if the Canypwere to recognize the tax benefit for thesdtipos.

The amounts associated with uncertain tesxtipns included in income tax expense consista@following:

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009

Income tax expense (benet $ 97 $ (12,000 $ 11,90(
Income tax related interest expense (ben 96¢ (5,800 2,30(C
Income tax related penalty expense (ben 63 (700) 40C

A reconciliation of the uncertain income tasitions from January 30, 2009 through Febr3a3012 is as follows:

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Beginning balanc $ 26,42¢ $ 67,63t $ 59,05
Increases—tax positions taken in the curre

year 12t 12t 13,70:
Increase—tax positions taken in prior yeg 15,84( — 4,03¢
Decrease—tax positions taken in prior yes — (36,979) (1,117
Statute expiration (37€) (1,570 —
Settlement: — (2,789 (8,050
Ending balanc: $ 42,01¢ $ 26,42¢ $ 67,63¢

6. Current and long-term obligations

Current and long-term obligations consfghe following:

February 3, January 28,
(In thousands) 2012 2011
Senior secured term loan facility, maturity July 6,

2014 $ 1,963,500 $ 1,963,50
ABL Facility, maturity July 6, 201 184,70( —
10°/ 8% Senior Notes due July 15, 2015, net of

discount of — and $11,161, respective — 853,17:
117/8/12°/ 8% Senior Subordinated Notes due

July 15, 201 450,69 450,69
Capital lease obligatior 5,08¢ 6,36:
Tax increment financing due February 1, 2! 14,49¢ 14,49¢

2,618,48. 3,288,22
Less: current portio (590 (1,157
Long-term portion $ 2,617,89. $ 3,287,07

As of February 3, 2012 the Company hasosesgicured credit agreements (the "Credit Faalifievhich provide total financing of
$2.995 hillion, consisting of $1.964 billion in arsor secured term loan facility ("Term Loan Fagilj, and a senior secured asset-based
revolving credit facility ("ABL Facility") of up tdb1.031 billion, subject to borrowing base avaiiahi
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The amount available under the ABL Faci{ibcluding up to $350.0 million for letters of ci§ may not exceed the borrowing base
(consisting of specified percentages of eligibleimory and credit card receivables less any agiplécavailability reserves). The ABL
Facility includes a $930.0 million tranche and &30 million ("last out") tranche. Repayments af thBL Facility will be applied to the
$101.0 million tranche only after all other transteave been fully paid down.

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities bererest at a rate equal to an applicable marlyis, @t the Company's option, either (a) LIB
or (b) a base rate (which is usually equal to tfae rate). The applicable margin for borrowingo&Eebruary 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011
is (i) under the Term Loan, 2.75% for LIBOR borrogs and 1.75% for base-rate borrowings (ii) underABL Facility (except in the last
out tranche described above), 1.50% and 1.25%ectsply, for LIBOR borrowings and 0.50% and 0.25%spectively, for base-rate
borrowings; and for any last out borrowings, 2.268#LIBOR borrowings and 1.25% for base-rate bolirmyg. The applicable margins for
borrowings under the ABL Facility (except in theseaf last out borrowings) are subject to adjustreanh quarter based on average daily
excess availability under the ABL Facility. Theandst rate for borrowings under the Term Loan Rgailas 3.1% and 3.0% (without giving
effect to the interest rate swaps discussed in Bptas of February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2@kperctively.

In addition to paying interest on outstamgdprincipal under the Credit Facilities, the Compé#s required to pay a commitment fee to the
lenders under the ABL Facility for any unutilizednemitments. The commitment fee rate is 0.375% paum. The commitment fee rate will
be reduced (except with regard to the last outtrapto 0.25% per annum at any time that the upetilcommitments under the ABL Facility
are equal to or less than 50% of the aggregate donemts under the ABL Facility. The Company alsostquay customary letter of credit
fees.

The senior secured credit agreement fordren Loan Facility requires the Company to prepaistanding term loans, subject to certain
exceptions, with percentages of excess cash flovggeds of non-ordinary course asset sales or sitgpts of property, and proceeds of
incurrences of certain debt. In addition, the seséxured credit agreement for the ABL Facilityuiegs the Company to prepay the ABL
Facility, subject to certain exceptions, with preds of non-ordinary course asset sales or dispositif property and any borrowings in
excess of the then current borrowing base. The Teram Facility can be prepaid in whole or in paraay time. No prepayments have been
required under the prepayment provisions listedattbrough February 3, 2012.

During 2009, the Company made requirechlireent payments and also made a voluntary prepatyorethe Term Loan Facility,
resulting in total principal payments of $336.5lmil. As a result, no further quarterly principastallments will be required prior to maturity
of the Term Loan Facility. The Company incurredret@x loss of $4.7 million in 2009 for the writef of debt issuance costs associated with
such prepayment.

All obligations under the Credit Facilitiagee unconditionally guaranteed by substantiallpfaihe Company's existing and future
domestic subsidiaries (excluding certain immatesiddsidiaries and certain subsidiaries designatgidoCompany under the Credit Facilities
as "unrestricted subsidiaries").
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All obligations and guarantees of thosegattions under the Term Loan Facility are secungdshbject to certain exceptions, a second-
priority security interest in all existing and af@cquired inventory and accounts receivable;si firiority security interest in substantially all
of the Company's and the guarantors' tangible ratiachgible assets (other than the inventory anduatsaeceivable collateral); and a first-
priority pledge of the capital stock held by then@@ny. All obligations under the ABL Facility arecsired by all existing and after-acquired
inventory and accounts receivable, subject to Teetaceptions.

The Credit Facilities contain certain coaets, including, among other things, covenantslitmitt the Company's ability to incur
additional indebtedness, sell assets, incur additibens, pay dividends, make investments or asitijoms, or repay certain indebtedness.

For the years ended February 3, 2012, trapany had borrowings of $1.16 billion and repaytsef $0.97 billion under the ABL
Facility. For the years ended January 28, 2011Jandary 29, 2010, the Company had no borrowingspayments under the ABL Facility.
As of February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011, thgedive letter of credit amounts related to theABcility included $21.7 million and
$52.7 million of standby letters of credit, and #¥16nillion and $19.1 million of commercial lettesbcredit, and borrowing availability under
the ABL Facility was $807.9 million and $959.3 ridh, respectively.

On July 6, 2007, the Company issued $14ilfbn aggregate principal amount of 10.625% seniates due 2015 (the "Senior Notes")
which were issued net of a discount of $23.2 milliand $725 million aggregate principal amount hB¥5%/12.625% senior subordinated
toggle notes due 2017 (the "Senior Subordinate@®ptThe Senior Notes were scheduled to matudibnl5, 2015 pursuant to an
indenture, dated as of July 6, 2007 (the "senideiture™), and the Senior Subordinated Notes dredsded to mature on July 15, 2017,
pursuant to an indenture, dated as of July 6, ZO@7"senior subordinated indenture™). The Seniote and the Senior Subordinated Notes
are collectively referred to herein as the "Notdsie senior indenture and the senior subordinaigenture are collectively referred to herein
as the "indentures."

In July 2011, the Company redeemed all $B88llion outstanding aggregate principal amourthe Senior Notes at a redemption price
of 105.313% of the principal amount, plus accrued anpaid interest. The redemption was effectextoordance with the terms of the senior
indenture. The Company funded the redemption facéhe Senior Notes with cash on hand and borrgsiimder the ABL Facility. In April
2011, the Company repurchased in the open marlke0 $@illion aggregate principal amount of Senioitéoat a price of 107.0% plus
accrued and unpaid interest. The 2011 redemptidrregrurchase resulted in pretax losses totaling3h®dlion. Pretax gains and losses
associated with the redemption of the Senior Nategeflected in Other (income) expense in the alishsted statements of income for the
respective years.

In May 2010, the Company repurchased irofien market $50.0 million aggregate principal amiai the Senior Notes at a price of
111.0% plus accrued and unpaid interest. In Sepe2®10, the Company repurchased in the open m$&@&0d million aggregate principal
amount of the Senior Notes at a price of 110.7596 ptcrued and unpaid interest. The 2010 repurshiasalted in pretax losses totaling
$14.7 million.

In connection with the Company's Novemi@9@initial public offering, as further discussedNote 2, the Company repurchased
$195.7 million of the Senior Notes and $205.2 millof the Senior
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Subordinated Notes at redemption prices of 110.68686111.875%, respectively, plus accrued and driptgrest, resulting in pretax losses
of $24.9 million and $25.7 million, respectively.

Interest on the Senior Subordinated Natgmyable on January 15 and July 15 of each yeah ®terest on the Senior Subordinated
Notes accrues at a rate of 11.875% per annum. fiarofp elect to pay interest by increasing thegpal amount of the Senior Subordina
Notes or issuing new Senior Subordinated NoteK(iRterest") instead of paying cash interest expire2011. As a result, all interest on-
Senior Subordinated Notes has been paid or wiidyable in cash.

The Senior Subordinated Notes are fully amcbonditionally guaranteed by each of the existéing future direct or indirect wholly own
domestic subsidiaries that guarantee the obligatimmler the Company's Credit Facilities.

The Company may redeem some or all of #r@d3 Subordinated Notes at any time at redemptiares described or set forth in the
senior subordinated indenture. In addition, theled of the Senior Subordinated Notes can requé@€Company to redeem the Senior
Subordinated Notes at 101% of the aggregate pahemmount outstanding in the event of certain changontrol events.

The senior subordinated indenture conteémtain covenants, including, among other thingseoants that limit the Company's ability
incur additional indebtedness, create liens, sséts, enter into transactions with affiliatescamsolidate or dispose of all of its assets.

Scheduled debt maturities, including cdpiase obligations, for the Company's fiscal ydiated below are as follows (in thousands):
2012—$590; 2013—%$184,992; 2014—%$1,963,815; 2015-4$2616—3$618; thereafter—$468,012.

7. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The following table presents the CompaagSets and liabilities measured at fair value mtarring basis as of February 3, 2012,
aggregated by the level in the fair value hieranefthin which those measurements fall.

Quoted Prices

in Active
Markets Significant
for Identical Other Significant
Assets and Observable Unobservable Balance at
Liabilities Inputs Inputs February 3,
(In thousands) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2012
Assets:
Trading securities
(a) $ 6,781 $ — $ — $ 6,781
Liabilities:
Long-term
obligations(b) 2,647,69 19,58¢ — 2,667,28.
Derivative financial
instruments(c — 10,82( — 10,82(
Deferred
compensation(c 18,941 — — 18,941

(@) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balesteset as Prepaid expenses and other current a6$4t877 an
Other assets, net of $5,4(
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(b) Reflected at book value in the consolidated balahest as Current portion of long-term obligatioh$590 and
Long-term obligations of $2,617,891.

(©) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balasiteet as Accrued expenses and other currenttiiedil

(d) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balestwset as Accrued expenses and other currenitiedbibf
$1,377 and nc-current Other liabilities of $17,57

The carrying amounts reflected in the ctidated balance sheets for cash, cash equivalemist-term investments, receivables and
payables approximate their respective fair vallibge. Company does not have any fair value measuitsmsing significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) as of February 3, 2012.

8. Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into certain finanaiatiument positions, all of which are intendedéaused to reduce risk by hedging an
underlying economic exposure.

Risk management objective of using derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain riskarggifrom both its business operations and econeaomditions. The Company principally
manages its exposures to a wide variety of busimed®perational risks through management of ite basiness activities. The Company
manages economic risks, including interest rag@jdiity, and credit risk, primarily by managing theount, sources, and duration of its debt
funding and the use of derivative financial instants. Specifically, the Company enters into deieatinancial instruments to manage
exposures that arise from business activitiesrdgatlt in the receipt or payment of future knowd ancertain cash amounts, the value of
which are determined primarily by interest ratdse Tompany's derivative financial instruments @&duo manage differences in the amc
timing, and duration of the Company's known or &xpeé cash receipts and its known or expected cagments principally related to the
Company's borrowings.

The Company is exposed to certain risksiragifrom uncertainties of future market valuessealiby the fluctuation in the prices of
commodities. From time to time the Company mayreinte derivative financial instruments to protegainst future price changes related to
these commaodity prices.

Cash flow hedges of interest rate risk

The Company's objectives in using interats derivatives are to add stability to intereqtemse and to manage its exposure to interest
rate changes. To accomplish this objective, the @z primarily uses interest rate swaps as pats afiterest rate risk management strategy.
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedgase the receipt of variable-rate amounts frogoanterparty in exchange for the
Company making fixed-rate payments over the lifthefagreements without exchange of the underlyaigpnal amount.

The effective portion of changes in the failue of derivatives designated and that qualgicash flow hedges is recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (@B®ared to as "OCI") and is subsequently recl@sbkinto earnings in the period that the
hedged forecasted transaction
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affects earnings. These transactions represemtnigeamounts reflected in Accumulated other comensive income (loss) in the
consolidated statements of shareholders' equitsinBthe years ended February 3, 2012, Januarg®8, and January 29, 2010, such
derivatives were used to hedge the variable castsfhssociated with existing variable-rate debe iHeffective portion of the change in fair
value of the derivatives is recognized directlyarnings.

As of February 3, 2012, the Company haeglinterest rate swaps with a combined notionalesef $533.3 million that were designated
as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. Amotsyierted in Accumulated other comprehensive incfioes) related to derivatives will be
reclassified to interest expense as interest patg@a made on the Company's variable-rate debtCimpany terminated an interest rate
swap in October 2008 due to the bankruptcy dedtaralf the counterparty bank. The Company contirtaggport the net gain or loss related
to the discontinued cash flow hedge in OCI and swettgain or loss is being reclassified into eagaiduring the original contractual terms of
the swap agreement as the hedged interest payarenéspected to occur as forecasted. During theSeweek period, the Company
estimates that an additional $8.5 million will lelassified as an increase to interest expensalfof its interest rate swaps.

Non-designated hedges of commodity risk

Derivatives not designated as hedges arspszulative and are used to manage the Compaxpdsure to commaodity price risk but do
not meet strict hedge accounting requirements. @&gmm the fair value of derivatives not designateldedging relationships are recorded
directly in earnings. As of February 3, 2012, the®any had no such non-designated hedges.

The table below presents the fair valuthefCompany's derivative financial instruments ai as their classification on the consolide
balance sheets as of February 3, 2012 and Jan8a2p21:

February 3, January 28,
(in thousands) 2012 2011

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instrumi
Interest rate swaps classified in current lialgititas

Accrued expenses and other $ 10,82( $ —
Interest rate swaps classified in noncurrent ligéd
as Other liabilities $ — $ 34,92

The tables below present the fae-effect of the Company's derivative financiatimments as reflected in the consolidated statesod
income and shareholders' equity, as applicable:

(in thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging

Relationship:
Loss related to effective portion of

derivative recognized in OC( $ 3,83¢ $ 19,717 $ 42,32
Loss related to effective portion of

derivative reclassified from Accumulatt

OClI to Interest expens $ 28,631 $ 42,99 $ 50,14(
Loss related to ineffective portion of

derivative recognized in Other (income

expense $ 31z $ 52 $ 61¢
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Credit-risk-related contingent features

The Company has agreements with all ahierest rate swap counterparties that contairogigion providing that the Company could
be declared in default on its derivative obligasidfirepayment of the underlying indebtedness iekerated by the lender due to the
Company's default on such indebtedness.

As of February 3, 2012, the fair valuerd&rest rate swaps in a net liability position, efhincludes accrued interest but excludes any
adjustment for nonperformance risk related to tleggeements, was $11.1 million. If the Company v@@ched any of these provisions at
February 3, 2012, it could have been required &t fadl collateral or settle its obligations undbke agreements at an estimated termination
value of $11.1 million. As of February 3, 2012, ®empany had not breached any of these provisiopssied any collateral related to these
agreements.

9. Commitments and contingencies
Leases

As of February 3, 2012, the Company wasrodtad under operating lease agreements for masst oftail stores. Many of the
Company's stores are subject to build-to-suit gearents with landlords which typically carry a pain lease term of 10-15 years with
multiple renewal options. The Company also hasstsubject to shorter-term leases and many of thases have renewal options.
Approximately 26% of the leased stores have promisifor contingent rentals based upon a specifedgntage of defined sales volume.

The land and buildings of the Company's IJsulton, Missouri and Indianola, Mississippi ateéject to operating lease agreements
the leased Ardmore, Oklahoma DC is subject to anfiing arrangement. The entities involved in th@eship structure underlying these
leases meet the accounting definition of a Varidterest Entity ("VIE"). The Company is not themary beneficiary of these VIEs and,
accordingly, has not included these entities irdtissolidated financial statements. Certain leasagain restrictive covenants. As of
February 3, 2012, the Company is not aware of aaterial violations of such covenants.

In January 1999, the Company sold its D&ated in Ardmore, Oklahoma for cash and concunsétht the sale transaction, the Company
leased the property back for a period of 23 yeHns. transaction is accounted for as a financingyabbn rather than a sale as a result of,
among other things, the lessor's ability to putghaperty back to the Company under certain cir¢dantes. The property and equipment,
along with the related lease obligation associati¢gld this transaction are recorded in the constdiddoalance sheets. In August 2007, the
Company purchased a secured promissory note (tferidre Note") from an unrelated third party witfeae value of $34.3 million at the
date of purchase which approximated the remairimanting obligation. The Ardmore Note representst desued by the third party entity
from which the Company leases the Ardmore DC artefore the Company holds the debt instrument ipémtato its lease financing
obligation. Because a legal right of offset exigte, Company is accounting for the Ardmore Nota asduction of its outstanding financing
obligation in its consolidated balance sheets.
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Future minimum payments as of February0322for operating leases are as follows:

(In thousands)

2012 $ 537,84.
2013 495,37
2014 442 91
2015 379,69:
2016 324,51.
Thereaftel 1,479,66:
Total minimum payment $ 3,660,00

Total minimum payments for capital lease®faFebruary 3, 2012 were $7.4 million, with agenet value of $5.1 million at an effective
interest rate of approximately 6.8% at Februar®(3,2. The gross amount of property and equipmeatrded under capital leases and
financing obligations at February 3, 2012 and atday 28, 2011, was $29.0 million and $31.0 millimspectively. Accumulated
depreciation on property and equipment under ddp#ses and financing obligations at Februaryd3,22and January 28, 2011, was
$7.3 million and $7.4 million, respectively.

Rent expense under all operating leasas fsllows:

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Minimum rentals(a $ 525,48t $ 471,40. $ 407,37
Contingent rental 16,85¢ 17,88: 21,24¢

$ 542,34: $ 489,28: $ 428,62

(@) Excludes amortization of leasehold interests of.$2illion, $25.7 million and $37.2 million includen rent
expense for the years ended February 3, 2012, 3a2822011 and January 29, 2010, respecti
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Legal proceedings

On August 7, 2006, a lawsuit entitl@gnthia Richter, et al. v. Dolgencorp, Inc., etwaas filed in the United States District Court fbet
Northern District of Alabama (Case No. 7-cv-01537-LSC) ("Richter") in which the plaintifflages that she and other current and former
Dollar General store managers were improperly fladsas exempt executive employees under thelldior Standards Act ("FLSA") and
seeks to recover overtime pay, liquidated damagebattorneys' fees and costs. On August 15, 2B8Richterplaintiff filed a motion in
which she asked the court to certify a nationwilds< of current and former store managers. The @agnppposed the plaintiff's motion. On
March 23, 2007, the court conditionally certifiedationwide class. On December 2, 2009, noticemaited to over 28,000 current or former
Dollar General store managers. Approximately 3,@8d/iduals have opted into the lawsuit, approxiena800 of whom have been dismissed
for various reasons, including failure to cooperatdiscovery.

On January 31, 2012, the court enterech@ended scheduling order that governs, among dtirggd, an extended deadline for certain
limited fact discovery (March 9, 2012) and the Camys anticipated decertification motion (AprilZ012). No deadline currently exists for
potentially dispositive motions, and the Court hasset a trial date.

The Company believes that its store marsagier and have been properly classified as exempiogees under the FLSA and that the
Richteraction is not appropriate for collective actioratraent. The Company has obtained summary judgmesatrne, although not all, of its
pending individual or single-plaintiff store managaemption cases in which it has filed such a amti

The Company is vigorously defending Riehtermatter. However, at this time, it is not possililgtedict whetheRichterultimately
will be permitted to proceed collectively, and resarances can be given that the Company will beessful in its defense of the action on
merits or otherwise. Similarly, at this time ther@many cannot estimate either the size of any pialesiaiss or the value of the claims asse
in Richter. For these reasons, the Company is unable toa&stiamy potential loss or range of loss in the engliowever, if the Company is
not successful in its defense efforts, the resmiutif Richtercould have a material adverse effect on the Comipdimancial statements as a
whole.

On May 18, 2006, the Company was servel avibwsuit entitedammy Brickey, Becky Norman, Rose Rochow, Sandyawetl and
Melinda Sappington v. Dolgencorp, Inc. and Dollaer@ral Corporatior(Western District of New York, Case No. 6:06-cv-88eDGL,
originally filed on February 9, 2006 and amendedvity 12, 2006 ("Brickey")). Th8rickeyplaintiffs sought to proceed collectively under
the FLSA and as a class under New York, Ohio, Margland North Carolina wage and hour statutes balbef, among others, assistant
store managers who claim to be owed wages (inajuovertime wages) under those statutes. On FebR2arg011, the court denied the
plaintiffs’ class certification motion in its ergty and ordered that the matter proceed only &setmamed plaintiffs. On March 22, 2011, the
plaintiffs moved the court for reconsideration tsfOrder denying their class certification moti@m March 30, 2011, the plaintiffs'
reconsideration motion was denied, and the plééndid not appeal that ruling. The case is progegdiow only as to the named plaintiffs, i
the Company does not expect the outcome to be iaat®its financial statements as a whole.
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On March 7, 2006, a complaint was filedha United States District Court for the Northeristict of Alabama (anet Calvert v.
Dolgencorp, Inc, Case No. 2:06-cv-00465-VEH ("Calvert")), in whittte plaintiff, a former store manager, alleged #tee was paid less
than male store managers because of her sex,latigioof the Equal Pay Act and Title VIl of theviRights Act of 1964, as amended
("Title VII") (now captioned Wanda Womack, et al. v. Dolgencorp, I€ase No. 2:06-cv-00465-VEH). The complaint subsetipevas
amended to include additional plaintiffs, who addlege to have been paid less than males becatbeio$ex, and to add allegations that the
Company's compensation practices disparately infpatiles. Under the amended complaint, plaintéisksto proceed collectively under the
Equal Pay Act and as a class under Title VII, aglest back wages, injunctive and declaratoryfréiigiidated damages, punitive damages
and attorneys' fees and costs.

On July 9, 2007, the plaintiffs filed a nowot in which they asked the court to approve tsaasce of notice to a class of current and
former female store managers under the Equal PayThe Company opposed plaintiffs' motion. On Nokem30, 2007, the court
conditionally certified a nationwide class of feemlunder the Equal Pay Act who worked for Dollan&al as store managers between
November 30, 2004 and November 30, 2007. The neticeissued on January 11, 2008, and persons tohi®notice was sent we
required to opt into the suit by March 11, 2008 pAgximately 2,100 individuals opted into the lavisui

On April 19, 2010, the plaintiffs moved fdass certification relating to their Title Vllaims. The Company filed its response to the
certification motion in June 2010. Briefing hassgd, and the motion remains pending. The Compamyt®n to decertify the Equal Pay Act
class was denied as premature. If the case prodbedSompany expects to file a similar motion ire ¢ourse.

The parties agreed to mediate this actiad,the court stayed the action pending the restittee mediation. The mediation occurred in
March and April, 2011, and the Company has reaelmegigreement in principle to settle the matteramalf of the entire putative class. The
proposed settlement, which still must be approwethb court, provides for both monetary and equetablief. Under the proposed terms, the
Company will pay $15.5 million into a fund for teass members that will be apportioned and paidmindividual members (less any
additional attorneys' fees or litigation costs amed by the court), upon submission of a validnaldi will pay an additional $3.25 million for
plaintiffs' legal fees and costs. Of the total $B3million anticipated payment, the Company exp&ztgceive reimbursement from its
Employment Practices Liability Insurance ("EPLI§rder of approximately $15.9 million, which repeess the balance remaining of the
$20 million EPLI policy covering the claims. In atidn, the Company has agreed to make certain adgms to its pay setting policies and
procedures for new store managers. If the settlermepproved, the Company expects to implementéve pay policies and practices no
later than April 2012. Documents related to theiparrequest for preliminary approval of the pregw settlement were filed on October 28,
2011. A hearing on the proposed settlement has lbeldrand the Company expects the court to apptmeettlement soon. Because it
deemed settlement probable and estimable, the Gomguzrued for the net settlement as well as fodageadditional anticipated fees related
thereto during the first quarter of 2011, and corently recorded a receivable of approximately 9Ifillion from its EPLI carrier.

At this time, although probabile it is netrtain that the court will approve the settleméfrit.does not, and the case proceeds, it is not
possible at this time to predict whether the caitinately will permit the action to proceed colieely under the Equal Pay Act or as a class
under Title VII.
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Although the Company intends to vigorously defdmeldction, no assurances can be given that it waeikliccessful in the defense on the
merits or otherwise. At this stage in the procegslinthe Company cannot estimate either the siaeypotential class or the value of the
claims raised in this action if it proceeds. Fadh reasons, the Company is unable to estimatpatastial loss or range of loss in such a
scenario; however, if the Company is not successfdefending this action, its resolution could @amaterial adverse effect on the
Company's financial statements as a whole.

On June 16, 2010, a lawsuit entitBithleka Gross, et al v. Dollar General Corporatigas filed in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of Mississippi (Civil Actiddo. 3:10CV340WHB-LR) ("Gross") in which three form@on-exempt store employees, on
behalf of themselves and certain other non-exenafieDGeneral store employees, alleged that they wet paid for all hours worked in
violation of the FLSA. Specifically, plaintiffs @fjed that they were not properly paid for certagaks and sought back wages (including
overtime wages), liquidated damages and attorfegs'and costs.

Before the Company was served with@nesscomplaint, the plaintiffs dismissed the action aadiled it in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Mississippi, naa&ptioned a€ynthia Walker, et al. v. Dollar General Corporaticet al.(Civil Action
No. 4:1(-CV119-P-S) ("Walker"). Th&valkercomplaint was filed on September 16, 2010, andalih it added approximately eight
additional plaintiffs, it added no substantive gions beyond those alleged in tAmsscomplaint. No other individuals opted into the
Walkermatter, and the entire matter was resolved fomaouat that is immaterial to the Company's finanstatements as a whole.

On May 20, 2011, a lawsuit entitfdnn-Dixie Stores, Inc., et al. v. Dolgencorp, LWw@s filed in the United States District Court foe
Southern District of Florida (Case No. 9:11-cv-804DMM) ("Winn-Dixie") in which the plaintiffs allege that the sadf food and other iten
in approximately 55 of the Company's stores, edathich allegedly is or was at some time co-located shopping center with one of
plaintiffs’ stores, violates restrictive covenaittiat plaintiffs contend are binding on the occupaiftthe shopping centers. Plaintiffs seek
damages and an injunction limiting the sale of faad other items in those stores. Although pldmtiive not made a demand for any
specific amount of damages at this point in thepeding, documents prepared and produced by (ffaidtiring discovery suggest that
plaintiffs may seek as much as $47 million. The @any intends to vigorously defend ténn-Dixiematter and views that sum as wholly
without basis and unsupported by the law and tbes feurrently available. The various leases invblvethe matter are unique in their terms
and/or the factual circumstances surrounding ttamd, in some cases, the stores named by plaiaté#fsot now and have never been co-
located with plaintiffs’ stores. The Company h#&dfia motion challenging the admissibility of pl#iis' damages expert. Hearings on that
motion were held on January 23 and on Februarg@®2, and no ruling has been made. The case isntlyrischeduled for trial in May of
2012 and has been consolidated with similar cagasst Big Lots and Dollar Tree. However, at tinise, no assurances can be given that the
Company will be successful in its defense of th@amn the merits or otherwise. Similarly, at thise, because of certain outstanding
threshold issues that have yet to be addressduebgourt, the Company is unable to estimate pakotses; however, if the Company is not
successful in defending tginn-Dixiematter, the outcome could have a material advdfset®n the Company's financial statements as a
whole.

In October 2008, the Company terminatethterest rate swap as a result of the countergadgtlaration of bankruptcy. This declara
of bankruptcy constituted a default under the cunitr
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governing the swap, giving the Company the righttminate. The Company subsequently settled ttag ssvNovember 2008 for
approximately $7.6 million, including interest aced to the date of termination. On May 14, 2016,Gompany received a demand from the
counterparty for an additional payment of approsteha$19 million plus interest, claiming that thalwation used to calculate the $7.6 mill
was commercially unreasonable, and seeking to imvio& alternative dispute resolution proceduresbtished by the bankruptcy court. The
Company participated in the alternative disputeltgon procedures as it believed a reasonabliesetht would be in the best interest of the
Company to avoid the substantial risk and costgigation. In April of 2011, the Company reachedeattlement with the counterparty under
which the Company paid an additional $9.85 milliorexchange for a full release. The Company acctioedettlement amount along with
additional expected fees and costs related thérahe first quarter of 2011. The settlement waalfzed and the payment was made in May
2011.

From time to time, the Company is a pastydrious other legal actions involving claims demtal to the conduct of its business,
including actions by employees, consumers, sugplgvernment agencies, or others through privetterss, class actions, administrative
proceedings, regulatory actions or other litigatioeluding without limitation under federal anét& employment laws and wage and hour
laws. The Company believes, based upon informatisrently available, that such other litigation ataims, both individually and in the
aggregate, will be resolved without a material aseeffect on the Company's financial statemengswalsole. However, litigation involves an
element of uncertainty. Future developments coalgse these actions or claims to have a materigrae\effect on the Company's results of
operations, cash flows, or financial position. tlddion, certain of these lawsuits, if decided adety to the Company or settled by the
Company, may result in liability material to ther@eany's financial position or may negatively affeperating results if changes to the
Company's business operation are required.

10. Benefit plans

The Dollar General Corporation 401(k) Sgeimnd Retirement Plan, which became effectiveaonary 1, 1998, is a safe harbor defined
contribution plan and is subject to the Employe@rBment and Income Security Act ("ERISA").

A participant's right to claim a distribori of his or her account balance is dependent®plém, ERISA guidelines and Internal Revenue
Service regulations. All active participants arkyfwested in all contributions to the 401(k) plduring 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company
expensed approximately $10.9 million, $9.5 millexmd $8.4 million, respectively, for matching cobtrions.

The Company also has a nonqualified suppteat retirement plan ("SERP") and compensatioerdaff plan ("CDP"), known as the
Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan, for agejroup of management and other key employeesCbmpany incurred
compensation expense for these plans of approxiyrte7 million, $1.7 million and $1.9 million in1, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The CDP/SERP Plan assets are investeccouats selected by the Company's Compensation Cibeenair its delegate. These
investments are classified as trading securitielsti@ associated deferred compensation liabilitgfiected in the consolidated balance sheets
as further discussed in Note 7.
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The Company accounts for share-based pagnreaccordance with applicable accounting statalddnder these standards, the fair
value of each award is separately estimated andtame into compensation expense over the sengceg. The fair value of the Company's
stock option grants are estimated on the grantuisitey the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation modelfé&itures are estimated at the time of
valuation and reduce expense ratably over thenggtriod. The application of this valuation moeblves assumptions that are judgmental
and highly sensitive in the determination of congagion expense.

Prior to a merger transaction in 2007,Gloenpany maintained various share-based compengatignams which included options and
other share-based awards. In connection with thgendransaction, in limited circumstances, cersgtk options held by Company
management were exchanged for new options to pseot@mmon stock in the Company (the "Rollover Otih Subject to certain
adjustments to the number of options and the esemiice, the Rollover Options generally continndar the terms of the equity plan under
which the original options were issued.

On July 6, 2007, the Company's Board oé&twrs adopted the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan for Kmployees, which plan was
subsequently amended (as so amended, the "Pldré)Plan provides for the granting of stock optiatsck appreciation rights, and other
stock-based awards or dividend equivalent rightetoemployees, directors, consultants or othesqrex having a service relationship with
the Company, its subsidiaries and certain of fii@es. The number of shares of Company commoaoksauthorized for grant under the Plan
is 31,142,858. As of February 3, 2012, 19,338,1fXUoh shares are available for future grants.

Under the Plan, the Company has grantedimpthat vest solely upon the continued employroéfite recipient (“Time Options"),
options that vest upon the achievement of predétedirannual or cumulative financial-based targi#giformance Options") and other
awards. Time and Performance stock options gegeradit ratably on an annual basis over either adoa fiveyear period, while other sto
options awards vest over varying time periods.

Assuming specified financial targets ard,tee Performance Options vest as of the Compdisgal year end, and as a result the initial
and final tranche of each Performance Option geaptorated based upon the date of grant. In teatehe performance target is not achie
in any given annual performance period, the Perdmce Options for that period may still subsequevilst, provided that a cumulative
performance target is achieved. Vesting of the Tdpdons and Performance Options is also subjeatteleration in the event of an earlier
change in control or certain public offerings of tiompany's common stock. Each of these optionstheh Time Options or Performance
Options, have a contractual term of 10 years angkarcise price equal to the fair value of the ulyitey common stock on the date of grant.
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The weighted average for key assumptiorsl s determining the fair value of all optionsmed in the years ended February 3, 2012,
January 28, 2011, and January 29, 2010, and a synuihthe methodology applied to develop each agtiom, are as follows:

February 3, January 28, January 29,

2012 2011 2010
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatilil 38.7% 39.1% 41.2%
Weighted average ri-free interest ra 2.3% 2.8% 2.&%
Expected term of options (yea 6.8 7.C 7.4

Expected dividend yield—This is an estimaftéhe expected dividend yield on the CompanyslstThe Company is subject to
limitations on the payment of dividends under itedit Facilities as further discussed in Note 6.idarease in the dividend yield will
decrease compensation expense.

Expected stock price volatility—This is @asure of the amount by which the price of the Gog|s common stock has fluctuated or is
expected to fluctuate. For awards issued undePldue through October 2011, the expected volaslitiere based upon the historical
volatilities of a peer group of four companies. Being in November 2011, the expected volatilifiesawards are based on the historical
volatility of the Company's publicly traded commstock. An increase in the expected volatility wiltrease compensation expense.

Weighted average risk-free interest rateisThthe U.S. Treasury rate for the week of trenghaving a term approximating the
expected life of the option. An increase in th&fiee interest rate will increase compensatioreesge.

Expected term of options—This is the peddime over which the options granted are expktteremain outstanding. Options granted
have a maximum term of 10 years. Due to the redbtilimited historical data for grants issued unter Plan, the Company has estimated the
expected term as the mid-point between the vesiiitg and the contractual term of the option. Amdase in the expected term will increase
compensation expense.

Both the Time Options and the Performanpédds are subject to various provisions set forta management stockholder's agreement
entered into with each option holder by which tler(any may require the employee, upon terminatweell to the Company any vested
options or shares received upon exercise of the Tptions or Performance Options at amounts tliier diased upon the reason for the
termination. In particular, in the event that tlmepdoyee resigns "without good reason” (as defimetthé management stockholder's
agreement), then any options whether or not thencesable are forfeited and any shares received pgor exercise of such options are
callable at the Company's option at an amount eguthle lesser of fair value or the amount paictiershares (i.e., the exercise price). In
cases, because the employee would not benefitistzare appreciation over the exercise price,dooanting purposes such options are not
considered vested until the expiration of the Caomyfsacall option, which is generally five years sefpuent to the date of grant. Accordingly,
all references to the vesting provisions or vestatus of the options discussed in this note gifexeto the vesting pursuant to these
accounting provisions and may differ from descadps of the vesting status of the Time Options agrddPmance Options located elsewhere
in this report or the Company's other SEC filinflse Company records expense for Time Options draght-line basis over the term of the
management stockholder's agreement.
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Each of the Company's management-owne@shRollover Options, and vested Time and Perfoomaptions include certain
provisions by which the holder of such shares, &l Options, or vested Time and Performance optinay require the Company to
repurchase such instruments in limited circumstanSpecifically, each such instrument is subjeet put right for a period of 365 days after
termination due to the death or disability of tleéder of the instrument that occurs generally witfive years from the date of grant. In such
circumstances, the holder of such instruments reqyire the Company to repurchase any shares &ithrearket value of such shares and
any Rollover Options or vested Time and Performap®sns at a price equal to the intrinsic valuswth Rollover or vested Time and
Performance options. Because the Company doesametdontrol over the circumstances in which it rhayequired to repurchase the
outstanding shares or Rollover Options, such shewdsRollover Options have been classified as Raedbk common stock in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as @& tfatss. The values of these equity instrumentbased upon the fair value and intrinsic
value, respectively, of the underlying stock andlé¥er Options at the date of issuance. Becausemption of such shares is uncertain, such
shares are not subject to re-measurement until tb@d&mption becomes probable.

At February 3, 2012, 5,382 Rollover Optiovere outstanding, all of which were exercisablee &ggregate intrinsic value of these
outstanding Rollover Options was $0.2 million wéthveighted average remaining contractual termaf¥2ars, and a weighted average
exercise price of $2.1875.

A summary of Time Options activity durirftgtperiod ended February 3, 2012 is as follows:

Average Remaining

Options Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands) Issued Price Term in Years Value
Balance, January 28, 20 5,778,13. $ 9.7¢
Granted 91,01: 29.9¢
Exercisec (1,427,179 8.41
Cancelec (183,38) 11.0¢
Balance, February 3, 20: 4,258,58. $ 10.5% 6.2 $ 133,69:
Vested or expected to vest at February 3,  4,159,59! $ 10.3¢ 6.2 $ 131,35
Exercisable at February 3, 20 2,486,04 $ 9.0¢ 6.1 $ 81,69:

The weighted average grant date fair vafuBime Options granted during 2011, 2010 and 2089 $13.47, $12.61 and $6.73,
respectively.
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A summary of Performance Options activityidg the period ended February 3, 2012 is asvalio

Average Remaining

Options Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands) Issued Price Term in Years Value
Balance, January 28, 20 5,497,02. $ 9.82
Granted 91,01 29.9¢
Exercisec (1,437,71) 8.3¢
Cancelec (182,089 11.1:
Balance, February 3, 20: 3,968,23 $ 10.7¢ 6.4 $ 123,78l
Vested or expected to vest at February 3, 3,853,901 $ 10.5: 6.4 $ 121,04
Exercisable at February 3, 20 3,098,60. $ 9.4Z 6.1 $ 100,75¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafueerformance Options granted was $13.47, $161$8.73 during 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

The Company currently believes that théquarance targets related to the unvested Perforen@mtions will be achieved. If such goals
are not met, and there is no change in controedai public offerings of the Company's commortktehich would result in the accelerat
of vesting of the Performance Options, future conspdion cost relating to unvested Performance @gtiall not be recognized.

As of February 3, 2012, in addition to Tiared Performance options, the Company has 211 @d%jnalified stock options outstanding,
a portion of which are held by the Company's noiplegee directors.

At February 3, 2012, the total unrecognizethpensation cost related to nonvested stock mptias $16.9 million with an expected
weighted average expense recognition period oy@abs.

In October 2007, the Company's Board o&Etiors adopted an Equity Appreciation Rights Phawrich plan was later amended and
restated (as amended and restated, the "Right$) Pldre Rights Plan provides for the granting ofiégappreciation rights to nonexecutive
managerial employees. No such rights were outstgrati January 28, 2011. During 2011, 818,847 e@upreciation rights were granted,
768,561 of such rights vested, primarily in conjiimt with the Company's December 2011 stock oftgr0,286 of such rights were
cancelled and no such rights remain outstandifgeltuary 3, 2012.

As a result of the Company's initial puldféering in November 2009, 508,572 restricted ebarested, at a total fair value equal to
$11.5 million. As of February 3, 2012, a total 8024 restricted stock unit awards held by non-eyg® directors were outstanding, with
total compensation cost related to the nonvestetibpaof these awards not yet recognized of appnaxely $0.2 million.

All nonvested restricted stock and restdcstock unit awards granted in the periods presemd a purchase price of zero. The Com
records compensation expense on a straight-linie basr the restriction period based on the mapkiee of the underlying stock on the date
of grant. The
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11. Share-based payments (Continued)
nonvested restricted stock unit awards grantedmuheéeplan to non-employee directors generally eest a three-year period.

The fair value method of accounting forrghbased awards resulted in share-based compensapense (a component of SG&A
expenses) and a corresponding reduction in netrindeefore income taxes as follows:

Equit
Stock Appr?:-ci;/tion Restricted Restricted

(In thousands) Options Rights Stock Units Stock Total
Year ended

February 3,

2012

Pre-tax $ 15,121 $ 8,731 $ 12¢ $ — $ 23,98
Net of tax $ 9,20¢ $ 5317 $ 79 $ — $ 14,60
Year ended

January 28,

2011

Pre-tax $ 12,72: $ 17,36¢ $ 83 $ — $ 30,17:
Net of tax $ 7,758 $ 10,58" $ 51 $ — $ 18,39:
Year ended

January 29,

2010

Pre-tax $ 11,68t $ 7,231 $ 84C $ 2,482 $ 22,24:
Net of tax $ 7,13t $ 442( $ 512 $ 1,51¢ $ 13,58

12. Related party transactions

On July 6, 2007, the Company consummataérger transaction, and as a result, substansllbf the Company's outstanding comn
stock became held by an entity controlled by inwesit funds affiliated with KKR. The aggregate push price was funded primarily
through debt financings as described more fulljate 6 and cash equity contributions from KKR, G&pital Partners VI Fund, L.P. and
affiliated funds (affiliates of Goldman, Sachs &.L@nd other equity co-investors (collectivelye thnvestors").

Affiliates of certain of the Investors paeipated as (i) lenders in the Company's Crediilfias discussed in Note 6; (ii) initial purchas
of the Company's Notes discussed in Note 6; (@jrterparties to certain interest rate swaps dészlizr Note 8 and (iv) as advisors in the
merger transaction. Affiliates of KKR and Goldm&achs & Co. indirectly own a substantial portioritef Company's common stock, and
Company repurchased a portion of the shares helldese affiliates in December 2011 as discussétbte 2. Two of KKR's members and a
Managing Director of Goldman, Sachs & Co. servéhenCompany's Board of Directors.

Affiliates of KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Gamong other entities) may be lenders under thenTexan Facility discussed in detail in
Note 6. The Company repaid a portion of the priaki@mlance on the Term Loan Facility during 2009iasussed in Note 6 al
approximately $66.4 million, $53.4 million and $&4nillion of interest on the Term Loan Facility ¢hg 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is a counterpartyntamortizing interest rate swap with a notional ant@f $116.7 million and $323.3 million
as of February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011, régply¢ entered into in connection with the TermalnoFacility. The Company paid
Goldman, Sachs & Co.
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12. Related party transactions (Continued)

approximately $13.9 million, $12.9 million and $27nillion in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,quamt to the interest rate swap as fur
discussed in Note 8.

The Company entered into a sponsor adviagrgement, dated July 6, 2007, with KKR and GohlinSachs & Co. pursuant to which
those entities provided management and advisowcssrto the Company. Under the terms of the spoadasory agreement, among other
things, the Company was obliged to pay annual mamagt fees until its termination upon the completibthe Company's initial public
offering discussed in Note 2. Pursuant to the autyiagreement, the Company paid a fee of $63.6amitb KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co.
in connection with the offering, which amount ind&d a transaction fee equal to 1%, or $4.8 millarthe gross primary proceeds from the
offering accounted for as a cost of raising eqaiig a corresponding reduction to Additional paidapital; and approximately $58.8 million
in connection with its termination, which is inckalin SG&A expenses for 2009. Including the tratisacand termination fees discussed
above, the total management fees and other expernsgsed for the years ended February 3, 2012)alg28, 2011, and January 29, 2010
totaled zero, $0.2 million and $68.0 million, restpeely.

The Company entered into an underwritingeament with KKR Capital Markets (an affiliate oKR), Goldman, Sachs & Co., Citigro
Global Markets Inc., and several other entitieseve as underwriters in connection with its ihiiablic offering in November 2009. The
Company provided underwriting discounts of appraatiety $27.4 million pursuant to the underwritingesment, approximately $6.0 million
of which was provided to each of (a) KKR Capitalrkks; (b) Goldman, Sachs & Co.; and (c) Citigr@lpbal Markets Inc. The Company
paid approximately $3.3 million in expenses reldtethe initial public offering (excluding undentirig discounts and commissions),
including the offering-related expenses of theisglshareholder which the Company was requirecatoymder the terms of an existing
registration rights agreement.

Affiliates of KKR and of Goldman, Sachs &Gserved as underwriters in connection with tromsdary offerings of the Company's
common stock held by certain existing shareholtteaswere completed in December 2011, Septembet, ZDdcember 2010, and April 20:
The Company did not sell shares of common stodeive proceeds from the secondary sales, or payagrwriting fees in connection wi
any of these secondary offerings. Certain membfatseocCompany's management, including certain ofexecutive officers, exercised
registration rights in connection with such offggn
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13. Segment reporting

The Company manages its business on the @fasne reportable segment. See Note 1 for d description of the Company's business.
As of February 3, 2012, all of the Company's openatwere located within the United States withekeeption of a Hong Kong subsidiary,
and a liaison office in India, the collective assatd revenues of which are not material. Theiofig net sales data is presented in
accordance with accounting standards related tbadisres about segments of an enterprise.

(In thousands) 2011 2010 2009
Classes of similar product
Consumable $ 10,833,73 $ 9,332,11' $ 8,356,38
Seasona 2,051,09 1,887,91 1,711,47
Home product: 1,005,21! 917,63t 869,77
Apparel 917,13t 897,32¢ 858,75¢
Net sales $ 14,807,18 $ 13,035,00 $ 11,796,38

14. Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

The following is selected unaudited qudyténancial data for the fiscal years ended Febria 2012 and January 28, 2011. Each
quarterly period listed below was a 13-week acdogrnperiod, with the exception of the fourth quaxd&2011, which was a 14-week
accounting period. The sum of the four quartersafor given year may not equal annual totals dueuading.

First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2011:
Net sales $ 3,451,69 $ 3,575,19 $ 3,595,22. $ 4,185,07
Gross profit 1,087,39 1,148,34; 1,115,80; 1,346,36!
Operating profit 321,61¢ 350,02¢ 310,91 508,24(
Net income 156,96 146,04 171,16 292,51(
Basic earnings per

share 0.4¢ 0.4z 0.5C 0.8¢
Diluted earnings per

share 0.4t 0.42 0.5C 0.8t

First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2010:
Net sales $ 3,111,31. $ 3,214,15 $ 3,223,42 $ 3,486,10
Gross profit 999,75¢ 1,035,97 1,010,66: 1,130,15
Operating profit 290,72: 300,75 274,33: 408,25
Net income 135,99¢ 141,19! 128,12( 222 ,54¢
Basic earnings per

share 0.4C 0.41 0.3¢ 0.6t
Diluted earnings per

share 0.3¢ 0.41 0.37 0.64

As discussed in Note 6, in the first quaoe2011, the Company repurchased $25.0 millionggpal amount of its outstanding Senior
Notes, resulting in a pretax loss of $2.2 milli@i.8 million net of tax, or less than $0.01 peutitl share) which is recognized as O
(income) expense.
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As discussed in Note 6, in the second guait2011, the Company repurchased $839.3 mipiamcipal amount of its outstanding Ser
Notes, resulting in a pretax loss of $58.1 mill{#85.4 million net of tax, or $0.10 per diluted skavhich is recognized as Other (incor
expense.

As discussed in Note 11, in the fourth tpranf 2011 the Company incurred share-based cosapien expenses of $8.6 million
($5.3 million net of tax, or $0.02 per diluted shjgfor the accelerated vesting of certain sharedasvards in conjunction with a secondary
offering of the Company's common stock which iduded in SG&A expenses.

As discussed in Note 11, in the first geiadf 2010 the Company incurred share-based corapienexpenses of $13.3 million
($8.1 million net of tax, or $0.02 per diluted shafor the accelerated vesting of certain sharedbasvards in conjunction with a secondary
offering of the Company's common stock which iduded in SG&A expenses.

As discussed in Note 6, in the second guaft2010, the Company repurchased $50.0 milliamcpal amount of its outstanding Senior
Notes, resulting in a pretax loss of $6.5 millié&4.Q million net of tax, or $0.01 per diluted shamhich is recognized as Other (incon
expense.

As discussed in Note 6, in the third quaofe2010, the Company repurchased $65.0 millionggnal amount of its outstanding Senior
Notes, resulting in a pretax loss of $8.2 milli@5.0 million net of tax, or $0.01 per diluted shamhich is recognized as Other (incon
expense.

As discussed in Note 11, in the fourth ¢granf 2010 the Company incurred share-based cosapien expenses of $3.8 million
($2.3 million net of tax, or $0.01 per diluted shgfor the accelerated vesting of certain sharedasvards in conjunction with a secondary
offering of the Company's common stock which iduded in SG&A expenses.

15. Subsequent Event

On March 15, 2012, the ABL Facility discedsn Note 6 was amended and restated. The matlaieywas extended from July 6, 201
July 6, 2014 and the total commitment was increésed $1.031 billion to $1.2 billion (of which up $350.0 million is available for letters
of credit), subject to borrowing base availabilithe initial applicable margin for borrowings undlee ABL Facility is 1.75% for LIBOR
borrowings and 0.75% for base-rate borrowings. ddramitment fee for any unutilized commitments hasrbinitially established at a rate of
0.375% per annum. An affiliate of Goldman, Sach€& is a lender under the amended and restatedrsllity.

16. Guarantor subsidiaries

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries (@Gearantors") have fully and unconditionally guaesad on a joint and several basis the
Company's obligations under certain outstanding deligations. Each of the Guarantors is a diredghdirect wholly-owned subsidiary of tt
Company.

92




DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

The following consolidating schedules present cosdd financial information on a combined basishousands.

February 3, 2012

CORPORATION

DOLLAR

GENERAL GUARANTOR

OTHER
SUBSIDIARIES  SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS

CONSOLIDATED

TOTAL

BALANCE
SHEET:
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash
equivalents $
Merchandise
inventories
Deferred income
taxes
Prepaid expense
and other
current assel

1,84¢ ¢

10,07¢

551,45

102,62° $

2,009,201

4,685,26:

21,65¢

21,72¢

5,76¢

$ — $

(31,80

(5,102,74))

126,12¢

2,009,201

139,74.

Total current
asset:

563,37¢

6,797,09

49,15

(5,134,55)

2,275,07.

Net property ani
equipmen

Goodwill

Other intangible
assets, ne

Deferred income
taxes

Other assets, n

113,66:
4,338,58!

1,199,20I

6,575,57

1,681,07.

36,75¢

13,26(

221

49,53
323,73t

(49,537)
(6,868,62)

1,794,96!
4,338,58!

1,235,95.

43,94:

Total asset $

12,790,40 $

8,528,18. $

422,64t

$ (12,052,71) $

9,688,52!

LIABILITIES
AND
SHAREHOLDEF
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion ¢
long-term
obligations $
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenst
and othel
Income taxes
payable
Deferred income
taxes

4,654,23
79,01(

12,97

59C $
1,451,27

264,57!
5,01

35,52¢

52,36:
62,441

26,44

$ — %
(5,093,78)

(8,957)

(31,80

59C
1,064,08

397,07
44,42¢

3,722

Total current
liabilities

4,746,21!

1,756,98.

141,25

(5,134,55)

1,509,90:

Long-term
obligations

Deferred income
taxes

Other liabilities

Redeemable
common stocl

Shareholders'
equity:
Preferred stoc
Common stocl

Additional paic-

2,879,47

435,79:
54,33¢

6,087

295,82¢

3,340,07!

270,73¢
33,15¢

23,85¢

141,65

10C

(3,601,65))

(49,537)

(23,95¢)

2,617,89

656,99¢
229,14¢

6,087

295,82¢



in capital 2,960,94i 431,25 19,90( (451,15) 2,960,94!
Retained earning 1,416,91! 2,672,12. 119,73 (2,791,861 1,416,91!
Accumulated

other

comprehensive

loss (5,197 — — — (5,19)
Total

shareholders'

equity 4,668,49! 3,127,23. 139,73° (3,266,96)) 4,668,49!

Total liabilities anc

shareholders'

equity $ 12,790,40 $ 8,528,18 $ 422,64t $ (12,052,71)$  9,688,52
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January 28, 2011

DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
CORPORATION  SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

BALANCE
SHEET:
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 111,54 $ 364,40 $ 21,497 $ — $ 497 ,44¢
Merchandise
inventories — 1,765,43. — — 1,765,43.
Income taxes
receivable 13,52¢ — — (13,529 —
Deferred income
taxes 8,871 — 6,82¢ (15,707 —
Prepaid expense
and other
current assel 741,35: 3,698,11 4,45, (4,338,97) 104,94¢

Total current
asset: 875,30: 5,827,95 32,77¢ (4,368,20) 2,367,82!
Net property an
equipmen 105,15! 1,419,13. 287 — 1,524,57!
Goodwill 4,338,58! — — — 4,338,58!
Other intangible
assets, ne 1,199,20I 57,72 — — 1,256,92.
Deferred income
taxes — — 47,69( (47,690 —
Other assets, n 5,337,52. 12,67¢ 304,28! (5,596,17) 58,31
Total asset $ 11,855,76 $ 7,317,48- $ 385,03¢ $ (10,012,06) $ 9,546,22

LIABILITIES
AND
SHAREHOLDEF
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion ¢
long-term
obligations $ — % 1,157 $ — $ — 3 1,157
Accounts payabl 3,691,56: 1,541,59: 50,82¢ (4,330,34) 953,64
Accrued expenst
and othel 68,39¢ 226,22¢ 61,75¢ (8,637 347,74:
Income taxes
payable 11,92: 13,24¢ 14,341 (13,529 25,98(
Deferred income
taxes — 52,55¢ — (15,707 36,85¢
Total current
liabilities 3,771,88: 1,834,77 126,92( (4,368,20) 1,365,37.
Long-term
obligations 3,534,44 3,000,87 — (3,248,25) 3,287,071
Deferred income
taxes 417,87« 228,38: — (47,690 598,56
Other liabilities 67,93: 27,25( 136,40( — 231,58:
Redeemable
common stocl 9,15¢ — — — 9,15¢
Shareholders'
equity:
Preferred stoc — — — —
Common stocl 298,81¢ 23,85¢ 10C (23,95%) 298,81¢

Additional paic-




in capital 2,945,02: 431,25: 19,90( (451,15) 2,945,02
Retained earning 830,93 1,771,09 101,71¢ (1,872,80) 830,93
Accumulated

other

comprehensive

loss (20,296 — — — (20,296
Total

shareholders'

equity 4,054,47! 2,226,19 121,71¢ (2,347,91) 4,054,47

Total liabilities anc

shareholders'

equity $ 11,85576 $ 7,317,48 $ 38503t $ (10,012,06)$  9,546,22;
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16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended February 3, 2012

DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
CORPORATION ~ SUBSIDIARIES ~ SUBSIDIARIES ~ ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

STATEMENTS

OF

INCOME:
Net sales $ 338,90 $ 14,807,18 $ 84,94( $ (423,84) $ 14,807,18
Cost of goods

sold — 10,109,27. — — 10,109,27
Gross profit 338,90 4,697,91 84,94( (423,84) 4,697,911
Selling, general

and

administrative

expense: 308,09: 3,242,27! 80,57¢ (423,84)) 3,207,101
Operating profit 30,80¢ 1,455,63. 4,361 — 1,490,80.
Interest incom (39,526) (21,959 (20,929 82,31: (92)
Interest expens 246,90! 40,36: 37 (82,319 204,99:
Other (income)

expense 60,61" — — — 60,61"
Income (loss)

before incom

taxes (237,18Y 1,437,22i 25,24¢ — 1,225,28
Income tax

expense

(benefit) (84,819 536,19:- 7,22¢ — 458,60«
Equity in

subsidiaries'

earnings, net

of taxes 919,05: — — (919,05) —

Net income $ 766,68! $ 901,03: $ 18,01¢ $ (919,05) $ 766,68

For the year ended January 28, 2011

DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
CORPORATION ~ SUBSIDIARIES ~ SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

STATEMENTS

OF

INCOME:
Net sales $ 311,28( $ 13,035,000 $ 84,87¢ $ (396,15 $ 13,035,00
Cost of goods

sold — 8,858,44 — — 8,858,44.
Gross profit 311,28 4,176,55 84,87¢ (396,15% 4,176,55
Selling, general

and

administrative

expense: 283,06 2,948,341 67,23¢ (396,159 2,902,49.
Operating profit 28,21 1,228,211 17,64« — 1,274,06!
Interest incom (44,677) (7,025 (29,986 71,46¢ (220)
Interest expens 300,93: 44,72 23 (71,469 274,21.
Other (income)

expense 15,10: — — — 15,10:

Income (loss)
before incom



taxes

Income tax
expense
(benefit)

Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, net
of taxes

Net income

(243,14)  1,190,51: 37,60° — 984,97:
(102,449 447,88: 11,68: — 357,11!
768,55( — — (768,55() —
$ 62785 $ 742,63 $ 2502t §  (768,55) $ 627,85
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Cost of goods
sold

Gross profit
Selling, general
and
administrative
expense:
Operating profit
(loss)
Interest incom
Interest expens
Other (income)
expense

Income (loss)
before incom
taxes

Income tax
expense
(benefit)

Equity in
subsidiaries’
earnings, net
of taxes

Net income
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16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended January 29, 2010

DOLLAR

GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED

CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
$ 306,03t $ 11,79638 $ 91,26 $  (397,30) $ 11,796,38
— 8,106,50" — — 8,106,50"
306,03 3,689,87. 91,26 (397,30) 3,689,87.
337,22 2,734,79; 61,89’ (397,30) 2,736,61:
(31,189 955,07 29,36¢ — 953,25t
(52,04 (10,96%) (19,679) 82,54t (144)
375,28 52,98( 29 (82,54%) 345,74
55,54; — — — 55,54;
(409,962 913,06¢ 49,01 — 552,11(
(149,47 346,11° 16,03t — 212,67
599,92 — — (599,92 —
$  33944. $  566,94¢ $ 32,97t $  (599,92) $ 339,44,
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For the year ended February 3, 2012
DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATION  SUBSIDIARIES  SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS:
Cash flows from
operating
activities:
Net income $ 766,68" $ 901,03: $ 18,01¢ $ (919,05) $ 766,68!
Adjustments to
reconcile net
income to net cas
provided by (used
in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization 31,79 243,48! 13C — 275,40¢
Deferred income
taxes 1,64¢ 25,32¢ (16,74%) — 10,23:
Tax benefit of
stock options (33,107 — — — (33,109
Loss on debt
retirement, ne 60,30: — — — 60,307
Noncash share-
based
compensatiol 15,25( — — — 15,25(
Noncash inventor
adjustments an
asset
impairments — 48,67 — — 48,67:
Other noncash
gains and losse 652 4,86¢ — — 5,517
Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, ne (919,05)) — — 919,05: —
Change in
operating asset
and liabilities:
Merchandise
inventories — (291,49)) — — (291,49)
Prepaid
expenses anc
other current
asset: (19,367) (12,677) (2,527) — (34,559
Accounts
payable (17,679 120,60 1,51z — 104,44:
Accrued
expenses anc
other
liabilities 20,79¢ 45,01¢ 5,94¢ — 71,768
Income taxe: 47,68: (8,239 12,10: — 51,55(
Other 3) (121) (71) — (19%5)
Net cash provided k
(used in) operatin
activities (44,387) 1,076,48 18,37¢ — 1,050,48!
Cash flows from
investing
activities:
Purchases of
property and
equipmen (30,407 (484,38%) (70) — (514,86))
Proceeds from sale:
of property and
equipmen 33 99z — — 1,02¢
Net cash used i
investing activities (30,37() (483,39) (70) — (513,83))
Cash flows from
financing
activities:
Issuance of commo
stock 177 — — — 177
Repayments of long
term obligations (910,67 (1,279 — — (911,95)
Borrowings under
revolving credit
facility 1,157,801 — — — 1,157,801

Repayments ¢




borrowings under
revolving credit
facility

Repurchase of
common stock
from principal
shareholde

Equity settlements
with employees,
net of taxes pai

Tax benefit of stock
options

Changes in
intercompany nott
balances, ne

Net cash provided k
(used in) financing
activities

Net increast
(decrease) in casl
and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents,
beginning of yea

Cash and cash
equivalents, end ¢
year

(973,10()

(185,00()

(28,999

33,10:

871,74.

(18,14

(973,100

(185,00)

(28,999

33,10:

(34,949

(18,147

(907,96Y)

(109,70)

111,54

15€

21,49

(371,320

497,44

1,84«

21,65t

126,12¢
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For the year ended January 28, 2011
DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATION  SUBSIDIARIES  SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS:
Cash flows from
operating
activities:
Net income $ 627,85 $ 742,63. $ 25,92F $ (768,556 $ 627,85
Adjustments to
reconcile net
income to net cas
provided by (used
in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization 33,01t 221,85: 61 — 254,92°
Deferred income
taxes 17,811 47,71¢ (14,557 — 50,98t
Tax benefit of
stock options (13,90%) — — — (13,905
Loss on debt
retirement, ne 14,57¢ — — — 14,57¢
Noncash share-
based
compensatiol 15,95¢ — — — 15,95¢
Noncash inventor
adjustments an
asset
impairments — 7,607 — — 7,607
Other noncash
gains and losse 1,39¢ 4,547 — — 5,94:
Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, ne (768,55¢) — — 768,55¢ —
Change in
operating asset
and liabilities:
Merchandise
inventories — (251,809 — — (251,809
Prepaid
expenses anc
other current
asset: (1,64¢€) (3,647) (4,86%) — (10,157
Accounts
payable (5,446 124,12 4,75( — 123,42:
Accrued
expenses anc
other
liabilities (28,447 (12,410 (1,57¢) — (42,429
Income taxe: 18,13¢ 14,89: 9,87¢ — 42,90:¢
Other 81€ (2,009) ) — (1,199
Net cash provided k
(used in) operatin
activities (88,427 893,49 19,61« — 824,68
Cash flows from
investing
activities:
Purchases of
property and
equipmen (22,83() (397,32) (243) — (420,39
Proceeds from sale:
of property and
equipmen — 1,44¢ — — 1,44¢
Net cash used i
investing activities (22,83() (395,879 (243) — (418,94
Cash flows from
financing
activities:
Issuance of commo
stock 631 — — — 631
Repayments of long
term obligations (129,21) (1,969 — — (131,18()
Equity settlements
with employees,
net of taxes pai (13,729 — — — (13,729

Tax benefit of stocl



options

Changes in
intercompany not
balances, ne

Net cash provided k
(used in) financing
activities

Net increast
(decrease) in casl
and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents,
beginning of yea

Cash and cash
equivalents, end ¢
year

13,90 = = 13,90
253,58 (234,25 (19,329 —
125,18; (236,220 (19,329 (130,36)
13,928 261,40 42 275,37(
97,62( 103,00 21,45¢ 222,07
111,54! 364,40 $ 21,497 $ 497 44¢
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS:
Cash flows from
operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to
reconcile net
income to net cast
provided by (used
in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization
Deferred income
taxes
Tax benefit of
stock options
Loss on debt
retirement, ne
Noncash share-
based
compensatiol
Noncash inventory
adjustments anc
asset
impairments
Other noncash
gains and losse
Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, ne
Change in
operating assets
and liabilities:
Merchandise
inventories
Prepaid expens
and other
current assel
Accounts
payable
Accrued
expenses and
other liabilities
Income taxe:
Other

Net cash provided b
(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from
investing activities

Purchases of proper
and equipmer

Proceeds from sales
of property and
equipmen

Net cash used i
investing activities

Cash flows from
financing activities

Issuance of commor
stock

Repayments of long:
term obligations

Payment of cash
dividends and
related amount

Equity settlements
with employees, ni
of taxes paic

Tax benefit of stock
options

Changes in
intercompany not

For the year ended January 29, 2010

DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER

CORPORATION ~ SUBSIDIARIES ~ SUBSIDIARIES ~ ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

$ 339,44: $ 566,94 $ 32,97¢ $ (599,92) $ 339,44

36,541 220,04t 182 = 256,77

(18,57) 67,317 (33,886 — 14,86(

(5,390) — — — (5,390)

55,26¢ — — — 55,26¢

17,29t = = = 17,29t

— 647 — — 647

3,221 4,69¢ = = 7,92(

(599,92) — — 599,92 —

— (100,249 — — (100,249

2,582 (10,259 372 = (7,299)

26,53t 79,51 o) — 106,04¢

(20,679 10,49: (2,465 — (12,649

48,49 (50,119 2,771 — 1,15¢

(3,209 2,171 32 = (1,000

(118,389 791,22t 17 — 672,82

(34,647 (216,03)) (68) — (250,74)

— 2,701 — — 2,701

(34,64 (213,33) (68) — (248,041)

443,75 — — — 443,75:

(782,519 (1,662) — — (784,18()

(239,73) — — — (239,73))

(5,925 — — — (5,929

5,39( — — — 5,39(



balances, ne

Net cash provided b
(used in) financing
activities

Net increast
(decrease) in cash
and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents,
beginning of yea

Cash and cash
equivalents, end o
year

537,05: (537,639 58€ =
(41,98) (539,300 58€ (580,69¢)
(195,01) 38,59 501 (155,919
292,63 64,40 20,95 377,99
97,62( 103,000 $ 21,45¢ 222,07
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) Disclosure Controls and Procedures.Under the supervision and with the participatd our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financafficer, we conducted an evaluation of our diselescontrols and procedures, as such te
defined under Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promeldjander the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, amnded (the "Exchange Act"). Based
on this evaluation, our principal executive offiegrd our principal financial officer concluded tloatr disclosure controls and procedures \
effective as of the end of the period covered iy itbport.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Can@ver Financial Reporting. Our management prepared and is responsibtad
consolidated financial statements and all relaiteahicial information contained in this report. Tresponsibility includes establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over finahegorting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15dfLbfder the Exchange Act. Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed tovpde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifynancial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes toedance with United States generally acceptedustow principles.

To comply with the requirements of Sectd@4 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, managemesigded and implemented a structured
and comprehensive assessment process to evalaatffghtiveness of its internal control over finahceporting. Such assessment was based
on criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway
Commission. Because of its inherent limitationsystem of internal control over financial reportican provide only reasonable assurance
and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Manageregularly monitors our internal control ovieahcial reporting, and actions are
taken to correct any deficiencies as they are ifietht Based on its assessment, management hakideddhat our internal control over
financial reporting is effective as of Februar2812.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registiepublic accounting firm that audited our consatiédi financial statements, has issued an
attestation report on management's assessment oftetnal control over financial reporting. Sudteatation report is contained below.
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(c) Attestation Report of Independent Regist&uwellic Accounting Firm.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited Dollar General Corporasind subsidiaries' internal control over financegarting as of February 3, 2012, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrafedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgp@izations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Dollar General @ogtion and subsidiaries' management is respon@iblaaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assaent of the effectiveness of internal control dirancial reporting included in the
accompanying Management's Annual Report on IntéZoakrol Over Financial Reporting. Our responstpils to express an opinion on the
company's internal control over financial reportbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogietr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanagigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fic& reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company&etsthat could have a material effect on the firstatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Dollar General Corporati@md subsidiaries maintained, in all material regpexffective internal control over financial
reporting as of February 3, 2012, based on the CE&r8€ia.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Oghtdoard (United States), the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets of D@kaeral Corporation and subsidiaries as of Febr8ia?2p12 and January 28, 2011, and
the related consolidated statements of incomeghbéders' equity, and cash flows for each of theetyears in the period ended February 3,
2012, of Dollar General Corporation and subsid&&rd our report dated March 22, 2012 expresseaa@ualified opinion thereon.

/sl Er@s¥oung LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 22, 2012
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(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financiaporting. There have been no changes during the quartkedeF~ebruary 3, 2012
our internal control over financial reporting (afided in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) that haveamally affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control overdincial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

(@) Information Regarding Directors and Execat®fficers. The information required by this ltem 10 regagdour directors and
director nominees is contained under the capti¥isd' are the nominees this year," "What are the ¢patinds of this year's nominees," "Are
there any familial relationships between any ofribeiinees," "How are directors identified and noaénal,” and "What particular experience,
qualifications, attributes or skills led the BoarfdDirectors to conclude that each nominee shoeitdesas a director of Dollar General," all
under the heading "Proposal 1: Election of Dirextam our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed &ur Annual Meeting of Shareholders to
be held on June 1, 2012 (the "2012 Proxy Staterjpemtiich information under such captions is incogted herein by reference. Information
required by this Item 10 regarding our executiviicefs is contained in Part | of this Form 10-K enthe caption "Executive Officers of the
Registrant," which information under such capti®imicorporated herein by reference.

(b) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Excleahgt. Information required by this Item 10 regagicompliance with Section 16
(a) of the Exchange Act is contained under theiocapSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportingngpliance” in the 2012 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captiondsrporated herein by reference.

(c) Code of Business Conduct and EthicdVe have adopted a Code of Business CondudEtrids that applies to all of our
employees, officers and Board members. This Cogested on our Internet website at www.dollargelnaven. If we choose to no longer p
such Code, we will provide a free copy to any pengpon written request to Dollar General Corporatwo Investor Relations Department,
100 Mission Ridge, Goodlettsville, TN 37072. Weeimdl to provide any required disclosure of an amemdno or waiver from the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to ouncjpal executive officer, principal financial oféic, principal accounting officer or
controller, or persons performing similar functipos our Internet website located at www.dollargaheom promptly following the
amendment or waiver. We may elect to disclose anif amendment or waiver in a report on Forik fled with the SEC either in addition
or in lieu of the website disclosure. The inforroatcontained on or connected to our Internet welisihot incorporated by reference into this
Form 10-K and should not be considered part ofdhigny other report that we file with or furnighthe SEC.

(d) Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate &lves. There have been no material changes to thegues by which security
holders may recommend nominees to the registi@atisd of Directors.

(e) Audit Committee Information. Information required by this Item 10 regardmg audit committee and our audit committee
financial expert is contained under the captionsrjyorate Governance—Does the Board have standidg,Alompensation and Nominating
Committees" and "—Does Dollar General have an audiimittee financial expert serving on its Auditr@uittee” in the 2012 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captionisderporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 1gaeding director and executive officer compensatiba Compensation Committee Report,
risks arising from our compensation policies anacpces for employees, and compensation committeedcks and insider participation is
contained under the captions "Director Compensatou "Executive Compensation” in the 2012 Proxat&hent, which information under
such captions is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(&) Equity Compensation Plan Information.The following table sets forth information albsecurities authorized for issuance under
our compensation plans (including individual comgaion arrangements) as of February 3, 2012;

Number of
securities remaining
available for future

Number of securities issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans appro
by security holders(1 8,456,97' $ 11.12 19,338,12
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde — — —
Total(1) 8,456,97' $ 11.12 19,338,12

@ Column (a) consists of shares of common stock eugon exercise of outstanding options and ugstivg and
payment of restricted stock units under the 20@¢sStncentive Plan and shares of common stock idsugpon exercis
of outstanding options under the 1998 Stock Ineerfiilan. Restricted stock units are settled foreshaf common stock
on a one-for-one basis and have no exercise gkieordingly, those units have been excluded foppses of
computing the weighted-average exercise price limnen (b). Column (c) consists of shares reserveds&uance
pursuant to the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, wheth#re form of stock, restricted stock, restricsgdck units, or other
stock-based awards or upon the exercise of anroptioight. Although certain options remain outstiaig under the
1998 Stock Incentive Plan, no future awards magrbaeted thereunde

(b) Other Information. The information required by this Item 12 regagdsecurity ownership of certain beneficial ownansl our
management is contained under the caption "SedDritgership” in the 2012 Proxy Statement, whichrimfation under such caption is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 18aeding certain relationships and related trangastis contained under the caption

"Transactions with Management and Others" in thE22Rroxy Statement, which information under sugftioa is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information required by this Item 18aeding director independence is contained undecéption "Director Independence" in the
2012 Proxy Statement, which information under stegbtion is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this ltem 1gaeding fees we paid to our principal accountaudtthe pre-approval policies and procedures
established by the Audit Committee of our Boardokctors is contained under the caption "Fees Rafliditors" in the 2012 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captidanésrporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

@)

(b)

(©

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance She:

Consolidated Statements of Inco

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' E«
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flt

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

All schedules for which provision is made in theligable accounting
regulations of the SEC are not required underé¢teted instructions, are
inapplicable or the information is included in @ensolidated Financial
Statements and, therefore, have been om

Exhibits: See Exhibit Index immediately followithe signature pages
hereto, which Exhibit Index is incorporated by refece as if fully set forth
herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

Date: March 22, 2012 By: /sl RICHARD W. DREILING

Richard W. Dreiling,
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

We, the undersigned directors and officdithe registrant, hereby severally constitute Ridhiw. Dreiling and David M. Tehle, and e
of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys witli power to them and each of them to sign forars] in our names in the capacities
indicated below, any and all amendments to thisuahiReport on Form 10-K filed with the SecuritiegldExchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidielow by the following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ RICHARD W. DREILING Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

March 22, 2012
RICHARD W. DREILING

/s/ DAVID M. TEHLE Executive Vice President & Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial =~ March 22, 2012
DAVID M. TEHLE and Accounting Officer
/sl RAJ AGRAWAL
Director March 21, 2012
RAJ AGRAWAL
/sl WARREN F. BRYANT
Director March 21, 2012
WARREN F. BRYANT
/sl MICHAEL M. CALBERT
Director March 21, 2012
MICHAEL M. CALBERT
/s/ ADRIAN JONES
Director March 21, 2012

ADRIAN JONES
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Name

/sl WILLIAM C. RHODES, Il

WILLIAM C. RHODES, Il

/s/ DAVID B. RICKARD

DAVID B. RICKARD

Director

Director
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Date

March 21, 2012

March 21, 2012




3.1

4.1

4.4

4.€

4.8

EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Charter of Dollar Genergb@ation (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Guntr Report on Form 8-K dated
November 18, 2009, filed with the SEC on Novemt&r2D09 (file no. 0C-11421))

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Dollar General Qaitfan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Guntr Report on Form 8-K dated
November 18, 2009, filed with the SEC on Novemt&r2D09 (file no. 0C-11421))

Form of Stock Certificate for Common Stock (incaigied by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm ‘-1 (file no. 33:-161464))

Shareholders' Agreement of Dollar General Corponatilated as of November 9, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Doftkeneral Corporation's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 18, 2009, filed with 8€C on November 18, 2009 (file
no. 00-11421))

Instrument of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptarffective as of February 25,
2009, by and among Dollar General Corporation, ¥vedrgo Bank, National
Association, and U.S. Bank National Associatiomdiporated by reference to Exhibit
to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report omfr8-K dated February 25, 2009,
filed with the SEC on February 25, 2009 (file n61-11421))

Senior Subordinated Indenture, dated July 6, 2a6igng Buck Acquisition Corp.,

Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors nameceth and U.S. Bank National
Association (the successor trustee), as trusteerfiorated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8fi dated July 6, 2007, filed with
the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. (-11421))

Form of 11.875% / 12.625% Senior Subordinated Tegites due 2017 (included in
Exhibit 4.4)

First Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Subattdh Indenture, dated as of
September 25, 2007, between DC Financial, LLCGbaranteeing Subsidiary, and U.S.
Bank National Association (the successor trustejrustee (incorporated by referenc
Exhibit 4.16 to Dollar General Corporation's Regison Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 33:-148320))

Second Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Sutmteti Indenture, dated as of
December 31, 2007, between Retail Risk Solutioh€;,lthe Guaranteeing Subsidiary,
and U.S. Bank National Association (the succegsstde), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.33 to Dollar General Corpiords Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Third Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Subateith Indenture, dated as of
March 23, 2009, between the Guaranteeing Subsdiagiferenced therein and U.S. B
National Association, as trustee (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.23 to Doll.
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Subatdd Indenture, dated as of
March 25, 2010, between the Guaranteeing Subsdiagiferenced therein and U.S. B
National Association, as trustee (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 4.25 to Doll.
General Corporation's Registration Statement omF%-3 (file no. 33:-165799)
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Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Suimatgd Indenture, dated as of
August 30, 2010, among Retail Property Investment€ and U.S. Bank National
Association, as successor trustee (incorporateefeyence to Exhibit 4.56 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omF-3 (file no. 33:-165799))



4.11 Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2@@7ong Buck Acquisition Corp.,
Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors nameceth and the initial purchasers
named therein (incorporated by reference to ExHildi0 to Dollar General Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007 dfidth the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file
no. 00:-11421))

4.1z Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2@@7gng Buck Holdings, L.P., Buck
Holdings, LLC, Dollar General Corporation and Slmaiders named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

4.1% Credit Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, amoolipDGeneral Corporation, as
Borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as Adminmative Agent, and the other lending
institutions from time to time party thereto (inporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8ri dated July 6, 2007, filed with
the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. (-11421))

4,14 Guarantee to the Credit Agreement, dated as ofa]up07, among certain domestic
subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporation, as @otors and Citicorp North
America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 4.3 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Fori @ated July 6, 2007, filed with the S
on July 12, 2007 (file no. 0-11421))

4.1% Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 20@fietGuarantee to the Credit
Agreement, between DC Financial, LLC, as New Guaraand Citicorp North
America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 4.23 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

4.1€ Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 20GFietGuarantee to the Credit
Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, asvNsuarantor, and Citicorp North
America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 4.34 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

4.17 Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009,adxharantee to the Credit Agreem
between the New Guarantors referenced therein &mbi® North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitt4.30 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

4.1&¢ Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 25, 2010,adxharantee to the Credit Agreem
between the New Guarantors referenced therein &mbi® North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitt4.33 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

4.1¢ Supplement No. 5 to the Guarantee to the Credie&mient, dated as of August 30, 2(
by and between Retail Property Investments, LLC @itidorp North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitd.57 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

109

4.2C Security Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007,rjriaollar General Corporation and
certain domestic subsidiaries of Dollar Generalpboation, as Grantors, and Citicorp
North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorpedby reference to Exhibit 4.4
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8ri dated July 6, 2007, filed with
the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. (-11421))

4.21 Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 20QFet8ecurity Agreement, between
DC Financial, LLC, as New Grantor, and Citicorp tloAmerica, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2®tlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

4.2z Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 20GFetSecurity Agreement, between
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4.3C

Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as New Grantor, andd®itp North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bxt.35 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009,dd#curity Agreement, between the
New Grantors referenced therein and Citicorp Néutierica, Inc., as Collateral Age
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.34 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 25, 2010,edcurity Agreement, between the
New Grantors referenced therein and Citicorp Néutierica, Inc., as Collateral Age
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.38 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Supplement No. 5 to the Security Agreement, daseaf &ugust 30, 2010, between
Retail Property Investments, LLC and Citicorp No#timerica, Inc., as Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.58 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Pledge Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, amatigrDGeneral Corporation and
certain domestic subsidiaries of Dollar GeneralgBoation, as Pledgors, and Citicorp
North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorpedhby reference to Exhibit 4.5
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8fi dated July 6, 2007, filed with
the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. (-11421))

Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 20@fietBledge Agreement, between
Financial, LLC, as Additional Pledgor, and Citicdprth America, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2’ Dtallar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33:--148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 200Ret®ledge Agreement, between
Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as Additional Pledgand Citicorp North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitt4.36 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009,dd”ledge Agreement, between the
Additional Pledgors referenced therein and Citiddgsth America, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3®tlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (file no. 33:--158281))

Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 25, 2010,dd’ledge Agreement, between the
Additional Pledgors referenced therein and Citiddgsth America, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4®tlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (file no. 33:-165799))
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Supplement No. 5 to the Pledge Agreement, dated August 30, 2010, between Retail
Property Investments, LLC and Citicorp North Amaritnc., as Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.59 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

ABL Credit Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, agnDollar General Corporation, as
Parent Borrower, certain domestic subsidiaries afdd General Corporation, as
Subsidiary Borrowers, The CIT Group/Business Cridit, as ABL Administrative
Agent, and the other lending institutions from titodime party thereto (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Dollar General Corpiangis Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 2@)7 (file no. 00-11421))

Appointment of Successor Agent and Amendment No.the ABL Credit Agreement
entered into as of July 31, 2009, by and amongdlfieGroup/Business Credit, Inc.,
Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, Dollar General @mation and the Subsidiary
Borrowers and the Lenders signatory thereto (inm@fed by reference to Exhibit 99 to
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Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8ri dated July 31, 2009, filed with
the SEC on August 4, 2009 (file no. (-11421))

Guarantee, dated as of September 11, 2007, toBheCkedit Agreement, between DC
Financial, LLC and The CIT Group/Business Credit Ims ABL Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.29 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 1, dated as of December 31, 200RetGuarantee to the ABL Credit
Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, asvNsuarantor, and The CIT
Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agéntorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.37 to Dollar General Corporation's Regison Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of March 23, 2009,ddxharantee to the ABL Credit
Agreement, between the New Guarantors referenegdithand The CIT Group/Busin
Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporateylreference to Exhibit 4.42 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 30, 2010,ddxbharantee to the ABL Credit
Agreement, between the New Guarantors referen@dithand Wells Fargo Retalil
Finance, LLC, as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporatadreference to Exhibit 4.49 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm ‘-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Supplement No. 4 to the Guarantee to the ABL Crédieement, dated as of August 30,
2010, between Retail Property Investments, LLCWalls Fargo Retail Finance, LLC,
as Collateral Agent (incorporated by referencexbilit 4.60 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

ABL Security Agreement, dated as of July 6, 200@pag Dollar General Corporation,
as Parent Borrower, certain domestic subsidiafi@otiar General Corporation, as
Subsidiary Borrowers, collectively the Grantorsd ditne CIT Group/Business

Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporateylreference to Exhibit 4.7 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Fori @ated July 6, 2007, filed with the S
on July 12, 2007 (file no. 0-11421))

Supplement No. 1, dated as of September 11, 26Q@fetABL Security Agreement,
between DC Financial, LLC, as New Grantor, and THE Group/Business Credit Inc.,
as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by referetmé&xhibit 4.31 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))
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Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 20Ge ABL Security Agreement,
between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as New Granégod The CIT Group/Business
Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporatey reference to Exhibit 4.38 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009,&0AfBL Security Agreement, between
the New Grantors referenced therein and The CITu@Rusiness Credit Inc., as ABL
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitt4.46 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 30, 2010,&cAfBL Security Agreement, between
the New Grantors referenced therein and Wells FRefail Finance, LLC, as ABL
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bittd.54 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Supplement No. 5 to the Security Agreement to tB& £redit Agreement, dated as of
August 30, 2010, between Retail Property Invests)dritC and Wells Fargo Retail
Finance, LLC, as Collateral Agent (incorporatedéfgrence to Exhibit 4.61 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omF-3 (file no. 33:-165799))
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Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plakdg Employees of Dollar General
Corporation and its affiliates (as approved by shalders on October 23, 2009)
((incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to BolGeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-1 (file no. 33-161464))*

Form of Stock Option Agreement between Dollar Geh€orporation and certain
officers of Dollar General Corporation grantingct@ptions pursuant to the 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExtHibi2 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33--148320))*

Form of Option Rollover Agreement between Dollam&ml Corporation and certain
officers of Dollar General Corporation (incorpoiatey reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm !-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Form of Stock Option Agreement, adopted on May224,1, for Stock Option Grants to
Certain Newly Hired and Promoted Employees undeimended and Restated 2007
Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees of Dollam@ral Corporation and its Affiliates
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Form IDfor
the fiscal quarter ended April 29, 2011, filed witie SEC on June 1, 2011 (file no. 001-
11421)) *

Waiver of Certain Limitations Pertaining to OptioReeviously Granted under the
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plagctdfé August 26, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter enddd 3Q, 2010, filed with the SEC on
August 31, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Management Stockholder's Agreement amoriaDGeneral Corporation, Bu
Holdings, L.P. and certain officers of Dollar GeslgCorporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar General Corpiords Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))*
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Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemmaong Dollar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employeEBollar General Corporation
(July 2007 grant group) (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended October 30,
2009, filed with the SEC on December 12, 2009 (fite 00:-11421))*

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemenngrbmllar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employekBollar General Corporation
(post-July 2007 grant group) (incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended October 30,
2009, filed with the SEC on December 12, 2009 (iite 00:-11421))*

Second Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agretaneffective June 3, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended!/&, 2010, filed with the SEC on
June 8, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresmhin connection with restricted
stock unit grants made to outside directors podviay 24, 2011 pursuant to the
Company's Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incelkare(incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.15 to Dollar General Corporation'sgyR¢ration Statement on FormiSfile
no. 33:-161464))

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, aédpn May 24, 2011, for Grants
to Non-Employee Directors under the Amended anda®ed 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
for Key Employees of Dollar General Corporation @sdAffiliates (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corpiords Form 109 for the fiscal quarte
ended April 29, 2011, filed with the SEC on Jun211 (file no. 00-11421))
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Form of Director Stock Option Agreement in cortitwith option grants made to
outside directors pursuant to the Company's AmenadeldRestated 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1®&tdlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (file no. 33-161464))

1998 Stock Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restffedtive as of May 31, 2006)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to Doleneral Corporation's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated May 31, 2006, filed with the S&€CJune 2, 2006 (file no. 001-
11421))*

Amendment to Dollar General Corporation 1998 Stodentive Plan, effective
November 28, 2006 (incorporated by reference taliixh0.8 to Dollar Gener:
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexéil year ended February 2, 2007,
filed with the SEC on March 29, 2007 (file no. -11421))*

Amendment to Dollar General Corporation 1998 Stodentive Plan, effective

August 26, 2010 (incorporated by reference to ExAid.1 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended July 30, 2010,
filed with the SEC on August 31, 2010 (file no. -11421))*

Form of Stock Option Grant Notice in connectionhagiption grants made pursuant to
1998 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeegiocDollar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entldg 29, 2005, filed with the SEC
on August 25, 2005 (file no. 0-11421))*

Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan (as anttadd restated effective
December 31, 2007) (incorporated by reference tutix10.10 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*
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First Amendment to the Dollar General Corporat@inP/SERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007) (incorporhteceference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Second Amendment to the Dollar General Corpordlibi?/SERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007), dated dara# 3, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Dollar General Corpiords Quarterly Report on Form 1D-
for the quarter ended August 1, 2008, filed witt 8EC on September 3, 2008 (file

no. 00-11421))*

Amended and Restated Dollar General Corporatioruahimcentive Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Dollar General @wation's Registration Statement on
Form &1 (file no. 33-161464)) *

Dollar General Corporation 2011 Teamshare Bonugram for Named Executive
Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ Dollar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded April 29, 2011, filed with the
SEC on June 1, 2011 (file no. (-11421))*

Summary of Dollar General Corporation Life Insurafrogram as Applicable to
Executive Officers (incorporated by reference tdibit 10.19 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexél year ended February 2, 2007,
filed with the SEC on March 29, 2007) (file no. -11421))*

Dollar General Corporation Domestic Relocation &ofor Officers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, fil@h the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00-11421))*

Summary of No-Employee Director Compensation effective Februarg04.2
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Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effeftivé 23, 2010, by and betwe
Dollar General Corporation and Richard Dreilingcérporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form & dated April 23
2010, filed with the SEC on April 27, 2010 (file.rM@01-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of January 218 28&tween Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.29 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omF%-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Stock Option Agreement dated April 23, 2010, by bativeen Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 99.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedl@pril 23, 2010, filed with the
SEC on April 27, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, effective asamifudry 21, 2008, between Dollar
General Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorpedsby reference to Exhibit 10.32 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as abda21, 2008, among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and Ridhareiling (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Dollar General Cogtion's Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))*
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Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2009,dnd between Dollar General
Corporation and David M. Tehle (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tediélarch 30, 2009, filed with the
SEC on April 3, 2009 (file no. 0-11421))*

Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2009, byddetween Dollar General
Corporation and Kathleen R. Guion (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 99.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tediélarch 30, 2009, filed with the
SEC on April 3, 2009 (file no. 0-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 20¥Jard between Dollar General
Corporation and Todd J. Vasos (incorporated byregfee to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1f@Qhe fiscal quarter ended
October 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on Decembé&®,1 (file no. 00-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated December 19, 20G8dm Dollar General Corporatir
and Todd Vasos (incorporated by reference to Exhini36 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexéil year ended January 29, 2010,
filed with the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. -11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated Deceb®e&008, among Dollar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and Todd Vasosdrporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.37 to Dollar General Corporation's AnhRaport on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 29, 2010, filed with the SE®™arch 24, 2009 (file no. 0(-11421))

*

Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2010aby between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.33 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 260&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.34 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of May 28, 209%ru between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.35 to Dollar
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General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 26§@&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.36 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 801-11421))*

Subscription Agreement entered into as of March2®40, by and between Dollar
General Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporayegeference to Exhibit 10.37 to
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FA0K for the fiscal year ended
January 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on March ZP,22(file no. 00-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as ofigt 8, 2008, by and between
Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P.dalohn Flanigan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filéh the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00-11421))*
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Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2040abd between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.39 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 2B9&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.40 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of December 1@8,20y and between Dollar Gene
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.41 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 801-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 26¢@&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.42 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kiffe fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Subscription Agreement entered into as of DecerhBeP008 by and between Dollar
General Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorpdriagereference to Exhibit 10.43 to
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FA0K for the fiscal year ended
January 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on March ZP,22(file no. 00-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement entered intd Asigust 28, 2008 among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and RoBavener (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.44 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filéh the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective April 1, 2009, mddetween Dollar General
Corporation and Susan S. Lanige

Retirement Agreement, dated as of July 20, 201Bnoybetween Kathleen Guion and
Dollar General Corporation (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 99 to Dollar General
Corporation's Form-K dated July 20, 2011 (file no. 0-11421))*

Share Repurchase Agreement dated as of Decemdet # by and among Buck
Holdings, L.P. and Dollar General Corporation (irpmrated by reference to Exhibit 1(
to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Reporfranm 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended October 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on Ddammd, 2011 (file no. 0(-11421))



10.4¢ Indemnification Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, agnBack Holdings, L.P., Dollar
General Corporation, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & CB..and Goldman, Sachs & Co.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Bolseneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

10.5C Indemnification Priority and Information Sharing ssgment, dated as of June 30, 2009,
among Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P., the fundsned therein and Dollar General
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibi#4® to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (file no. 33:-161464))
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101.DEF

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
Powers of Attorney (included as part of the sigrepages heret
Certifications of CEO and CFO under Exchange AdeRiB:14(a)
Certifications of CEO and CFO under 18 U.S.C. 1

XBRL Instance Documert

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docurr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan
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Exhibit 10.23

We do not compensate for Board service any direehar also serves as a Dollar General employee. Weaimburse directors for
certain fees and expenses incurred in connectitina@ntinuing education seminars and for travel mahated expenses related to Dollar
General business.

Each non-employee director receives quarterly paymkthe following cash compensation, as applieabl

. $75,000 annual retainer for service as a Board neemb
. $17,500 annual retainer for service as chairmahefudit Committee;

. $17,500 annual retainer for service as chairmahefompensation, Nominating and Governance Comefthe “CNG
Committee”); and

. $1,500 for each Board or committee meeting in excésin aggregate of 12 that a director attendsgwach fiscal year.

In addition, in 2011 each non-employee directoeingsd an annual equity award under our 2007 Stockrtive Plan The estimated
value of the award on the grant date, as deternbgetle CNG Committee’s consultant using econoraitables such as the trading price of
our common stock, expected volatility of the sttrelding prices of similar companies, and the teofithe awards, was $75,000. Sixty
percent of this value consists of non-qualifieccktoptions to purchase shares of our common st@tions”) and 40% consists of restrict
stock units payable in shares of our common sttRE(s”). The Options will vest as to 25% of the ®ptand the RSUs will vest as to 33 /
3% of the award on each of the first four and traeriversaries of the grant date, respectivelyathecase subject to the director’s continued
service on our Board. Directors may elect to defeeipt of shares underlying the RSUs.

We anticipate granting similar equity awards aniyual those non-employee directors who are electaéelected at each applicable
shareholders’ meeting. The value of the award tgreated in 2012 will be $125,000. Any new dire@ppointed after the annual
shareholders’ meeting but before February 1 ofvargiyear will receive a full equity award no latiean the first CNG Committee meeting
following the date on which he or she is appoinfetly new director appointed on or after Februanf & given year but before the next
annual shareholders’ meeting shall not receivdl afypro-rated equity award, but rather shall bgilele to receive the next regularly
scheduled annual award.




Exhibit 10.46
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), effectivApril 1, 2009 (“Effective Date”), is made and entered into by and
betweerDOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION (the “Company”), andusan Lanigan(“Employee”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Company desires to employ Employee uperntdims and subject to the conditions hereinaétefosth, and Employee
desires to accept such employment;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of thenpisees, the mutual promises, covenants and agresroentained herein, and
for other good and valuable consideration, theipt@nd sufficiency of which are hereby acknowletigbe parties agree as follows:

Employment Terms

1. Employment. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agrest, the Company agrees to employ Employee as
Executive Vice President and General Counsel ofadb@eneral Corporation.

2. Term . The term of this Agreement shall be until thedtdnnual anniversary of the Effective Date (“Tefm'unless
otherwise terminated pursuant to Sections 7, 80%r 11 hereof. The Term shall be automaticaltgesed after the third annual anniversary
of the Effective Date from month to month, for wpsix (6) months, unless the Company gives writtetice to Employee at least one month
prior to the expiration of the original or any extied Term that no extension or further extensisrgplicable, will occur or unless the
Company replaces this Agreement with a new agreearem writing, extends or renews the Term oftAgreement for a period that is
longer than six months from the expiration of thiginal Term. Unless otherwise noted, all referentcethe “Term” shall be deemed to refer
to the original Term and any extension or renewatdof.

3. Position, Duties and Administrative Support.

a. Position. Employee shall perform the duties of the positioted in Section 1 above and shall perform sticaro
duties and responsibilities as Employee’s supenasthe Company’s CEO may reasonably direct.

b. Full-Time Efforts. Employee shall perform and discharge faithfaityl diligently such duties and responsibilities
and shall devote Employee’s full-time efforts te th




business and affairs of Company. Employee agmepsmote the best interests of the Company atake®no action that is likely to
damage the public image or reputation of the Compigsmsubsidiaries or its affiliates.

C. Administrative Support Employee shall be provided with office space adudhinistrative support.

d. No Interference With Duties Employee shall not devote time to other actgitivhich would inhibit or otherwise
interfere with the proper performance of Employeakifies and shall not be directly or indirectly cemed or interested in any other
business occupation, activity or interest othenthg reason of holding a non-controlling interestashareholder, securities holder or
debenture holder in a corporation quoted on a naliyprecognized exchange (subject to any limitagion the Company’s Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics). Employee may noesas a member of a board of directors of a fofifprompany, other than the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliateghaut the express approval of the CEO and the Gorsgtion Committee of the
Board. Under no circumstances may Employee servaare than one other board of a for-profit company.

4. Work Standard . Employee agrees to comply with all terms and @@t set forth in this Agreement, as well as all
applicable Company work policies, procedures afesruEmployee also agrees to comply with all faljestate and local statutes, regulations
and public ordinances governing Employee’s perforceahereunder.

5. Compensation.

a. Base Salary Subject to the terms and conditions set forttinisi Agreement, the Company shall pay Employee,
and Employee shall accept, an annual base saBagé" Salary ") of no less than Four Hundred Fifty-Biousand Seven Hundred
Seventeen Dollars ($456,717). The Base Salarysbalaid in accordance with Company’s normal pthypractices (but no less
frequently than monthly) and may be increased ftiome to time at the sole discretion of the Company.

b. Incentive Bonus Employee’s incentive compensation for the Tefrithis Agreement shall be determined under
the Company’s annual bonus program for officefSraployee’s grade level, as it may be amended fiora to time. The actual
bonus paid pursuant to this Section 5(b), if ahpllde based on criteria established by the Basr@ompensation Committee and/or
the CEO, as applicable, in accordance with thedeand conditions of the annual bonus program fiicers. Any bonus payments due
hereunder




shall be payable to the Employee no later tharkZvidnths after the end of the Compantigxable year or the calendar year, which
is later, in which Employee is first vested in silcimus payments for purposes of Section 409A ofrttegnal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the “Internal Revenue Code”).

C. Vacation. Employee shall be entitled to three weeks paithtion time within the first year of employmenftefk
five years of employment, Employee shall be emtittefour weeks paid vacation. Vacation time isnggd on the anniversary of
Employee’s hire date each year. Any available utsed vacation as of the annual anniversary of@mnpgnt date or at Employee’s
termination date shall be forfeited.

d. Business ExpensesEmployee shall be reimbursed for all reasonbbkness expenses incurred in carrying oL
work hereunder. Employee shall adhere to the Cogip@&xpense reimbursement policies and procedlme®m event will any such
reimbursement be made later than the last dayeofdlendar year following the calendar year in Witenployee incurs the
reimbursable expense.

e. Perquisites Employee shall be entitled to receive such ogixecutive perqwsnes fringe and other beneftara
provided to officers at the same grade level uagrof the Company’s plans and/or programs in effeen time to time.

6. Benefits. During the Term, Employee (and, where applicalblaployee’s eligible dependents) shall be eligtble
participate in those various Company welfare bémddins, practices and policies in place duringTteam (including, without limitation,
medical, pharmacy, dental, vision, disability, eayge life, accidental death and travel accidentransce plans and other programs, if any) to
the extent allowed under and in accordance withighs of those plans. In addition, Employee shaléligible to participate, pursuant to
their terms, in any other benefit plans offeredhmsy Company to similarly-situated officers or otkarployees from time to time during the
Term (excluding plans applicable solely to certafiicers of the Company in accordance with the esprterms of such plans). Collectively
the plans and arrangements described in this $e6tias they may be amended or modified in accarlaiith their terms, are hereinafter
referred to as the “Benefits Plans.” Notwithstamgdihe above, Employee understands and acknowld¢dgeEmployee is not eligible for
benefits under any other severance plan, prograpplwy maintained by the Company, if any existsd that the only severance benefits
Employee is entitled to are set forth in this Agneat.




7. Termination for Cause. This Agreement is not intended to change theiththature of Employee’s employment with
Company, and it may be terminated at any time theeparty, with or without cause. If this Agreerhiesterminated by Company for
“Cause” (Termination for Cause) as that term israf below, it will be without any liability owintp Employee or Employee’s dependents
and beneficiaries under this Agreement, (recoggidiowever, that benefits covered by or owed uadgrother plan or agreement covering
Employee shall be governed by the terms of suah @laagreement). Any one of the following condiamr Employee conduct shall
constitute “Cause”:

a. Any act involving fraud or dishonesty, or any métkact of misconduct relating to Employee’s penfance of his
or her duties hereunder;

b. Any material breach of any SEC or other law or tatjon or any Company policy governing trading ealing
with stocks, securities, public debt instruments)ds, or investments and the like or with inappiadprdisclosure or “tipping” relating
to any stock, security, public debt instrument,doninvestment;

C. Any material violation of the Company’s Code of Biess Conduct and Ethics (or the equivalent cogagce at
the time);
d. Other than as required by law, the carrying owrof activity or the making of any public statemenhich

prejudices or reduces the good name and standi@gmijpany or any of its affiliates or would bringyazne of these into public
contempt or ridicule;

e. Attendance at work in a state of intoxication oinigefound with any drug or substance possessiavha¢h would
amount to a criminal offense;

f. Assault or other act of violence;

g. Conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendeeany felony whatsoever or any misdemeanor thaidvoreclude

employment under the Company’s hiring policy; or

h. Willful or repeated refusal or failure substangath perform Employee’s material obligations andiekihereunder
or those reasonably directed by Employee’s suparnvibe CEO and/or the Board (except in conneatiith a Disability).

A termination for Cause shall be effective when@uwmpany has given Employee written notice ofritention to terminate
for Cause, describing those acts or omissionsatteabelieved to constitute Cause, and has giveridyeg ten days to respond.
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8. Termination upon Death. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrainjs Agreement shall terminate immediately
upon Employee’s death, and the Company shall havanther liability to Employee or Employee’s depents and beneficiaries under this
Agreement, except for those benefits owed undemdmgr plan or agreement covering Employee whictil &ie governed by the terms of s

plan or agreement.

9. Disability . If a Disability (as defined below) of Employeecacs during the Term, unless otherwise prohibitethis, the
Company may notify Employee of the Company’s iritanto terminate Employee’s employment. In thagr@yemployment shall terminate
effective on the termination date provided in snolice of termination (the “Disability Effective B&), and this Agreement shall terminate
without further liability to Employee, Employee’'sjgendents and beneficiaries, except for those ibeefed under any other plan or
agreement covering Employee which shall be govebyetie terms of such plan or agreement. In thyjseAment, “Disability” means:

a. A long-term disability, as defined in the Compangfsplicable long-term disability plan as then ifeef, if any; or

b. Employee’s inability to perform the duties undestAgreement in accordance with the Company’s etgiens
because of a medically determinable physical ortedémpairment that (i) can reasonably be expetda@sult in death or (ii) has
lasted or can reasonably be expected to last Idhgerninety (90) consecutive days. Under thigi®e®(b), unless otherwise requil
by law, the existence of a Disability shall be deti@ed by the Company, only upon receipt of a wnitmedical opinion from a
qualified physician selected by or acceptable éoGbmpany. In this circumstance, to the extennjged by law, Employee shall, if
reasonably requested by the Company, submit tosigal examination by that qualified physician. Mag in this Section 9(b) is
intended to nor shall it be deemed to broaden atiinthe definition of “disability” in the Compang’long-term disability plan.

10. Employe€s Termination of Employment.

a. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,[agee may terminate employment and this Agreeratahy
time, for no reason, with thirty (30) days writteatice to Company (and in the event that Emplogg®adviding notice of termination
for Good Reason, Employee must provide such netittén 30 days after the event purported to gise tio Employee’s claim for
Good Reason first occurs). In such event, Empleyed not be entitled to those payments and besnefted in Sections 11 or 12

below unless Employee




terminates employment for Good Reason, as defiemhbh or unless Section 11(a)(iii) applies.

b. Upon any termination of employment, Employee shalentitled to any earned but unpaid Base Salaoygfh the
date of termination and such other vested benafitler any other plan or agreement covering Emplaygeh shall be governed by
the terms of such plan or agreement. Notwithstaneimything to the contrary herein, such unpaid Eedary shall be paid to
Employee as soon as practicable after the effed@te of termination in accordance with the Compauagual payroll practices (not
less frequently than monthly); provided, howevieattif payment at such time would result in a pbitbid acceleration under
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, theh simeount shall be paid at the time the amount wotldrwise have been paid
absent such prohibited acceleration.

C. Good Reasoshall mean any of the following actions taken by @ompany:
0] A reduction by the Company in Employee’s Base §adattarget bonus level,
(i) The Company shall fail to continue in effect amynicant Company-sponsored compensation

plan or benefit (without replacing it with a similglan or with a compensation equivalent), unleshsaction is in
connection with across-the-board plan changesroninations similarly affecting at least 95 percehall officers of
the Company or 100 percent of officers at the sgrade level;

(iii) The Company’s principal executive offices shalhbeved to a location outside the middle-
Tennessee area, or Employee is required (absengiragreement) to be based anywhere other thaBdhmpany’s
principal executive offices;

(iv) Without Employee’s written consent, the assignnterimployee by the Company of duties
inconsistent with, or the significant reductiontloé title, powers and functions associated withpkyee’s position,
title or office as described in Section 3 abovdes® such action is the result of a restructuringealignment of duties
and responsibilities by the Company, for businessans, that leaves Employee at the same ratesef Ba
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Salary, annual target bonus opportunity, and affieeel (i.e., Executive Vice President, etc.) avith a similar level
of responsibility, or unless such action is thauttesf Employee’s failure to meet pre-establishad abjective
performance criteria;

(v) Any material breach by the Company of this Agreetmen

(vi) The failure of any successor (whether direct oirédd, by purchase, merger, assignment,
consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantiallyof the business and/or assets of the Compaagsume expressly
and agree to perform this Agreement in the samengraand to the same extent that the Company waubéduired tc
perform it if no such succession had taken place.

Good Reason shall not include Employee’s deathaliilisy or Termination for Cause or Employee’s taration forany
reason other than Good Reason as defined above.

d. Prior to Employee being entitled to the paymentbanmefits described in Sections 11 or 12 belowCbmpany
shall have the opportunity to cure any claimed ee¢iiGood Reason within thirty (30) days after ieirgy written notice from
Employee specifying the same.

11. Termination without Cause or by Employee for Good Rason.

a. The continuation of Base Salary and other paymamiisbenefits described in Section 11(b) shall ipgéredonly
upon one or more of the following circumstances:

0] The Company terminates Employee (as it may dotiare) without Cause; it being understood
that termination by death or Disability does natstitute termination without Cause;

(i) Employee terminates for Good Reason;

(iii) The Company fails to offer to renew, extend or aeplthis Agreement before, at, or within six
(6) months after, the end of its original threesy€arm (or any term provided for in a written rermwr extension of
the original Term), and Employee resigns from emplent with the Company within sixty (60) days afech failure
unless such failure is accompanied by a mutualtgesaple severance arrangement between the Compdny a
Employee or is the result of Employee’s retirenmmndther termination from the Company
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other than for Good Reason notwithstanding the Gomis offer to renew, extend or replace this Agreetn

b. In the event of one of the triggers referencedanti®ns 11(a)(i) through (iii) above, then, on #idieth (60th) day
after Employee’s termination of employment, buttomgent upon the execution and effectiveness oRiblease attached hereto and
made a part hereof, and subject to Section 22(oWh&mployee shall be entitled to the following:

() Continuation of Employee’Base Salary as of the date immediately precatmgermination (ol
if the termination of employment is for Good Reasoe to the reduction of Employee’s Base Salaen such rate of
Base Salary as in effect immediately prior to steztuction) for 24 months, payable in accordancé e Company
normal payroll cycle and procedures (but not lesguently than monthly) with a lump sum paymentlansixtieth
(60th) day after Employee’s termination of employinef the amounts Employee would otherwise haveived
during the sixty (60) days after Employee’s termimahad the payments begun immediately after Eygats
termination of employment. Notwithstanding anythinghe contrary in this Agreement, the amountrof payment o
entittement to payment of the aforesaid Base Salanyinuation shall be reduced, offset and sulifectcovery by the
Company in the event and to the extent of any bakey earned by the Employee as a result of sulesgq
employment during the 24 months after Employeemitgation of employment. In no event shall Empleye
obligated to seek other employment or take anyrahton by way of mitigation of such amounts pdgab
Employee and, except as provided in the precedingeace, such amounts shall not be reduced whethmart the
Employee obtains other employment.

(i) A lump sum payment of two times the amount of therage percentage of target bonus paid or
to be paid to employees at the same job grade td\einployee (if any) under the annual bonus pnogréor officers
in respect of the Company'’s two fiscal years imrataly preceding the fiscal year in which the tertion date
occurs.

(iii) A lump sum payment in an ambenqual to two times the annual contribution thatid have
been made by the Company in respect of

the plan year in which such termination of emploptreccurs for Employee’s participation in the Comyga medical,
pharmacy, dental and vision benefits programs.

(iv) Reasonable outplacement sesyias determined and provided by the Company,rferyear or
until other employment is secured, whichever cofites

No such payment or benefit shall be provided to Byge pursuant to this Section 11 if the Releatsehéd hereto is not providec
the Company no later than forty-five (45) days Employee’s termination date; and no payment oeliehereunder shall be
provided to Employee prior to the Company'’s receiphe Release and the expiration of the periogtwedcation provided in the
Release.

C. In the event that there is a malt&reach by Employee of any continuing obligatiaunder this Agreement or the
Release after termination of employment, any unpaidunts under this Section 11 shall be forfeitedi @ompany shall retain any
other rights available to it under law or equityny®payments or reimbursements under this Secticshall not be deemed the
continuation of Employee’s employment for any puagoEXxcept as specifically enumerated in the ReJéhe Company’s payment
obligations under this Section 11 will not negateealuce (i) any amounts otherwise due but nopgét to Employee by the Compa
or (i) any other amounts payable to Employee det$his Agreement, or (iii) those benefits owedemahy other plan or agreement
covering Employee which shall be governed by theageof such plan or agreement. Subject to any egipie prohibition on
acceleration of payment under Section 409A of titerhal Revenue Code, the Company may, at anydirden its sole discretion,
make a lump-sum payment of all amounts, or all iaing amounts, due to Employee under this Section 1

12. Effect of 280G

a. Subject to Section 22(n) and iogreint upon Employee’s timely execution and thecteness of the Release
attached hereto and made a part hereof as prowidgection 11 hereof, if any payments and benbfitthe Company to or for the
benefit of Employee (whether paid or payable otritisted or distributable pursuant to the termghig Agreement or otherwise, but
determined without regard to any additional paymeetuired under this Section 12 (a “Payment”) titute “parachute payments”
within the meaning of Section 280G of the IntefrRalenue Code (“Code Section 280G”) so that Employadd
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be subject to the excise tax imposed by Sectio® 48%he Internal Revenue Code or any intereseoafiies with respect to such tax
(collectively referred to as the “Excise Tax”), thEmployee shall be entitled to receive an additigmayment (a “Gross-Up Payment”
in an amount such that, after Employee pays afigdincluding any interest or penalties imposeth waspect to such taxes), includi
without limitation, any Excise Tax, income tax @her tax (and any interest and penalties imposé n@spect thereto), Employee
retains an amount of the Gross-Up Payment equhkt&xcise Tax imposed upon the Payments. Notwititshg the foregoing, if the
Net After-tax Benefit to Employee resulting fronteéving the Gross-Up Payment is less than $50,088tgr than the Net After-tax
Benefit to Employee resulting from having the Pagmeeduced to the Reduced Amount, then no GrosBdyment shall be made
and the Payments shall be reduced to the Reducediftmiunless Employee and the Company shall otlseragree (provided such
agreement does not cause any payment or benefitmger which is deferred compensation covered lbtidde409A of the Internal
Revenue Code to be in non-compliance with Secti@?dof the Internal Revenue Code), in the evenftagments are to be reduced,
the Company shall reduce or eliminate the paymantenefits to Employee by first reducing or eliating those payments or bene
which are not payable in cash and then by redunirediminating cash payments, in each case in severder beginning with
payments or benefits which are to be paid the éattin time from the date of the “change in ownigrain control” (ithin the meaniny
of Code Section 280G) (a “Change in Control”). Aeguction pursuant to the preceding sentence stkalprecedence over the
provisions of any other plan, arrangement or agesgrgoverning Employee’s rights and entitlementarty benefits or compensation.
For purposes hereof:

0] “Net After-tax Benefit8hall mean the Present Value of a Payment net t&hads (including ar
Excise Tax imposed on Employee) with respect tbhedgtermined by applying the highest marginal(stapplicable
to an individual for Employee’s taxable year in efhthe Change in Control occurs.

(i) “Present Value” shall mean Bu@lue determined in accordance with Section 280@&] of the
Internal Revenue Code.

(iii) “Reduced Amount” shall be amaunt expressed as a Present Value which maxirtfiees
aggregate Present Value of Payments without caasigdayment to be subject to excise tax undelid®e4999 of
the
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Internal Revenue Code or the deduction limitatibS&ction 280G of the Internal Revenue Code.

b. All determinations required torhade under this Section 12, including whetherwahen a Gross-Up Payment is
required and the amount of such Gross-Up Paymehttenassumptions to be used in arriving at sutéraénation, shall be made by
the tax department of an independent public acdogifirm (the “Accounting Firm”) or, at Company’ssdretion, by a recognized
compensation consulting firm (such as Hewitt Asatas) (the “Consulting Firm”) which shall be engéidpy the Company prior to the
time of the first Payment to Employee. The AccougtFirm or Consulting Firm selected shall not bevieg as accountant or auditor
for the individual, entity or group effecting thén&hge in Control. The Accounting Firm or Consultiigm shall prepare and provide
detailed supporting calculations both to the Comypaamd Employee within fifteen (15) business daytheflater of (i) the Accounting
Firm’s or Consulting Firm’s engagement to makerdguired calculations or (ii) the date the AccongtiFirm or Consulting Firm
obtains all information needed to make the requir@dulation. Any determination by the Accountingi-or Consulting Firm shall b
binding upon the Company and Employee. All feesexqgknses of the Accounting Firm or Consulting Fstmall be borne solely by
the Company.

C. Any Gross-Up Payment, as deteeghipursuant to this Section 12, shall be paid bﬁbmpany to Employee
within five (5) days of the receipt of the AccourgiFirm’s or Consulting Firng determination if the Payment is then requiresitisfy
an assessment or other current demand for paymeehd of Employee by federal or state taxing autiesritGross-Up Payments due at
a later date shall be paid to Employee no later fbarteen (14) days prior to the date that Empddyéederal or state payment is due.
If required by law, the Company shall treat alboy portion of the Gross-Up Payment as being stibjegacome tax withholding for
federal or state tax purposes. Amounts determigatido Company to be subject to federal or statevithholding will not be paid
directly to Employee but shall be timely paid te tlespective taxing authority.

d. As a result of the uncertaintyhie application of Section 4999 of the InternaV&waie Code at the time of the
initial determination by the Accounting Firm or Guiting Firm hereunder, it is possible that GrogsRAayments which will not have
been made by the Company should have been maddétplayment”), consistent with the calculations remflito be made hereunder.
In the event that Employee hereafter is requiretiaée a payment of any Excise Tax, the Firm shebnine the amount of the
Underpayment that has occurred
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and any such Underpayment shall be promptly paitheyCompany (or any successor or assign) to ahéobenefit of Employee.
Conversely, if it is later determined that the attequired Gross-Up Payment was less than the ainpaid to Employee, Employee
shall refund the excess portion to the Companyohlyt to the extent that Employee has not yet pagdetxcess amount to the taxing
authorities or is able to obtain a refund from riegpective taxing authorities of amounts previogslid. The Company may pursue at
its own expense the refund on behalf of Employad, # requested by the Company, Employee shaficreably cooperate in such
refund effort.

e. All Gros$Jp Payments to be made under this Section 12 (tilherthe Underpayment described in Section 1.
must be made no later than the end of the Empleyta&able year next following the Employg¢axable year in which the applica
related taxes are remitted. Any right to reimbursetincurred due to a tax audit or litigation addieg the existence or amount of a
tax liability must be made no later than the enthefEmployee’s taxable year following the Empldgdaxable year in which the
taxes that are the subject of the audit or litatre remitted to the taxing authorities or, wheresuch taxes are remitted, the end of
the Employee’s taxable year following the year imah the audit is completed or there is a final and-appealable settlement or the
resolution of the litigation.

13. Publicity; No Disparaging StatementExcept as otherwise provided in Section 14 heteaifployee and the Company
covenant and agree that they shall not engageyit@mmunications to persons outside the Compangtwéhall disparage one another or
interfere with their existing or prospective busiseelationships.

14. Confidentiality and Legal ProcessEmployee agrees to keep the proprietary termdyisfAgreement confidential and to
refrain from disclosing any information concernthis Agreement to any one other than Employee’sédliate family and personal agents or
advisors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothinghis Agreement is intended to prohibit Employe¢har Company from performing any
duty or obligation that shall arise as a mattdaef. Specifically, Employee and the Company shatitmue to be under a duty to truthfully
respond to any legal and valid subpoena or otlyal lerocess. This Agreement is not intended invaay to proscribe Employee’s or the
Company’s right and ability to provide informatitmany federal, state or local agency in respons@lberence to the lawful exercise of such
agency’s authority.

15. Business Protection Provision Defindns.
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a. PreambleéAs a material inducement to the Company to enterthis Agreement, and in recognition of the
valuable experience, knowledge and propnetaryrmfamon Employee has gained or will gain while eoyeld, Employee agrees to
abide by and adhere to the business protectiorigioog in Sections 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19 herein.

b. Definitions For purposes of Sections 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 @nukPein:

0] “Competitive Position” shallean any employment, consulting, advisory, diregiiprsagency,
promotional or independent contractor arrangemetwéen Employee and (x) any person or Entity endjadgelly or
in material part in the business in which the Conypia engaged (i.e., the discount consumable lmaigieneral
merchandise retail business), including but nottéchto such other similar businesses as Wal-Ng&aty's, Target,
Costco, K-Mart, Big Lots, BJs Wholesale, WalgreeRge-Aid, CVS, Family Dollar Stores, Fred's, 8@ Cents
Stores and Dollar Tree Stores, or (y) any persdanbity then attempting or planning to enter thecdunt consumable
basics retail business, whereby Employee is reduagerform services on behalf of or for the bérafsuch person
or Entity which are substantially similar to thexsees Employee provided or directed at any timéevbmployed by
the Company or any of its affiliates.

(i) “Confidential Information” stilanean the proprietary or confidential data, imfi@tion,
documents or materials (whether oral, written, tetetic or otherwise) belonging to or pertaininglie Company,
other than “Trade Secrets” (as defined below), Wiscof tangible or intangible value to the Company the details
of which are not generally known to the competitirthe Company. Confidential Information shalleisclude any
items marked “CONFIDENTIAL” or some similar desidiwa or which are otherwise identified as beingfitential.

(iii) “Entity” or “Entities” shall rean any business, individual, partnership, joimtuee, agency,
governmental agency, body or subdivision, assaciafirm, corporation, limited liability company other entity of
any kind.

(iv) “Restricted Period” shall metavo (2) years following Employee’s termination date
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(v) “Territory”shall include individually and as a total area thstates in the United States in wt
the Company maintains stores at Employee’s termimatate or those states in which the Company pesific and
demonstrable plans to open stores within six mootlmployee’s termination date.

(vi) “Trade Secrets” shall mean imh@tion or data of or about the Company, including, not
limited to, technical or non-technical data, foramjlpatterns, compilations, programs, devices, odstitechniques,
drawings, processes, financial data, financial planoduct plans or lists of actual or potentiadtomers or suppliers
that: (A) derives economic value, actual or potnfrom not being generally known to, and not peieadily
ascertainable by proper means by, other personamobtain economic value from its disclosuresa; §B) is the
subject of efforts that are reasonable under tlegigistances to maintain its secrecy; and (C) amgrahformation
which is defined as a “trade secret” under appletiw.

(vii) “Work Product” shall mean adirigible work product, property, data, documentatiknow-
how,” concepts or plans, inventions, improvemetatshniques and processes relating to the Compatyvire
conceived, discovered, created, written, revisedeseloped by Employee while employed by the Comipan

16. Nondisclosure: Ownership of Proprietar Property .

a. In recognition of the Companyéed to protect its legitimate business interestgplByee hereby covenants and
agrees that, for the Term and thereafter (as dexthielow), Employee shall regard and treat Trazee®s and Confidential
Information as strictly confidential and wholly-oeah by the Company and shall not, for any reasoaninfashion, either directly or
indirectly, use, sell, lend, lease, distributeefise, give, transfer, assign, show, disclose, misste, reproduce, copy, misappropriate
or otherwise communicate any Trade Secrets or @enfial Information to any person or Entity for gmyrpose other than in
accordance with Employee’s duties under this Agesror as required by applicable law. This provissball apply to each item
constituting a Trade Secret at all times it remairisade secret” under applicable law and shallhap any Confidential Information,
during employment and for the Restricted Periodehtter.
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b. Employee shall exercise bestreffto ensure the continued confidentiality ofTathde Secrets and Confidential
Information and shall immediately notify the Compani any unauthorized disclosure or use of any &radcrets or Confidential
Information of which Employee becomes aware. Emgdoghall assist the Company, to the extent reaboreduested, in the
protection or procurement of any intellectual pmbp@rotection or other rights in any of the Traglecrets or Confidential Information.

C. All Work Product shall be ownedleisively by the Company. To the greatest ext@ssible, any Work Product
shall be deemed to be “work made for hire” (asrofiin the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C.A. 8 101 et sag.amended), and Employee
hereby unconditionally and irrevocably transferd assigns to the Company all right, title and ies¢EEmployee currently has or may
have by operation of law or otherwise in or to &vgrk Product, including, without limitation, all fgmts, copyrights, trademarks (and
the goodwill associated therewith), trade secsssice marks (and the goodwill associated thehgwihd other intellectual property
rights. Employee agrees to execute and delivdrediompany any transfers, assignments, documentbierinstruments which the
Company may deem necessary or appropriate, fromtnime, to protect the rights granted hereitoorest complete title and
ownership of any and all Work Product, and all aiged intellectual property and other rights tirerexclusively in the Company.

17. Nonrinterference with Employees. Through employment and thereafter through the Réstr Period, Employee will not,
either directly or indirectly, alone or in conjuitst with any other person or Entity: actively retrsolicit, attempt to solicit, induce or atten
to induce any person who is an exempt employekeo€Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiligi@shas been within the last 6 months)
to leave or cease such employment for any reasasabver;

18. Nonrinterference with Business Relationships

a. Employee acknowledges that, endburse of employment, Employee will learn abooin@any’s business,
services, materials, programs and products anchémer in which they are developed, marketed, sedvaind provided. Employee
knows and acknowledges that the Company has irtvestesiderable time and money in developing itslpeb sales and real estate
development programs and relationships, vendoio#mer service provider relationships and agreemstuse layouts and fixtures, ¢
marketing techniques and that those things areueramd original. Employee further acknowledges tiiCompany has a strong
business reason to keep secret information rel&ii@pmpany’s
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business concepts, ideas, programs, plans andgsex;eso as not to aid Compangompetitors. Accordingly, Employee acknowlec
and agrees that the protection outlined in (b)Wwetonecessary and reasonable.

b. During the Restricted Period, Eogpe will not, on Employee’s own behalf or on biélohany other person or
Entity, solicit, contact, call upon, or communicatih any person or entity or any representativargf person or entity who has a
business relationship with Company and with whonpkiyee had contact while employed, if such contactommunication would
likely interfere with Company’s business relatioipshor result in an unfair competitive advantagerad@ompany.

19. Agreement Not to Work in Competitive Bsition . Employee covenants and agrees not to accept, atntaork in a
Competitive Position for a company or entity thaemtes anywhere within the Territory for the Rettd Period.

20. Acknowledgements Regarding Sections 4519.

a. Employee and Company expresshgant and agree that the scope, territorial, imother restrictions
contained in Sections 15 through 19 of this Agresngenstitute the most reasonable and equitabtaatisns possible to protect the
business interests of the Company given: (i) trermss of the Company; (ii) the competitive natfrthe Company’s industry; and
(iii) that Employee’s skills are such that Employeeild easily find alternative, commensurate emiplegt or consulting work in
Employee’s field which would not violate any of thmvisions of this Agreement.

b. Employee acknowledges that thapmnsatmn and benefits described in Sections &ndl112 are also in
consideration of his/her covenants and agreementsined in Sections 15 through 19 hereof andahmeach by Employee of the
obligations contained in Sections 15 through 1®bkshall forfeit Employee’s right to such compdiwaand benefits.

C. Employee acknowledges and agt&ﬁsa breach by Employee of the obligations seéhfim Sections 15 through
19 will likely cause Company irreparable injury ahdt, in such event, the Company shall be entttdedjunctive relief in addition to
such other and further relief as may be proper.

d. The parties agree that if, at any time, a coudamhpetent jurisdiction determines that any of thevsions of
Section 15 through 19 are unreasonable under
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Tennessee law as to time or area or both, the Coyrglwall be entitled to enforce this Agreementsfach period of time or within su
area as may be determined reasonable by such court.

21. Return of Materials . Upon Employee’s termination, Employee shall netiarthe Company all written, electronic,
recorded or graphic materials of any kind belongingelating to the Company or its affiliates, inding any originals, copies and abstracts in
Employee’s possession or control.

22. General Provisions.
a. Amendment This Agreement may be amended or modified oglg lvriting signed by both of the parties hereto.
b. Binding Agreement This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of &edinding upon Employee, his/her heirs and

personal representatives, and the Company anddtessors and assigns.

C. Waiver Of Breach; Specific Performancd& he waiver of a breach of any provision of thgreement shall not
operate or be construed as a waiver of any otleachr Each of the parties to this Agreement wlehtitled to enforce this
Agreement, specifically, to recover damages byaeas any breach of this Agreement, and to exerglisether rights existing in that
party’s favor. The parties hereto agree and aclenge that money damages may not be an adequagelyeior any breach of the
provisions of this Agreement and that any party mppgly to any court of law or equity of competanigdiction for specific
performance or injunctive relief to enforce or gavany violations of the provisions of this Agresarh

d. Unsecured General CreditorThe Company shall neither reserve nor specificat aside funds for the paymen
its obligations under this Agreement, and suchgaiions shall be paid solely from the general assiethe Company.

e. No Effect On Other Arrangementdlt is expressly understood and agreed that @iyenpnts made in accordance
with this Agreement are in addition to any othendfés or compensation to which Employee may béledtor for which Employee
may be eligible.

f. Tax Withholding. There shall be deducted from each payment uhgdeAgreement the amount of any tax
required by any governmental authority to be witttesd paid over by the Company to such governnhenthority for the account
Employee.
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Notices.

0] All notices and all other communications providedfierein shall be in writing and delivered
personally to the other designated party, or madedertified or registered mail, return receigjuested, or delivered
by a recognized national overnight courier servicesent by facsimile, as follows:

If to Company to Dollar General Corporatio
Attn: General Counst
100 Mission Ridge
Goodlettsville, TN 3707-2171
Facsimile: (615)85-5180

If to Employee to (Last address of Employ:x
known to Company unle
otherwise directed in writing by Employe

(i) All notices sent under this Agreement shall be degbgiven twenty-four (24) hours after sent by
facsimile or courier, seventy-two (72) hours aftent by certified or registered mail and when agktd if by personal
delivery.

(iii) Either party hereto may change the address to wiotibe is to be sent hereunder by written
notice to the other party in accordance with thtavisions of this Section.

Governlng Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and condtin@accordance with the laws of the State of

Tennessee (without giving effect to conflict of Bw

i. Entire Agreement This Agreement contains the full and completdaratanding of the parties hereto with respedtdo t

subject matter contained herein and, unless spatltjfiprovided herein, this Agreement supersedésaeplaces any prior agreement,
either oral or written, which Employee may havelm@ompany that relates generally to the same stuijatter.

Assignment This Agreement may not be assigned by Emplogeé any attempted assignment shall be null and

void and of no force or effect.

Severability. If any one or more of the terms, provisions,amants or restrictions of this Agreement shall be

determlned by a court of competent jurisdictioméoinvalid, void or unenforceable, then the remeiraf the terms, provisions,

covenants and
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restrictions of this Agreement shall remain in folice and effect, and to that end the provisiceredf shall be deemed severable.

l. Section Headings The Section headings set forth herein are favenience of reference only and shall not affect
the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement tshaver.

m. Voluntary Agreement Employee and Company represent and agree tblates reviewed all aspects of this
Agreement, has carefully read and fully understaldgrovisions of this Agreement, and is voluritaeintering into this Agreement.
Each party represents and agrees that such partyasbthe opportunity to review any and all aspefthis Agreement with legal, tax
or other adviser(s) of such party’s choice befomcating this Agreement.

n. Deferred Compensation Omnibus Provisiolt is intended that any payment or benefit whichrovided pursuant
to or in connection with this Agreement which isisimlered to be deferred compensation subject thiddet09A of the Internal
Revenue Code shall be paid and provided in a maandrat such time, including without limitationypa@ent and provision of benefits
only in connection with the occurrence of a peribigspayment event contained in Section 409A (@egth, disability, separation
from service from the Company and its affiliateslafined for purposes of Section 409A of the InbdéRevenue Code), and in such
form, as complies with the applicable requiremerftSection 409A of the Internal Revenue Code tddattee unfavorable tax
consequences provided therein for non-compliamee&onnection with effecting such compliance witrcon 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code, the following shall apply:

0] Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemehe Company is authorized to amend
Agreement, to void or amend any election made bplayee under this Agreement and/or to delay them@at of any
monies and/or provision of any benefits in such mesiras may be determined by it to be necessarppppriate to
comply, or to evidence or further evidence requiedhpliance, with Section 409A of the Internal Rawe Code
(including any transition or grandfather rules tharder).

(i) Neither Employee nor the Company shall take anipiatd accelerate or delay the payment of
any monies and/or provision of any benefits in amnner which would not be in compliance with Setd@9A of the
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Internal Revenue Code (including any transitiogi@ndfather rules thereunder).

(iii) If Employee is a specified employee for purposeSeaxtion 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Internal
Revenue Code, any payment or provision of beniefitonnection with a separation from service paytnesent (as
determined for purposes of Section 409A of theriideRevenue Code) shall not be made until six imoafter
Employee’s separation from service (the “409A DefiePeriod”). In the event such payments are otfserdue to be
made in installments or periodically during the A@eferral Period, the payments which would othemave been
made in the 409A Deferral Period shall be accuredlaind paid in a lump sum as soon as the 409A a¢feeriod
ends, and the balance of the payments shall be asadtherwise scheduled. Inthe event benefitseangired to be
deferred, any such benefit may be provided dutiegdD9A Deferral Period at Employee’s expense, twittployee
having a right to reimbursement from the Compangeathe 409A Deferral Period ends, and the balahtieedenefit:
shall be provided as otherwise scheduled.

(iv) If a Change in Control occurs but the Change int@bdoes not constitute a change in control
within the meaning of Section 409A of the InterRalvenue Code (a “409A Change in Control”), thennpayt of any
amount or provision of any benefit under this Agneat which is considered to be deferred compensatibject to
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code shatldferred until another permissible payment eventained in
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code occugs,(death, disability, separation from servicerfrine Company
and its affiliated companies as defined for purpaseSection 409A of the Internal Revenue Code)uiting any
deferral of payment or provision of benefits foe #09A Deferral Period as provided above.

(v) For purposes of this Agreement, all rights to payts@and benefits hereunder shall be treated as
rights to receive a series of separate paymentbanefits to the fullest extent allowed by Secd@®A of the Internal
Revenue Code.
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(vi) For purposes of determining time of (but not eaitent to) payment or provision of deferred
compensation under this Agreement under SectioA 49%he Internal Revenue Code in connection withranination
of employment, termination of employment will be@deto mean a “separation from service” within theamng of
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code wheigerigasonably anticipated that no further servizesld be
performed after that date or that the level of btk services Employee would perform after thaedahether as an
employee or independent contractor) would permédyneéetrease to less than 50% of the average léwsma fide
services performed over the immediately precedinytsix (36) month period.

(vii) For purposes of this Agreement, a key employegtioposes of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the
Internal Revenue Code shall be determined on this bathe applicable 12—month period ending onsihecified
employee identification date designated by the Camgonsistently for purposes of this Agreementsndlar
agreements or, if no such designation is made db@s¢he default rules and regulations under Se@@9A(a)(2)(B)
(i) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(viii) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreemehe Company shall not be liable to
Employee if any payment or benefit which is to bevided pursuant to this Agreement and which issawered
deferred compensation subject to Section 409A etitkernal Revenue Code otherwise fails to comptia,ver be
exempt from, the requirements of Section 409A efltiternal Revenue Code.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exatuiecaused their duly authorized representativexecute this Agreement
to be effective as of the Effective Date.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Bob Ravene

Its: SVP, Chief People Office

Date: 3/31/0¢
“EMPLOYEF"

/sl S. Lanigat
Susan Lanigan

Date: 3/30/0¢
Witnessed By

/s/ Julie L. Filsor
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Addendum to Employment Agreement with

RELEASE AGREEMENT

THIS RELEASE (“Release”) is made and entered int@ibd between (“Employee”) andDOLLAR
GENERAL CORPORATION , and its successor or assigns (“Company”).

WHEREAS, Employee and Company have agreed thatdreels employment with Dollar General Corporatibalsterminate on

WHEREAS, Employee and the Company have previoustigred into that certain Employment Agreement,ctiffe
(“Agreement”), in which the form of this Releasdrisorporated by reference;

WHEREAS, Employee and Company desire to delindwegie tespective rights, duties and obligationsrattat to such termination
and desire to reach an accord and satisfactioll cfaams arising from Employee’s employment, aachtination of employment, with
appropriate releases, in accordance with the Ageeeém

WHEREAS, the Company desires to compensate Employaecordance with the Agreement for service Erygdohas provided
and/or will provide for the Company;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises thie agreements of the parties set forth in tlele&se, and other good and
valuable consideration the receipt and sufficieoicyhich are hereby acknowledged, the parties benetending to be legally bound, hereby
covenant and agree as follows:

1. Claims Released Under This Agreement

In exchange for receiving the payments and bengditeribed in Section 11 and 12 of the AgreememplByee hereby voluntarily
and irrevocably waives, releases, dismisses wefugdice, and withdraws all claims, complaints, soit demands of any kind whatsoever
(whether known or unknown) which Employee ever mady have, or now has against Company and othegrtusr former subsidiaries or
affiliates of the Company and their past, presentfature officers, directors, employees, agentsyiers and attorneys (collectively, the
“Releasees”), arising from or relating to (direatlyindirectly) Employee’s employment or the teration of employment or other events that
have occurred as of the date of execution of tigjeeAment, including but not limited to:
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a. claims for violations of Title VII of the Civil Rilgts Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in Employmbdct, the
Fair Labor Standards Act, the Civil Rights Act &1, the Americans With Disabilities Act, the EqRaly Act, the Family and
Medical Leave Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1981, the SarbandsyQAct of 2002, the National Labor Relations Atte Labor Management
Relations Act, Executive Order 11246, Executiveédrtil141, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or theffogee Retirement Income

Security Act;
b. claims for violations of any other federal or stst@tute or regulation or local ordinance;
C. claims for lost or unpaid wages, compensation emefiits, defamation, intentional or negligent ictfbn of

emotional distress, assault, battery, wrongfularstructive discharge, negligent hiring, retentorsupervision, fraud,
misrepresentation, conversion, tortious interfeeefaceach of contract, or breach of fiduciary duty;

d. claims to benefits under any bonus, severance,faaeé reduction, early retirement, outplacemengroy other
similar type plan sponsored by the Company (ext@phose benefits owed under any other plan ce@gent covering Employee
which shall be governed by the terms of such plaagoeement); or

e. any other claims under state law arising in tort@mtract.

2. Claims Not Released Under This Agreement

In signing this Release, Employee is not releaaimgclaims that may arise under the terms of tieie&se or which may arise out of
events occurring after the date Employee exechisselease.

Employee also is not releasing claims to bendfiés Employee is already entitled to receive unagrather plan or agreement
covering Employee which shall be governed by tine$eof such plan or agreement. However, Employeerstands and acknowledges that
nothing herein is intended to or shall be constiteeg@quire the Company to institute or continuefiiect any particular plan or benefit
sponsored by the Company, and the Company herebwes the right to amend or terminate any ofétsefit programs at any time in
accordance with the procedures set forth in suahspl
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Nothing in this Release shall prohibit Employeerirengaging in activities required or protected uragglicable law or from
communicating, either voluntarily or otherwise, lw@ny governmental agency concerning any poteviti&tion of the law.

3. No Assignment of Claim Employee represents that Employee has not askmreansferred, or purported to assign or
transfer, any claims or any portion thereof orriesé therein to any party prior to the date of Rédease.

4. Compensation In accordance with the Agreement, the Compangesgto pay Employee or, if Employee becomes
eligible for payments and benefits under Sectioid 12 but dies before receipt thereof, Employsptise or estate, as the case may be, th
amounts provided in Section 11 and 12 of the Agezgm

5. Publicity; No Disparaging Statement Except as otherwise provided in Section 14 ofAjeeement, Section 2 of this
Release, and as privileged by law, Employee an€tmpany covenant and agree that they shall n@gmion any communications with
persons outside the Company which shall disparageanother or interfere with their existing or restive business relationships.

6. No Admission Of Liability. This Release shall not in any way be construezhasdmission by the Company or
Employee of any improper actions or liability wha#ser as to one another, and each specificallyadiiss any liability to or improper actions
against the other or any other person.

7. Voluntary Execution Employee warrants, represents and agrees thablegphas been encouraged in writing to seek
advice regarding this Release from an attorneytaxddvisor prior to signing it; that this Releaspresents written notice to do so; that
Employee has been given the opportunity and sefitdime to seek such advice; and that Employég tuderstands the meaning and
contents of this Release. Employee further repteseerd warrants that Employee was not coercedatdmed or otherwise forced to sign this
Release, and that Employee’s signature appearirgniaéter is voluntary and genuine. EMPLOYEE UNDERANDS THAT EMPLOYEE
MAY TAKE UP TO TWENTY-ONE (21) DAYS TO CONSIDER WHEHER TO ENTER INTO THIS RELEASE.

8. Ability to Revoke Agreement EMPLOYEE UNDERSTANDS THAT THIS RELEASE MAY BE RE VOKED BY
EMPLOYEE BY NOTIFYING THE COMPANY IN WRITING OF SUC H REVOCATION WITHIN SEVEN (7) DAYS OF
EMPLOYEE'S
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EXECUTION OF THIS RELEASE AND THAT THIS RELEASE IS NOT EFFECTIVE UNTIL THE EXPIRATION OF SUCH
SEVEN (7) DAY PERIOD. EMPLOYEE UNDERSTANDS THAT UPON THE EXPIRATION OF SUCH SEVEN (7) DAY PERIOD
THIS RELEASE WILL BE BINDING UPON EMPLOYEE AND EMPL OYEE'S HEIRS, ADMINISTRATORS,
REPRESENTATIVES, EXECUTORS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGN&ND WILL BE IRREVOCABLE.
Acknowledged and Agreed T

“COMPANY”

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By:

Its:

| UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING THIS RELEASE, | AM GIV ING UP RIGHTS | MAY HAVE. | UNDERSTAND THAT I DO
NOT HAVE TO SIGN THIS RELEASE.

“EMPLOYEE”

Date

WITNESSED BY:

Date
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Exhibit 12

Dollar General Corporation
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges, Combined Fizbdrges and Preferred Stock Dividends(1)

Predecessol Successol
February 3, March 6,
2007 2007
through through Fiscal Year Ended
July 6, February 1, January 30, January 29, January 28, February 3,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 (2)
Earnings(3)
Income (loss) before income tax $ 4C §$ (6.6) $ 1944 % 552.1 % 985.C $ 1,225.:
Fixed Charges, exclusive of capitalize
interest 58.¢ 320.% 513.7 505.7 471 437.5
$ 62.8 $ 31471 $ 708.1 $ 1,057.¢ $ 1,456.! $ 1,663.(
Fixed Charges(3
Interest charged to exper $ 10.2 % 252.¢ % 391¢ % 345.1 % 2742 205.(
Interest factor on rental expense 48.t 67.¢ 121.¢ 160.( 197.% 2321
58.¢ 320.7 513.7 505.7 471.% 437.7
Interest capitalize — — — — — 1t
$ 58.6 $ 320.7 $ 5137 $ 505.7 $ 4715 $ 439.2
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 1.1x 1.4x 2.1x 3.1x 3.8
Excess of fixed charges over earning: $ 6.6)
Q) During the periods indicated, we hadoutstanding shares of preferred stock. Accotdjraur historical ratio of earnings to fixed

charges, combined fixed charges and preferred stivakends is the same as our ratio of earnindixéal charges in all periods.

2 The fiscal year ended February 3,2@4s comprised of 53 weeks.

3 For purposes of computing the rafie@rnings to fixed charges, (a) earnings consistamme (loss) before income taxes, plus fi
charges less capitalized expenses related to iadieb$s (amortization expense for capitalized intésenot significant) and (b) fixed charges
consist of interest expense (whether expensedpitatiaed), the amortization of debt issuance cast$ discounts related to indebtedness, anc
the interest portion of rent expense.

4) The portion of rent expense represtidre of interest is based on the present valubeofuture lease payments discounted at 10%.

(5) For the period from March 6, 2007otihgh February 1, 2008, fixed charges exceededregiy $6.6 million.




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name of Entity

(as of March 16, 2012)

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation/Organization

Exhibit 21

DC Financial, LLC
Dolgencorp, LLC (f/k/a Dolgencorp, Inc
Dolgencorp of New York, Inc
Dolgencorp of Texas, Inc.(:
Dolgen |, Inc.
Dolgen Il, Inc.
Dolgen lll, Inc.
Dolgen California, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic 1V, LL(C
Dolgen Midwest, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic Ill, LLC)J:
DG eCommerce, LLC (f/k/a Strategic V, LL!
DG Strategic I, LLC
DG Strategic I, LLC
DG Strategic VI, LLC
DG Strategic VII, LLC
DG Strategic VIII, LLC
DG Transportation, In¢

DG Logistics LLC(3)
South Boston Holdings, In

Sur-Dollar, L.P.(4)
South Boston FF&E, LLC(E

DG Promotions, Inc

DG Retail, LLC(6)
Ashley River Insurance Company, h
DGC Holdings, LLC
Dollar General Global Sourcing Limited(
Dollar General Literacy Foundation(
Dollar General Partners('
Retail Property Investments, LL
Retail Risk Solutions, LL(

(1) A corporation in which the sole shareholder is Diatggic |, LLC.

(2) A limited liability company in which DG Strategi¢lLLC is the sole member.
(3) A limited liability company in which DG Transportan, Inc. is the sole member.

Tennesse
Kentucky
Kentucky
Kentucky
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Delaware
California
Delaware
Tennesse
Tennesse
South Carolin¢
Delaware
Hong Kong
Tennesse
Kentucky
Delaware
Tennesse

(4) A limited partnership in which the general partiseBouth Boston Holdings, Inc. and the limited partis Dollar General Corporation.
(5) A limited liability company in which Sun-Dollar, B. is the sole member.

(6) A limited liability company in which DG PromotionBjc. is the sole member.

(7) Held 99.9% by Dollar General Corporation and 0.3®iC Holdings, LLC.
(8) A nonprofit, public benefit membership corporatiarwhich Dollar General Corporation is the sole nbem
(9) A general partnership in which the general partaeesDollar General Corporation and DG Promotidms,




Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements and related pecsuses:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-163@0taining to the Shelf Registration StatemeriDofiar General Corporation and its
Affiliates,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-16%p@8taining to the Shelf Registration StatemeriDollar General Corporation and its
Affiliates,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1632@0taining to the Amended and Restated 2007 Staxkntive Plan for Key Employees
of Dollar General Corporation and its Affiliates,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-15)@®5taining to the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan feyemployees of Dollar General
Corporation and its Affiliates,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-15) @@ttaining to the Dollar General Corporation 188ck Incentive Plan,
(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-15)@48taining to the Dollar General Corporation CBPRP Plan, and

(7) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-15)@#rtaining to the Dollar General Corporation 2@@ck Incentive Plan for Key
Employees of Dollar General Corporation and itslisfes;

of our reports dated March 22, 2012, with respethé consolidated financial statements of Dollan&al Corporation and the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting of Dal General Corporation included in this Annual BegForm 10-K) for the year ended
February 3, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse

March 22, 201:




Exhibit 31
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard W. Dreiling, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-oflar General Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentec
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiadtsclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ameport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyesff, the registrant’s internal control over finaieeporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorsldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiofctors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 22, 2012 /s/ Richard W. Dreiling
Richard W. Dreiling
Chief Executive Office




I, David M. Tehle, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-oflar General Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#tate a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tkesigned under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paitidy during the period in which this report it prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg;, or caused such internal control over finaheorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiadtsclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 22, 2012 /s/ David M. Tehle
David M. Tehle
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies thatsdkhbwledge the Annual Report on Form 10-K forfteeal year ended February 3, 2012 of
Dollar General Corporation (the “Company”) filedtiwthe Securities and Exchange Commission on tteefdaeof fully complies with the
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&éearExchange Act of 1934 and that the informationtained in such report fairly presents,
in all material respects, the financial conditiod aesults of operations of the Company.

/s/ Richard W. Dreiling

Name: Richard W. Dreilinc
Title: Chief Executive Office
Date: March 22, 201:

/s/ David M. Tehle

Name: David M. Tehle

Title: Chief Financial Officel
Date: March 22, 201:




